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To become a centre of excellence in the creation

and dissemination of knowledge for sustainable
development.

Mission

To nurture intellectual citizens through creativity
and innovation, who contribute to national

This report presents the annual information about the University of
Kelaniya for the year 2021. It employs the integrated reporting approach
and covers the strategy, governance, performance and prospects of the
University from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021.

Reporting Framework and Scope

The report consists of information on students, graduate output, human
resources, research and innovations, awards and achievements, sports
activities and achievements, welfare facilities, infrastructure
development projects and financial performances and annual accounts.
The data and information provided in this report have been collected from
the administrative departments and academic departments, units and

development

Objectives

01

To create a high quality
and flexible teaching and
learning environment.

03

To create a high quality
and flexible teaching and
learning environment.

02

To develop the highest
quality faculty and staff
to attain the strategic
goals of the University.

04

To develop the highest
quality faculty and staff
to attain the strategic
goals of the University.

centers of the University of Kelaniya. The report is compiled by the e e et
University Statistics and Data Monitoring Unit and the Research 05 P —
Publications Division of the University of Kelaniya.
To develop an excellent system of governance = — - —
through efficient and effective administration and rah 5
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Senior Professor
Nilanthi de Silva
Vice~ Chancellor,

University of Kelaniya
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Message of the
Vice - Chancellor

We are all determined to contribute in many
ways to serve our country and nation; to
provide opportunities for an excellent
higher education and to conduct high-
qualityresearch.

As one of the largest universities in Sri Lanka, the
University of Kelaniya remains committed to national
development through the delivery of higher education
programs of outstanding quality, the conduct of excellent
research and the delivery of expert consultative services
tothe public of Sri Lanka.

The University continued with its academic and research
activities throughout 2021, turning to online platforms
when required. Although many routine face-to-face
activities had to be curtailed because of the COVID-19
pandemic, we were successful in finding solutions to the
inevitable problems and crises that occurred from time to
time. In 2021, we registered the highest annual intake of
internal undergraduate students to date and forged
ahead with plans to improve our presence in international
university rankings.

We were particularly proactive in rising to the challenges
brought about by the pandemic. Under the guidance of a
COVID-19 Response Committee that met fortnightly, the
University adapted guidelines issued by health
authorities regarding essential health and safety
precautions, provided free testing facilities for diagnosis
of COVID-19 infection, carried out numerous drives to
vaccinate students and staff, and set in place several
measures to support those affected by COVID-19,
particularly among our staff members.

| thank all those who worked enthusiastically and
tirelessly during a very challenging time and made 2021
into another successful year for the University of
Kelaniya.
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FACTS & FIGURES

¢¢ STAFF OF THE UNIVERSITY ee

Staff by Caregory Sraft by Gender
S‘:Ll::tﬁ’l'“ Ksknaalend Femmale Highest Qualifications Achieved by Academic Staft; Academic Support Staff and

35 | 22% 727 | 45.4%

Administrative Staft

Doctoral Degree 355 | 45.2%

Academic Staff
G689 | 42.9%

Male
876 | 54.6%

MPhil Degree 71 | 9.0%

Master's Degree 201 | 25.6%

Academue Support Staff
a0 | 3.1%

Diploma/ Bachelor's Degree/ PG Diploma 159 | 20.2%

Librazy Sl;lﬂ—-‘
12 | 0.7%

Non-acadenuc Staff
B19 | 51%

*Administrative and Financial stalt (30), Medwal officers (2), Other
Executive staff (3)

Qualifications of Non-academic Staff
Academic Staft by Position

Master's Degree 5 | 0.6%

M Female = Male
Bachelor's Degree 37 | 4.5%

Senior Protessor

Completed Diploma 54 | 6.6%

Passed GCE A/L 339 | 41.4%

Passed GCE O/L 81 | 9.9%

256 [T scio: Lecuser Gill

Up to GCE O/1.303 | 37.0%

Lecturer

2o [ Lectue Probtionuy
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FACTS & FIGURES

FACTS & FIGURES

¢¢ STUDENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY ee
Undergraduate Student Enrollment

FEOEC
FCAS 3103 23%

3189| 25%

| T 2439 168%
s 4;' 200 Postgraduate Student Enrollment
FAMED
1501 10% Master's Degree
1,182 | 92.6%
Doctoral Degree
55 | 4.3%
MPhil Degree
9 | 3.1%
Qualifications Awarded
Postgmduoate Thploma
45) 1.1% Aﬁﬂl hﬂﬂfﬂfﬁm—
Alfdstirs raE i .
13:3| ,;;E:f Qualitications Awarded by Faculty

FEDSC BEE | 33%

Doctoral Degres
28| 7%

Bachelor's Degres FEIT 348 | 21%:

2655 | 65.3%

FCLEE 481 | 18%

FEC 410 | 16%

FMED 209 | %

FCT 110 | 4%

(Undergraduate quahfications only)
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¢¢  RESEARCH OUTPUTS oo

Number of Funds for Promoting Rescarch Senate Awards for Publications

270
T OT AL SCOPUS oxly 39

SCIL S5CI AHCL ABDC and
ABS including SCOPUS 175

Publication fees 18

Local and foreigs
registration fees 8

44
A TOTAL

Research Symposia
14

Trends in Publications by University Academic Staff;, by CiteScore Quartile

800
E 400 Soore Quartile
S B 04 (top 76% - 100%)
[ 0 Q3 (top 51% - 75%
= B Q2 (top 26% - sm:.i
< Qi {top 25%)

200

0 Data Source : Scival

v

Year
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¢¢  TRENDS AND PATTERNS oo

New Entrants Across Years
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Total Academic Staff Across Years
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Trend in Scholarly Outputs Indexed in Scopus
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46  SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORTING oo

Scholarly Output on SDGs

Cumulative Scholarly output on SDGs 2016- 2020 Scholardy output on SDGs 2021
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¢¢ COVID-19DATA oo

COVID-19 cases reported from students and staff of the University
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[\ \ -
TRV
\)
A\
WY

Wik
.-

—

November 14

October 12

71/

V% .’

Seprember 15

August 64

Annual Report & rtecounts 2021 X117

-

N\ [} o

."l

‘lﬂl;

-, =
V

!

v

ANNUAL

. -ll

'AII.II .-

|
.lll"

-

Ty
™~

-

L\‘-“

N ETNS
VLA RIS E | S

ATRYIIIE
1\l

LN,

-n\\’ .
| RS
Awmm m

\-

WIS

\

PUTINTCIS ‘
“ww=
N

., i§

N

LN
A0 l' N\

\{

WINiE wmIa

PART ONE

A
- nim
|

REPORT

,"l"_
I'.A 4

VA

h

.-

171h.,
S ERITAR.

- - - —— -
e —



wWv ‘\.i'a- \

o

A NAAAALAALL L4 )

UNIVERSITY OF KELANIYA

The University of Kelaniya has its origin in the historic Vidyalankara Pirivena, founded in

1875 by Ratmalane Sri Dharmaloka Thero as a center of learning for Buddhist monks. With
the establishment of modern universities in Sri Lanka in the 1940s and 1950s, the
Vidyalankara Pirivena became the Vidyalankara University in 1959, later the Vidyalankara
Campus of the University of Ceylon in 1972, and, ultimately, the University of Kelaniya in
1978.

The University has seven faculties including 56 academic departments, three other
academic units and two affiliated institutes, namely the Postgraduate Institute of Pali and
Buddhist Studies and the Postgraduate Institute of Archaeology. At present, the Gampaha
Wickramarachchi Ayurvedic Institute, which was also an affiliated institute of the UoK,
has become a separate university.

All the faculties except the Medical Faculty at Ragama Premises and the Faculty of
Computerand Technology at Peliyagoda Premises are located at the Dalugama Premises.
The University of Kelaniya is the first university to start teaching science in Sinhala. It also
took the lead in establishing academic departments in relevant study streams: the
Department of Industrial Management and Department of Microbiology were the first of

their kind, established in the Faculty of Science; the Department of Linguistics, the

HAnnual Report & /ecounts 2021 2



Department of Fine Arts, the Department of Modern Languages and the Department of

Hindi of the Faculty of Humanities were established at UoK first; the Faculty of Social

Sciences pioneered the establishment of the Department of Mass Communication and

the Department of Library and Information Sciences for the first time in Sri Lanka.

The University provides a range of vital services to its students via a specialized set of

university centers and units. Key among them are the Student Counselling Service, Career

Guidance Unit, Personal Counselling Unit (Kalana Mithuru Sevana), Medical Center,

Physical Education Center, Cultural Center, Arts Council, the Library (including Faculty

Assistant
Internal
Anditor

Libraries), the Information and Communication Technology Center and the International

Student Affairs Unit. In addition, several other units and centers have been established to

offer other services related to the effective administration of the university: among these

Assistant
Bussars

are the Internal Quality Assurance Centre, University Statistics and Data Monitoring Unit

(USDMU), Media Unit, Staff Development Center, Technology and Innovation Support

Centre, Sustainable Development Centre, Centre for Distance and Continuing Education

(CDCE), Centre of Excellence for Strategic Brand Identity Development (CEBID) and the

Inter-Faculty Center for Coordinating the Modular System (ICCMS).

Non-Academic Staff

The University of Kelaniya has introduced a free insurance scheme for students and staff

asitis concerned not only with the quality of the graduates but also with the well-being of

University Council I
Vice - Chancellor

the students and the staff. It is the first-ever university in the country to offer up to five

million rupees for the doctoral studies of the staff members. In addition, a large amount of

money has been allocated for aesthetic and sports activities of the university.

The bhikku hostel and the women's hostel complex are located within the university

premises, while the men's hostels and some of the women's hostels are located in the

. surrounding area outside the university premises. Mahapola and Bursary scholarships are &

given every year to students with financial difficulties. Apart from these two main

S
§
'-?g = §
W scholarship schemes, the Alumni Association of the University also supports students # E LE E o
: = 4 <
with financial difficulties who are not eligible to receive Mahapola or Bursary § E %E‘ o
| scholarships. A | 2
5
The human resources of the university include the academic staff members, the %] 2
' administrative staff, the academic support staff, and the non-academic staff. The | gﬁ 'S%j Eﬁ §
8§ 2e g 2
. followingdiagramillustrates the organizational structure of the University. EE L g E)
: * J
o ; ”F!.yf;;!-ﬂ'?pw-m:, — ;5‘ = s 3] :.. ﬂl
sk i 2 L 4 4;: e el ai <=-_- v M



Names of the Members

Vice-Chancellor

THE COUNCIL

Table 1.1 : Council members

Period of

Appointment

Number of
meetings
attended during
the year 2021

Senior Professor Nilanthi De Silva

28.08.2020 - 27.08.2023 12
Deans of Faculties
Dr. P.N. D. Fernando/Faculty of Commerce
& Management Studies 10.06.2020 - 31.12.2023 12
Dr. P. G. Wijayarathna/ Faculty of Computing
& Technology 06.05.2019 - 31.12.2021 11
Snr. Prof J. M. D. Ariyarathne/Faculty of
Graduate Studies 09.03.2019 - 08.03.2022 12
Dr. U.S. Senarath/Faculty of Humanities
Snr. Prof. (Mrs) S. J. de S. 10.06.2020 - 09.06.2023 12
Hewavisenthi/Faculty of Medicine 23.09.2020 - 22.09.2023 11
Snr. Prof. S. R. D. Kalingamudhali/Faculty of
Science 03.01.2020 - 02.01.2023 12
Prof. M. M. Gunathilake/Faculty of Social
Science 15.12.2019 - 14.12.2022 12
Senate Nominee
Ven.(Snr. Prof.) Induragare Dhammarathana
Thero 26.01.2020 - 25.01.2023 7
Prof. P. M. C. Thilakeratne
Snr. Prof. N. A. K. P. J. Senavirathne 26.01.2020 - 27.07.2021 5
28.07.2021 - 25.01.2023 5
Member Appointed by the University
Grants Commission
Prof. H. Abeygunawardena
Mr. Rakhitha Shri Dharshana 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 9
Abeygoonawardana 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 11
Prof. Ranjith Arthanayake 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 12
Mr. Sanjaya Bandara 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 9
Mr. S. M. Gotabayalayarathne 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 12
Prof. Nimal Perera 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 12
Prof. Rohan Rajapakse 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 8
Mr. L.E. Susantha Silva 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 12
Mr. S.K. Cyril Suduwella 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 12
Mr. Upali Wijayaweera 11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 10
11.02.2020 - 15.01.2023 11
Secretary to the Council
Mr. W.M. Karunaratne
Mr. K.K.K. Dharmathilaka(Ex-Officio) 01.01.2021 - 01.07.2021 6
02.07.2021 - 31.12.2021 6

" Mr. W.M. Karunaratne, retired on 01.07.2021
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YEAR IN
REVIEW - 2021

INTRODUCTION

s the COVID-19 pandemic extended into its second year, the University of
Kelaniya rose to the challenge of delivering online education for all its
students, and expedited transition to digitalized systems and processes in
the management of its affairs. Throughout 2021, the University continued to
strengthen its digital infrastructure to support the enhanced need for online delivery
of learning activities and materials, the conduct of various forms of assessment, the
use of video conferencing platforms for meetings and conferences, and recruitment
procedures. At the same time, the University used the opportunity provided by the
physical absence of students to renovate and refurbish hostels and other common

amenities.

Several significant transitions took place in the year under review. In March, the
Gampaha Wickramaarachchi Ayurveda Institute, which had been affiliated to the
University of Kelaniya since 1995, became an independent university known as the
Gampaha Wickramaarachchi University of Indigenous Medicine. Senior Professor
Janitha Liyanage of the Department of Chemistry in the Faculty of Science of the
University of Kelaniya was appointed as the first Vice-Chancellor of the new

University.

At the end of June, Mr. W.M. Karunaratne, who had served as the Registrar of the
University of Kelaniya for 17 years, retired from service. He was succeeded by Mr.
K.K.K .Dharmathilake, who is an alumnus of the Universities of Colombo and
Kelaniya.

In October, our much venerated and beloved Chancellor, the Most Venerable
Welamitiyawe Kusaladhamma Thero, who had served in this capacity for nearly 25
years, passed away. The University was pleased to welcome Aggamahapanditha
Ven. Kollupitiye Mahinda Sangharakkitha Thero, the Chief Incumbent of the

Kelaniya Rajamaha Viharaya, appointed by His Excellency the President, as the new
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STUDENTINTAKE AND GRADUATION

Atotal of 3,959 new internal undergraduate students were enrolled in the first half of 2021
for the academic year 2019/20, and the total enrollment of internal undergraduates in the
University of Kelaniya in 2021 rose to 13,673. The total number of students enrolled in
external undergraduate programs was 95,692, while 2,970 students enrolled in

postgraduate programs offered by the University of Kelaniya.

Because of delays caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, only 2,655 students graduated
from internal undergraduate degree programs. However, 5,596 students graduated from
external undergraduate degree programs and 1,408 students graduated from
postgraduate degree programs. Four convocations were held during the year, and
students were encouraged to obtain their degree certificates in absentia due to the

difficulty of holding convocations physically in the earlier months of 2021.

STAFF

During the year 2021, 25 academic staff members of the Faculty of Medicine and 2
academic staff members of the Faculty of Science received President's Awards for
Scientific Publications in the year 2018. To motivate academics and appreciate their
research efforts, 270 Senate awards and cash prizes were awarded, and /7 academic staff
members received Vice-Chancellor's Awards. Several faculties and academic
departments had organized 14 research conferences inecluding 10 international

conferences to promote the research culturein the University of Kelaniya.

Moreover, five researchers of the University of Kelaniya, Senior Professor Nilanthi de
Silva, Senior Professor Janaka de Silva, Professor K.T.A.A. Kasturirathna, Senior
Professor Asita de Silva and Professor Sachith Mettananda were ranked among the top
2% of scientists in the list of outstanding researchers prepared by Elsevier BV and
Stanford University, USA.

The University of Kelaniya was ranked 2nd place among the local universities.and 754th
place among the global universities by the SCIMAGO Institutions Rankings in 2021.
SClmago is an interactive open-access platform that analyses research performance,
innovation outputs and societal impact and the university has shown good progress in

Scopus Indexed publications during the past five years.

"!;:A; E
il ohort il rdis
e

. A

L L8
vy,

XL ‘I: _ -~ P -— 3 » L L] 5 ',_ ) .‘.‘ "l,. ! " - 4) :'.-- s ! y ‘Jﬁ'— r
‘/,‘{i‘ __._-- 4 y g \ \ \‘h; » }‘v N ‘A‘Lﬂ'}\. £ 4 ; . R ¢ _‘?‘? : .'
o £ s % = . T 7 SR . AL
CIde Ll - N GO TR

In addition, the university was ranked in 6th place in Sri Lanka, in 137th place in the South
Asian region and 2,557th place globally in Webometrics ranking (July edition). Moreover,
the University of Kelaniya has ranked 2nd locally and 124th in the Asian region and 247th
globally in Ul Green Metrics ranking 2021.

Apart from the research activities, the film, Viyasiduru, produced by the University of
Kelaniya has won awards in Paris International Film Awards 2021, Calcutta International
Cult Film Festival 2021, World Film Carnival - Singapore 2021, Golden Sparrow
International Film Festival 2021, and in Halicarnassus film Festival Turkey 2021. Apart
from that, the movie has been officially selected in Port Blair International Film Festival
2021, Indo French International Film Festival, Vanilla Palm Film Festival & Art Competition
California 2021, Druk International film Festival 2021, Tagore International Film Festival
2021.

The official website of the University of Kelaniya, www.kln.ac.lk won the gold award for
the Best University and Education Institute website and the silver award overall at the
BestWeb.lk competitionin 2021.

The University of Kelaniya has seven Faculties, 56 Departments of study, and several
units and centers. Table 2-1 illustrates the student capacity, number of degree programs,

number of academic staff, graduate output, and staff to student ratio of each Faculty.

Table 2.1 : Statistics and Figures

[(b]
]
o0 =
2 A 3 i
y— < Y— Y n Y “— (9p)
> £ 2 [oamSEERNSNG T SN L
Faculties $Eg2c 25 25 £5.5.
o) h
EQ@s 55 £ 5 53 5 -cioie
=2 0O 2 0 2 < = n 2 O 0
FSOSC 05 12 133 3189 110 23.98
FCT 03 03 30 892 58 29.73
FGS 4 54 - 2970 1408 -
FHU 10 28 118 2749 548  23.29
FMED 18 04 133 1301 209 9.78
FSC 09 18 138 2439 419 17.67
FSOSC 12 18 134 3103 888 23.16

* Including Molecular Medicine Unit
° Including Software Engineering Teaching Unit




OUTLOOK FOR THE
FUTURE

he University of Kelaniya is

striving to look beyond 2030

despite the extraordinary
circumstances created by the Covid-19
pandemic. Key among its many initiatives
the most prioritized is the goal to qualify to
be ranked in the Times Higher Education
World Ranking. The University of Kelaniya
has already entered the QS Asia University
Rankings 2022.

Most future programmes and activities
shall be developed to look beyond 2030
and align with the university ranking
expectations. An information and
communications technology (ICT)
roadmap will pave the way for; introducing
and embedding ed-tech to improve the
student learning experience; and improve
administrative efficiency. The University of

Kelaniya recognizes the importance of

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and will be working closely with various
stakeholders to increase its contribution to achieving Sri Lanka's SDG footprint. The
University recognizes that it's imperative to increase student intake and graduate
employability as we approach the next decade. Limited building facilities remains a major
obstacle to introduce new programs and increase student intake. Moreover, macro-

economic conditionin Sri Lanka may also affect graduate employability.
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UNIVERSITY
GOVERNANCE

The University of Kelaniya follows the organizational structure and line of responsibilities
laid down in the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 and is bound to comply with the
regulations and guidance provided by the UGC from time to time through its Circulars.

The Council, the Senate, and the Faculty Boards are statutory bodies that formulate
policies at different levels of operation. The organogram of UoK illustrates the position of

all the officers with their duties, responsibilities and the line of reporting.

The Chancellor and Officers of the University

The Chancellor is the Head of the University who presides over convocations, while the
Vice-Chancellor is the principal executive officer, the principal academic officer, and the
chief accounting officer of the University. The Vice-Chancellor is an ex-officio member
and Chairperson of both the Council and the Senate of the University and bears
responsibility for implementation of the decisions of the Council and the Senate. The
Deans are the academic and administrative heads of each Faculty and the ex-officio
Chairperson of the respective Faculty Board. They are ex-officio members of the Council
and Senate. The Dean of the Faculty of Graduate Studies is responsible for coordinating
and regulating postgraduate studies as well as specialized or multidisciplinary research

carried out within the university, subject to the direction and control of the Senate.

The Registrar is responsible for the disciplinary control of its non-academic staff and has
the custody of the records and property of the University. He is the ex-officio Secretary to
the Council and the Senate. The Librarian is responsible for the administration of the
libraries of the University and is also an ex-officio member of the Senate. The Bursar is
responsible for the management of the University's finances and the maintenance of its

accounts.
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THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

The Council is the executive body and governing authority of the University. The Council of
the University of Kelaniya consists of the Vice-Chancellor, the seven Deans of the
Faculties, two members elected by the Senate from among its members and eleven
members appointed by the UGC. The Vice-Chancellor chairs the Council, while the
Registrar is the Secretary to the Council. Council members serve on all Selection
Committees for recruitment and promotion of academic staff, and on the following

statutory committees:
*  Finance Committee
« Audit Committee

+ Management Committee of the Centre for Distance & Continuing Education

THE SENATE

The Senate is the academic authority of the University and comprises of the Vice-
Chancellor who is the ex-officio Chairperson, the Directors of the PGIAR and PGIPBS,
Deans of Faculties, Heads of Departments, Senior Professors and Professors, the
Librarian, and two academic members from each faculty who are elected from the
permanent academics of the respective faculty. The Senate, in the exercise of its duties,

has appointed several Standing Committees in the following areas.

* Quality Assurance + Research and Publications
« Curriculum, Learning, Teaching and Evaluation + Admissions
« Library * Honorary Degrees

 Leave and Awards

Annual Report & ecounts 2021

FACULTY BOARDS

The Faculty Boards regulate matters connected with teaching, examinations and
research in the respective faculties, subject to the control of the Senate. All academic
departments come under the purview of the respective Faculty Board. The departments
of study are responsible for the development of curricula, teaching, assessments,

research, and otherrelevant academic matters of each department.

GOVERNANCE DOCUMENT : STRATEGIC PLANE &
ANNUAL ACTION PLANE

In 2021, the University of Kelaniya decided to change from its previous practice of working
with a b-year rolling Corporate Plan and adopted a 3-year Strategic Plan. The Strategic
Plan for 2022-2024 is designed to be pragmatic, real, and relevant, influencing the
university's vital institutional decisions and addressing the prioritized requirements of
both staff and students while sharing the overall vision of the university with its partners
for the next three years. This also sets the platform for articulating a set of values guiding

the University's work over the next three years. The Action Plan is the proposed activity

plan foraspecificyearandis based on the Strategic Plan.
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STATUTORY COMMITTEES

Finance Committee

The Council of the University of Kelaniya has appointed a Finance Committee (FC)
to make recommendations with respect to finance-related matters to support the

Council. The composition of the FCis as follows.
« Vice-Chancellor—Chairperson

« Deansof Faculties

+  Two members of the Council

* Registrar

+ Bursar-Convener

FC meets once a month and takes decisions on all matters related to the finances of
the University. All financial matters, including program budgets, are properly
evaluated in line with governing regulations and as per the university development
plan. Recommendations of the FC are submitted for approval of the Council. FC
receives matters referred by the Vice-Chancellor, Deans of Faculties, Registrar,
Bursar, Heads of Departments, Heads of Divisions or Senate. FC is one of the

subcommittees of the Council.

Procurement Committee

The University of Kelaniya has its Department Procurement Committee (DPC)
which is appointed by the Secretary of the Ministry of Education in line with
Procurement Guidelines of 2006 and its subsequent amendments. Thus, the
University has two types of PCs: the DPC (Major) and the DPC (Minor). DPC (Minor)
takes up the procurements below Rs. 5 million while DPC (Major) takes up
procurement up to 200 million as per current guidelines. The composition of the DPC
(Major) is the Vice-Chancellor as chairperson, a member appointed by the Secretary
of the Ministry of Education and the Bursar as member. The composition of the DPC
(Minor) is the Vice-Chancellor as Chairperson, Registrar— as member and Bursar as
member. Meanwhile, a Supplies Committee (SC) is also appointed by the governing
body to assist the procurement of the University. SC supports the DPC, and it takes
up procurement up to Rs. 500,000/-. In addition, the University has its Project
Procurement Committee (PPC) appointed by the Secretary of the Ministry of

Education.
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Audit Committee

As per the Public Enterprises Circular No.PE.D./31, the Audit Committee meeting
should be held at least four times a year. The main objective of the Audit Committee
is to assist the Council to carry out efficient financial functions an related

management activities of the University.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are the review and supervision of
financial statements, financial reporting, and the continuation of the audit process,
the examination of any matters related to the finance of the University, the approval
of the annual internal audit plans and programs, the supervision of the Internal Audit
Plan and Program, the investigation of the external and internal audit reports and the
follow up on recommendations. Their review, supervision, and examination of
compliance with system controls to ensure effective performance, the review of
performance at regular intervals for cost-effectiveness and elimination of wasteful
expenditure etc., ascertaining whether statutes, regulations, rules, and circulars are

complied with are all responsibilities of the Audit Committee.

Table 4 - 1 : Number of meetings held during 2021

Student Committees Number of meetings held
Council 12
Senate 11
Finance Committee 12
Audit Committee 4

ETHICAL AND SAFETY STANDARDS

The University has two Ethics Review Committees (ERC). The Ethics Review Committee
of the Faculty of Medicine was established in 1995 to promote research ethics among
undergraduates, postgraduate students, academics, and the wider community of
researchers. Its primary objective is the protection of humans participating in biomedical
research. This is achieved through review and monitoring processes carried out in
accordance with the guidelines of the Forum of Ethics Review Committees in Sri Lanka
(FERCSL guidelines) and other relevant national and international legislation and

guidelines.

The Ethics Review Committee of the University of Kelaniya was established in 2016, with
the aim of promoting high quality research and is dedicated to maintaining the highest
ethical standards as enshrined in its vision and mission. The ERC of the University of
Kelaniya covers several aspects of research ethics pertaining to the research conducted
by the Faculties of Commerce and Management, Computing and Technology, Graduate

Studies, Humanities, Science and Social Sciences.
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HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELL - BEING

The University has a Health Centre (UHC) to help the students and staff of the University
to lead an active life free from disease. It contributes towards the wellbeing of students
and provides acomprehensive, preventive health service. All registered students and staff
are entitled to free consultations, free basic medicinal drugs, laboratory service and other
services. The UHC functions as an outpatients' department (OPD), attending to the
health needs of all internal students and around 2000 academic and non-academic staff,
as well as their close relatives. The UHC provides OPD consultation, day treatment and
emergency treatment for the university community. Patients are referred to relevant
clinics or transferred to tertiary care hospitals as relevant. The UHC has qualified staff, a
well-equipped laboratory, a pharmacy, and other required facilities to provide these
services effectively. A Dental Clinic & Ayurvedic medical facilities are also available at the
UHC.

The University Medical Officers are well trained in student counselling and student
health, especially in areas of sexual & reproductive health and psychological problems of
youth. In addition, UHC conducts medical examinations, certifying the fitness of students
involved in sports activities and of academic staff and/or students who go abroad for
study purposes or international conferences or tournaments. The Chief Medical Officer of
the UHC isresponsible for the medical confirmation for service and granting extensions of
service to the staff based on the findings of medical examination. All the medical

certificates of students and staff are evaluated and certified by CMO.

GRIEVANCE HANDLING

The University has a grievance redress mechanism with effect from January 01, 2021
which was approved by the University Council at meeting No 485 held on 08" December,
2020.

The University has pledged to adhere to the principles of acceptance, empathy,
confidentiality, impartiality & fairness, responsibility, finding solutions continuously, and

gender equality in dealing with the grievances of its staff members.
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FACULTY OF
COMMERCE & MANAGMENT
STUDIES

MISSION
(414

The mission of the Faculty of Commerce and
Management Studies of the University of Kelaniya is

to Foster a culture of excellence in teaching, learning

b

and research to nurture tomorrow's leaders.
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Introduction Of The Faculty

he Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies, University of Kelaniya is one

of the fast-developing faculties in Sri Lanka. It was established in 1976, branching

out from the Faculty of Social Sciences. Subsequently, it became a prestigious
faculty in the University of Kelaniya. With hard work, perseverance, and the dedication of
the academic staff, students, and other bodies the FCMS was able to achieve faculty
status in 1995. It conducts a multitude of programs under five (5) departments:
Department of Commerce & Financial Management (DCFM), Department of Human
Resource Management (HRM), Department of Accountancy (DoA), Department of
Marketing Management (DMM), and Department of Finance (DFin). The faculty offers
twelve (12) Undergraduate Degree Programs, one Doctor of Business Administration
(DBA) program, six (06) master's degree programs, five (05) Diploma and six (06) Higher
Diploma programs. The Faculty includes 147 academic staff members, 32 non-academic
staff members and 3152 undergraduate students. The faculty has a multi-cultural, multi-
ethnic student body, and it fosters social harmony and cultural diversity. The
undergraduates of the faculty have the opportunity to develop their soft-skills and have
the.character molded through extracurricular activities conducted by the respective

departments and the Faculty.
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Quality of Academic Activities

The faculty is appreciated by university
community for successfully aligning with
and maintaining academic quality over
quantity. The Faculty's graduate
employability rate of 81% is one of the
highest rates among the management
faculties in the country, which indicates
the quality of the graduates produced by
the Faculty. Further, obtaining the ISO
certification for the Department of
Marketing Management and the
recognition granted by the Chartered
Financial Analysts (CFA) Institute-USA
for the Bachelor of Business
Management Honors in Finance and
Bachelor of Business Management
Honors in Financial Engineering
indicates the quality of the degree
programs offered by the faculty.
Moreover, renewing the membership of
AACSB (The Association to Advance
Collegiate Schools of Business) for 2021

and introducing the Bachelor of Business
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Management Honors in Digital Marketing
are the key milestones that indicates the
Faculty's emphasis on quality over

quantity during the year 2021.

At present, the Faculty has converted all
the Special Degree programs into Honors
Degree programs. Additionally, two new
Centers were established to carry out
activities related to student internships
and to develop entrepreneurship among
students. In celebrating the twenty-fifth
anniversary of the faculty, The Centre for
Management Research (CMR) was
renamed as W.M. Jayarathne Centre for
Management Research, which provides
vital assistance for research in the
Faculty. The Faculty conducts rigorous
and quality research in the field of

management.
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Academic Staff Profile

Inspired by the Faculty's tradition of holding to
high academic standards, the staff members
are self-motivated to carry out research that
contributes to the development of academic
programs. Consequently, in 2021, the staff
members of the Faculty obtained a Vice
Chancellor's Award and 3 Senate Awards for
high quality research publications. In addition,
. with the collaboration of the University of
Central Lancashire, UK a research project was
completed by the Center for Advanced
Marketing by the Department of Marketing
Management on COVID-19 and disaster under
the supervision of Prof. D.M.R. Dissanayake.
Further, 49 members of the academic staff
hold Doctoral Degrees (PhD) while 114
members are with master's degrees, and the
remaining, 27 members of the staff are

currently reading for Doctoral degrees.

Innovation

The Faculty has taken steps to create an enriched learning environment to provide
opportunities for undergraduates- to complete their education successfully. Online
teaching and learning are being upgraded through various infrastructural developments
such as the construction of smart classrooms to promote blended classrooms among
lecturers and students, the construction of an innovation lab to promote new product
development in undergraduate and postgraduate programs and Studio Al to help
students and other stakeholders in digital content development. Further, among the
significant innovations organized by students is the introduction of “Goraka Secret,” a

drink targeting diabetic patients, as part of acommunity development project.

In addition, launching a free financial literacy course for the public, introducing a short
course in Banking and launching the magazine Finance Outlook are some other
exceptional activities conducted during the year. Further, the Faculty also incorporated a
proctoring system for online examinations and implemented itin -all postgraduate degree

programs.
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Actions on COVID-19 Pandemic(Staff/Students)

iven the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, all in-person lectures were shifted

to the ZOOM online platform to ensure the safety of the students and the

academic staff. Further, all physical examinations that took place at the
university premises were conducted through the online platform to curb the COVID-19
pandemic. To ensure the safety of the invigilators who had on-premises duty, bio-bubbles
were created adhering to all the COVID-19 health guidelines. The majority of the
academic and non-academic staff members are fully vaccinated for COVID-19, and all the
staff members and students were continuously encouraged to get the vaccine via the

vaccination programs organized by the university.

Further, the faculty conducted academic events such as the Conference for Accounting
Researchers and Educators (ICARE) and launched the 8th volume of the case study of
accounting and some social events such as, 'Great Minds Talk series, Vesak with ASAK
2021, Virtual Poson Thorana' and Dfin Beats via online-platforms to provide opportunities
for undergraduates to relief the stress of the COVID-19 pandemic. The academic
coordinators were responsible for reaching out to support students who were affected by
COVID-19. Continuing its regular activities online whilst adhering to all necessary health

precautions, the Faculty has risen to the challenges of the new normal.

Infrastructure Developments

Despite the great challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the renovation of the the
faculty office and the renovation of common amenities in the Ananda Patabendige
building were successfully completed. Moreover, Digital Smart Interactive Boards, Web
Cams and desktops were purchased to facilitate the online education activities of the

Faculty.
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Highlights Of The Year 2021

the other prominent activities organized by
the faculty during the last year were virtual
field visits, “Certified Professional
Marketing Graduate (CPMG)” certificate,
the signing of MOUs for Gold Medals with
the Colombo Stock Exchange and

Softlogic life and initiating a teaching

he celebration of the 25"

anniversary of the Faculty of

Commerce and Management
Studies was one of the key events of 2021.
An online teaching and training program
titled “National Workshop on Online
Assessment Methods” was conducted for
school-teachers of higher education
institutes /National Universities in Sri
Lanka.
The faculty celebrated the 45th
anniversary of the Department of
Commerce and Financial Management

and the 10th anniversary of the

Department of Finance in 2021. Some of
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appraisal program to award a “Teaching
Excellence Award” to appreciate high-
quality teachersin the Faculty.

In achieving the mission, the faculty
creates outstanding leaders who shine in
the corporate world because they have
gained the required capability, skills, and
attitudes to make essential decisions to be
successful in their careers. The Faculty of
Commerce and Management Studies has
so far produced more than 10,000
graduates and most of them are at the
managerial ranks in public and private
sector organizations, and some of our
graduates are prominent entrepreneurs in
the country.

Dr PND Fernando
Dean/ Faculty of Commerce & Management Studies
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FACULTY OF Vision
COMPUTING & TECHNOLOGY

To become a centre of excellence in creation and dissemination of knowledge in

Computing and Technology for sustainable development.

New Degree Programs Commenced

The Faculty of Computing and Technology commenced the 'Master of Science in IT in

i G Education'intheyear2021. The target group is ICT teachers.
PrACULTY OF comPUTI e

UNWEHSITT o - The first batch of students was registered on 30" January 2021. The number of
PNy ' registered studentsis 27.

MISSION
(14

The Faculty of Computing and Technology strives for

excellence in computing and technology through
innovation and dissemination of knowledge and

capacity building for socio-economic development of

b
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Annual Conference
20th, 2021. The program was organized as an

annual event that supported scholars from
1] TIITm ™ all around the world to gather and share their

technological, scientific, and socio-
economic findings while initiating
collaborations. This year's motto for the
conference was on the topic” Defining the
role of technology for the economic
development of a country”. Four events were
conducted over three days, 1st FCT- Faculty
Research Symposium, 6th International
Conference, four workshops, and Pitch Tech
90, an outreach program focused on A/L

school studentsin the Technological Stream.

This event became a platform for a dialogue

with key stakeholders of the technology field

This year's International Conference on
y in Sri Lanka and scholars from around the

Advances in Technology and Computing
world.

was held virtually from December 18th to

Industry Cell for Computing and Technology
(IICFCT)

The Faculty of Computing and Technology (FCT) at the University of Kelaniya has
established the Industry Interaction Cell for Computing and Technology (IICfCT) to
provide consultancy services for both engineering and computing industries, product
development and acceleration to the market, and to establish the industry-faculty
business linkage. Through partnerships with private and public industries, the [ICfCT
intends to provide reliable and cost-effective solutions to the industries while providing a
learning experience to university students, and collaborative research opportunities to
the faculty members. [ICfCT obtains human resources from FCT for most of its projects.
As of today, the staff members attached to FCT have provided numerous computing and
software solutions to private and public entities. The IICfCT also coordinates the
professional activities and employability enhancement programs for the students to
enhance their soft skills, knowledge, and understanding of the corporate sector. ICCfCT
received funding worth over Rs. 17 million from the Science and Technology Human

Resource Project forits operationsin the next 3 years.
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Actions on COVID-19 Pandemic (Staff/Student)

Adhering to guidelines given by the government and the university administration, the
Faculty of Computing and Technology also took many precautionary actions to prevent the
spread of COVID-19 on the campus. The health status of the staff and the students was
continuously monitored to identify any possible cases. Cleaning and disinfection
processes were conducted regularly. Students and staff were encouraged to get
vaccinated and arrangements were made to facilitate the vaccinations process. During
the last year, all the lectures were conducted online, and students were only admitted to
the university for examinations. Only fully vaccinated staff members performed -exam
duties, while students were separated into several categories according to their
vaccination status. This arrangement helped immensely to contain the virus during the
examination period when a large number of students were admitted to the university.
Regular meetings were conducted to review the COVID-19 status in the faculty, and

faculty guidelines were updated under the guidance of the Chief Medical Officer.

Infrastructure Development

The proposed infrastructure facilities for the Faculty of Computing and Technology are
under construction at Dippitigoda, Kelaniya at a total cost of LKR 4.3 billion under the
Asian Science and Technology Human Resource Development Project funded by the
Asian Development Bank. This building complex has a floor area of more than 30,000 m*
spread in 6 buildings comprising of all modern facilities including more than 25 science

and engineering laboratories and a 1000-seat auditorium.

The proposed building complex has been designed as green buildings with an energy-
efficiency focus and will enhance the recognition of the University of Kelaniya as a green
university with a relatively small carbon footprint. This building complex is expected to
receive the platinum green rating under both the Urban Development Authority Green
Building Certification Scheme as well as the Green Building Council of Sri Lanka
Certification Scheme. This building complex will generate renewable energy through a

- '

large solar panel installation and two

windmills. A sophisticated Building
Management System will monitor the

functionality of all these systems.

The laboratory in this building complex will
be ready for occupation in mid-2022, while
the rest of the buildings have been planned
tobe completed by September 2023.
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Faculty Level Research

The Faculty of Computing and Technology Research Center (RC - FCT) will act as a
principal hub through which faculty members can receive guidance on funding
strategies, proposal preparation, inter-faculty and inter-university research
collaborations, international collaborations, identification of innovative research and
guidance on commercialization of research outcomes through coordination with the
Industry Interaction Cell of FCT (IICFCT). The main functions of the RC-FCT are to.

* Direct the Advisory Board of the Faculty Research Centre to
develop/promote research culture within the faculty.

* Facilitate interactions of researchers with outside researchers,
institutions, industry partners and the community.

* Provide guidance and support in the career development activities
of young faculty members who have aninterestin research.

* Represent the faculty and report the development of research
activities of the Faculty at the Research Council Meetings.

* In year 2021 the Faculty Research Center organized the following
workshops for staff and students:

» 'Transferring research Skills to the Next Generation' by Dr. Dilushan
Jayasundara on the 16" June 2021

* 'Industry and research applications of Data Science, Machine
Learning and Al', by Dr. Rukshan Batuwita, Senior Data Scientist on
3“October 2021.
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Activities on SDGs

The new Faculty of Computing and Technology building complex is targeting to

obtain the platinum green rating certification. The performance of the built
environments greatly affects the natural environment as well as the economy and
the productivity of the country and the health of the occupants. Also, buildings are
responsible for more than one third of total global energy usage and forty percent of
the global carbon dioxide emissions. As the world moves towards sustainable
development and green concepts the new building complex is designed to use less
energy and non- renewable materials and water and to improve indoor air quality
while reducing the life-cycle environmental impacts of the materials used. All these
green features that have been incorporated will ultimately result in a pleasant and
comfortable working environment for the occupants improving their productivity

while conserving the planet earth for generations to come.

Awards Received

Dr. Pradeep Samarasekera, Senior Lecturer, Department of Applied Computing,
CVCD Excellence Awards 2020/21- Most Outstanding Inventor for all the categories

Dr. Chamli Pushpakumara
Dean/ Faculty of Computing & Technology
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FACULTY OF
GRADUATE STUDIES

Vision

The vision of the Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS) is based on the purpose of
education from ancient times: Natthi vijjaa Samampannaa (Pali), 'there is no power

comparable to knowledge' or ipsa scientia potestas est [Latin] 'knowledge is power.'

Therefore, FGS envisages that its graduates will have the knowledge to wield power
in different spheres and make the world a better place, through their dedication to

research, opennesstonewideas, and mastery of analytical skills.

MISSION
(14

The mission of the Faculty of Graduate Studies is to encourage

research and dissemination of knowledge at postgraduate level.
FGS works with academic staff, students and administrative staff
in all the Boards of Study of the University of Kelaniya to promote
excellence in postgraduate education. Hence, FGS works
together with all academic departments across the University to
offer graduate programs at postgraduate levels including
Diplomas, Master's, MPhil, and PhDs to create a dynamic

intellectual climate for its students. ,,
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Programs Offered By The FGS

FGS offers a variety of programs, ranging from postgraduate diploma level to doctoral
level. Currently, there are over fifty programs offered by the FGS in association with all
Boards of Study. Some of the courses are based only on coursework, while others are
based on research, and some others are a mix of coursework and research. Master of
Business (Accounting/Finance) program is conducted online fully. The curriculum of all
postgraduate programs are aligned with the Sri Lanka Qualification Framework (SLFQ)
and approved by the University Grants Commission (UGC). These courses are usually
conducted during weekends or evenings, to enable people who are already employed to

enhance their knowledge and skills.

Postgraduate study at MPhil (Master of Philosophy) and PhD (Doctor of Philosophy)
levels are possible in all disciplines available at the University of Kelaniya. Research
students assigned to a supervisor for guidance in conducting research. The applicant and

supervisor/s work together to achieve the objectives of the research program.
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Doctoral Programs (PhD/DBA)

The Doctoral degree is the highest level of degree a student can obtain. The duration of
study fora PhD/DBA is three years, with extensions possible, on recommendations by the
supervisor/s. PhD applicants should submit a research proposal to FGS. The purpose of
this qualificationis to develop a person with a capacity to generate substantive insights in
a particular area of study through high quality original research. The qualification holder
should be able to provide evidence of generating new knowledge and disseminating them
through publications in peer reviewed indexed journals. For a doctoral degree, a
candidateis required to carry out a high-level research under the guidance of a supervisor
holding a qualification of the same SLQF level or equivalent and make a significant and
original academic contribution to creating new knowledge. The candidate should submita

thesisincorporating research findings which are assessed and accepted.

The candidate may also be required to follow some course- work as preparatory work or
for value addition to research. However, this course-work shall not contribute to the
credits accumulated towards the qualification. The research may be purely discipline-
based or multidisciplinary. The qualification holder should be able to design and carry out
independent pure and/or applied research, zsupervise and evaluate original research
carried out by others in the field of specialization. S/he should be able to demonstrate
critical awareness of current issues in the subject area and apply techniques relevant to

professional practice.
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Doctoral Programs (PhD/DBA)

The duration of study for MPhil is two years, and the program consists mainly of research.
The purpose of this qualification is to develop a person with a capacity of conducting high
quality original research without supervision. For an MPhil degree, a candidate is required
to carry out high level research under the guidance of a person holding a qualification
equal or above the relevant qualification and make a significant contribution to a
particular discipline or field. The research may be discipline-based or multidisciplinary.
The candidate should submit a thesis incorporating research findings, which is assessed
and accepted. The candidate may also be required to follow some course work as
preparatory work or for value addition to research. However, this course work shall not

contribute to the creditaccumulated towards the qualification.

The qualification holder should be able to carry out independent pure and/or applied
research contributing significantly towards the development of new knowledge,
supervise and evaluate original research carried out by others in the field of specialization
leading to qualifications of SLQF levels up to 10. S/he should also be able to make
judgments on complex issues in the area of expertise and communicate her/his ideas and
conclusions clearly to specialist and non-specialist audiences. S/he should demonstrate
self-direction and originality in tackling and solving problems and be able to plan and
implement tasks at a professional level. The qualification holder should also be able to
demonstrate critical awareness of current issues in the subject area and be able to apply

techniques relevant to professional practice.

Master's Programs - Coursework and
Coursework Plus Research Programs

Board of Study No of Programmes Offered
Commerce & Business Management 07

Humanities 14

Social Sciences 18

Sciences 13

Medical Sciences 01

Multidisciplinary Studies related to Health 06 (Not be Started)
Computing 1
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Programs offered by the
FGS at International
Education Centers

« Benhuan University, China — Master of Arts in
Buddhist Studies

«  Malaysian Buddhist Academy, Malaysia — Master
of Arts in Buddhist Studies

« Cambrian International Study Centre (CISC),
Bangladesh - MBA Program

« CQ University, Australia and University of
Kelaniya — Joint degree program - MBus
(Accounting/Finance) and MPA Program

Foreign Collaborations

« Cambrian International Study Centre (CISC),
Bangladesh

« Deakin University, Australia

« Shinshu University, Japan

« Kyoto College of Graduate Studies for
Informatics, Japan

*  Benhuan University, China

+ Malaysian Buddhist Academy




MBA Program Cambrian International Study Centre (CISC), Bangladesh

FGS provides MBA program of the University of Kelaniya in Bangladesh
through an exclusive corporate partner, Cambrian International Study
Centre (CISC) in Dakha. The CISC is a part of the BSB-Cambrian
Education Group, one of the leading private education providers in
Bangladesh. CISC and UoK agreed to conduct Master of Business
Administration (MBA) in for Bangladeshi students commencing from
Academic year 2018. Fourteen students were enrolled in 2018 and 20
students were enrolled in 2019. The program has continued during 2020
and 2021.

Deakin University, Australia and University of Kelaniya

I‘R

A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU), between Deakin University, Australia and the
University of Kelaniya was signed on 26" of April 2018. The MoU signifies the joint

aspirations of Deakin University and University of Kelaniya to develop a strategic alliance

in international education between Australia, and Sti Lanka. Deakin University hopes to
deliver offshore PhDs in collaboration with Kelaniya University in Sri Lanka and
exchange of staff, students, educational resources and publications, joint research,
teaching and learning, and collaborative projects are envisaged through the new

partnership.

CQ University, Australia and University of Kelaniya

A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU), between Central Queensland
University (CQ University), Australia and University of Kelaniya was
signed on 4th of June 2018. The MoU signifies the joint aspirations of CQ
University and University of Kelaniya to develop a strategic alliance in
international education between Australia, and Sri Lanka. The University

of Kelaniya and CQ university jointly offers an accounting degree
program. Accordingly, the University commenced a Master of
Professional Accounting (MPA) Program in Collaboration with CQ
University, Australiain 2019.

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), between the Kyoto College of
Graduate School for Informatics (KCGI), Japan and University of Kelaniya
signed on 23rd of May 2019 at the Vice-Chancellor's Office, University of
Kelaniya to offer joint degree programs. The education model is based on
the professional -style school which emphasizes practical knowledge and
aims to develop high-quality human resources who are familiar with
Japanese, English, and IT.
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The Improvement of Research Skills of
Postgraduate Students

In 2021, the FGS commenced a short-term program for the improvement of research skills

of postgraduate research students who wish to enhance their knowledge and skills in

research methodology and scientific writing.

Fifty-seven students participated in 2017, 87

students participated in 2018. 144 students participated in 2020 and 94 students

participatedin 2021.
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Information
Management System

The University of Kelaniya is moving

towards becoming the first university to

| successfully adopt green practices in Sri

Lanka. We are beginning to move towards a
'‘paperless' society. In keeping with the
concept, FGS established a fully digitalized
management system in 2016 for the
purposes of administrative activities
related to students and online access is

available through this management

| system.All online information is accessible

via smart phone or iPad. In 2021, a finance

module was developed and implemented.




Document Management System

In 2021, the FGS introduced a document management system to implement a zero-
contact document handling policy and to efficiently manage the inflow of documents
received by the FGS office. Further, as an extension to the same system, SMS and email
notifications were also integrated to empower the stakeholders when submitting

documents to the office.

Senior Prof J M D Ariyarathna
Dean/ Faculty of Graduate Studies
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COVID 19 and Regulatory Activities of FGS +
in 2021 | d

i ol

!
B AL S

The COVID- 19 pandemic control measures imposed by the health authorities led to
challenges in the normal academic and administrative activities of FGS. The impact was
also feltin the areas of conducting in-person- lectures and conducting in-person exams.
Further, contacting the students and staff when seeking additional information due to
work from home arrangements of the staff of FGS became difficult. Therefore, FGS
revisited the existing mechanisms and changed the practices hitherto adopted, in order to
maximize the use of the available existing IT infrastructure. As a result, these new
opportunities were maximized with the staff accessing exam reports, generating letters,
conducting technical discussions, updating records and conducting exams and meetings
digitally via online platforms. Finally, FGS managed to conduct lectures and exams of all

postgraduate programs on schedule in the virtual environment.
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FACULTY OF
HUMANITIES

Vision
To become a centre of excellence in the field of Humanities.

Summary of Activities

Inclusion of new departments to the faculty/ name changes in 2021

* Introducing Education as a subject to the scope of humanities subjects covered at
the Faculty through the establishment of the Education Unit.

MISSION
(14

To strengthen human resources through education and research

b

inthe fields of Language, Arts and Religion.

Aunaal Report & ecounts 2021



Actions on COVID-19 pandemic (Staff/ Students)

The Faculty of Humanities shifted to the online mode to adapt to the new realities of
the pandemic. The teaching and learning procedures of the faculty with respect to
internal, external, and post graduate students were conducted online to ensure the

smooth continuation of the academic workload without disruptions.

The Computer Assisted Learning & Web Unit of the Faculty (CAL) facilitated the
process of shifting academic staff towards online teaching and assessment
procedure while the students were provided with a convenient virtual learning

platform with access to e-learning materials that accelerated their learning .

A series of workshops were held under the AHEAD project on the use of digital tools
for teaching and assessment in virtual education to build the capacity of the

academic staff of the faculty.

All the departmental and faculty level meetings were held virtually in order to

minimize the number of physical gatherings as a preventive measure for Covid-19.

All academic and non-academic staff members were encouraged to work from
home, and only a limited number of staff members were called for duties to attend
to compulsory activities through a duty roaster while the operational guidelines for

Covid-19 prevention in the workplace were implemented and were strictly

followed.
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Examinations for the academic year 2018/2019 were conducted both physically

and virtually according to the circumstances. The first phase of exams was done
on-site, and the students were provided with hostel accommodation and
transportation facilities under the bio bubble method. The students who have
shown Covid-19 symptoms were quarantined in separate hostels with
essentials provided and arrangements were made for them to sit for the

examinations at the hostels.

During the in-person examinations, the staff members on examination duty
were provided with personal protective equipment, and transportation to

examination halls and hostel premises where examinations were carried out.

Examination halls were prepared according to the Covid prevention guidelines
and proper disinfection stations were set up, and proper sanitization procedures

were practiced at the main gates and entrances to examination halls.

With the rapid increase of the pandemic, examinations were shifted online and
were conducted through CAL. The lecturers who were assigned to each subject
had to report to the ICT center to supervise the ongoing examination on the CAL

platform.

The inauguration program and orientation program of the first-year students,
and the intensive English course provided by the Department of English

Language Teaching were held virtually.

All the lectures of fee levying certificate and diploma courses were adapted to
the online mode to ensure that the teaching and learning procedure was not

disrupted.
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Infrastructure Developments

Under the AHEAD project, the following infrastructure development activities were

carried out.

\“?,k *.:.‘t,'

The renovations of the following

departments were carried out.
* TheDepartmentof Linguistics

* TheDepartment of Hindi studies

* The Department of Pali and Buddhist
Studies

« Constructing the film and television
production studio and a washroom for
the Drama & Theatre and Image Arts
Unit.

HAunaal Report & /becounts 2021

The Construction of a two-story
building for the Department of English
Language Teaching.

The Construction of a one-story
building for the Internship and Skills

Development Unit.

The initiation of constructing an

auditorium with a 100-seating capacity.

The ongoing construction of four smart

classrooms.

The initiation of constructing an

Inclusivity Centre.

Constructing an assisted washroom in
the Faculty for students with
disabilities.

Distributing 700 new chairs to existing

lecture halls.

Research

« The highlight of research activity in
2021 is the organizing of the bth
International Conference on the
Humanities (ICH) 2020/21 which was
a two-day event held virtually on the
29th and 30th of July 2021. ICH
2020/21 gathered scholars and
panelists from many parts of the world
and Sri Lanka, to discuss and debate
how  “Retrospection for  Future
Perspectives” could aid scholars in the
humanities to share, define and
redefine knowledge, both new and old.

« The International Buddhist
Conference on Pali and Buddhist
Studies 2021 organized by the
Department of Pali and Buddhist
Studies under the theme "Erroneous
Interpretations  and Misconceptions
on Theravada Buddhism" was held on
23rd of March 2021 virtually via the
Zoom platform.
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Awards

Vice-Chancellor's Awards

The Outstanding Senior Researcher of
the Faculty of Humanities, 1°*" Place,
Senior Professor Neelakshi
Premawardhena

The Outstanding Senior Researcher of
the Faculty of Humanities, 1°" Place,
Professor C.D.S. Wettewe

The Outstanding Early Career
Researcher in the Faculty of Humanities,
1" Place, Dr.S. M. Assella

The Most Successful Directors of the
Centre/ Unit/ Committee of the
University, Senior Professor Neelakshi
Premawardhena

Activities on SDG

Conducting workshops for GCE
Advanced Level students by the
academic staff members of the faculty.

A sermon on  “Buddhism  and
Environment” on the International
Environment Day by Ven. Professor
Malwane Chandaratana Thero.

Dr Prabha Manuratne was a consultant
for the project on Gender Mapping of
Political Parties in Sri Lanka carried out
by One Text Initiative and Demo
Findland.




Highlights of the Year 2021

The launch of 'PratikXa - 03', consisting of short stories translated by the students of
Translation Studies (Honors) and Translation Methods of the Department of
Linguistics, University of Kelaniya, was held on the 26th of January 2021. This was the
16th Short Story Volume published by the students of the Department of Linguistics.

The official website of the Journal of the Faculty of Humanities was launched on the
2nd of March 2021 by the Vice-Chancellor Senior Professor Nilanthi de Silva of
University of Kelaniya. The journal can be accessed at https://journals.kin.ac.lk/jhu.
The launching ceremony of the three books "Vidésa sahitya salXgrahaya",
"Samuganimat maraXayak", and “Japan bhaXava igdnvima" written by the Academic
Staff of the Department of Modern Languages was held on the 19th of March 2021.

“Gitabhivandana”, the song appreciation program organized by SaXprasa Par[Xad of
Department of Sanskrit & Eastern Studies, was held virtually on the 28th of April 2021.
Appreciation of music was done by Professor Venerable Induragare Dhammarathana
Thero.

In celebration of the Centenary
Anniversary of University Education in
Humanities and Social Sciences in Sri
Lanka, a series of six lectures based on
the research of the academic staff
members of the Faculty was organized.

A series of three research workshops
was organized by the Research Centre in
collaboration with the Staff Development
Centre with the aim of improving the
research culture among the academic
staff members of the Faculty.

A series of five workshops was organized
by the Research Centre with the aim of
enhancing the research writing skills of
the Final Year Honors Degree
undergraduates of the faculty.

The Research Centre website was
revamped and a new website for the
Faculty Quality Assurance Cell was
launched.
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The Confucius Institute hosted the Online Spring Festival Evening, the Mid-Autumn
Festival Online Tea party, and "Chinese Bridge" Online Ba-Yu Culture Autumn Camp by
Chongging Normal University, China with the aim of providing a precious cultural
experience for Sri Lankan undergraduates.

"Chinese Bridge", the Chinese Proficiency Competition for Foreign University
undergraduates in Sri Lanka was hosted by the Confucius Institute and a virtual award
ceremony was held where the students of University of Kelaniya won the first, second,
and third places.

Dr. Sudath Senarath
Dean/ Faculty of Humanities
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FACULTY OF
MEDICINE

VISION
(14

The Faculty aspires to be an internationally recognized
institution of higher education in a culture of excellence and

integrity that helps to generate and impart knowledge in the

b
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medical sciences.

MISSION

* Educates medical students, postgraduate doctors, allied health care professionals and
the public,

* Provides patient-oriented medical care to prevent, diagnose and treat human illness,
and

« Conducts basic, applied, and clinical research

* inan environment of high-quality education that nurtures a spirit of inquiry, initiative,
equality and social responsibility.

Graduates of the Faculty will have the knowledge, the skills, and attitudes to be successful

in providing services to the community, country and beyond as individuals and opinion

leadersin aglobalized health care environment.

At the Faculty of Medicine, knowledge is advanced by an academic community with a

passion for teaching, student training and scientific enquiry. By providing an excellent

environment for learning and research, the Faculty encourages scholarship at the highest

level.
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES

clinical appointments were provided

he Faculty of Medicine

commenced academic activities

for 201 students of Batch 32
under the MBBS degree program in
February 2021 and 81 students of Batch 13
under the Speech and Hearing Sciences
(SHS) degree program in June 2021. The
26th Batch of MBBS students (2014/2015)
completed their final examinations in May
and the 9th Batch of SHS students
completed their examinationsin June.
Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Faculty continued all scheduled academic
activities including examinations without
major interruptions. The lectures were
conducted online whilst the clinical
training continued at the North Colombo

Teaching Hospital. All students attending
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hostel accommodation under strict health
guidelines. Similarly, the activities in the
faculty were conducted observing all
health precautions mandated by the
COVID committee of the Faculty and the
University.

Seven new academic staff members were
recruited to the Departments of
Paediatrics, Family Medicine, Forensic
Medicine, Biochemistry, Disability studies
and Anatomy. Two eminent and long-
standing members of the Faculty,
Professors, Prashantha Wijeysinghe
(former Dean and Chair in Gynaecology
and Obstetrics) and Prof Ashwini
Fernando (Department  of Paediatrics)

retired during the year. Professor Sachith

49

Mettananda was appointed __

the Chair Professor of
Paediatrics and nine
members of the academic
staff were promoted as |
Professors. There were 13 F‘ ~-

non-academic staff | =

_;a

appointments made during
the year.

A student affairs division

Practice Committee of the Faculty
headed by Prof Parenitharan was set

including a photography competition,
up to facilitate, monitor and coordinate the

several webinars, and a beach clean-up
extra-curricular, counselling, welfare, and

program on the Negombo beach by
career guidance activities of students.

partnering with the “Pearl Protectors”
Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, the

environmental volunteer organization.
students organized several virtual

The building of the liver transplant center
activities such as online debates,

commenced in July 2021 delayed by
discussions about ethics, and webinars,

increment weather and the COVID
some of which were organized in parallel

pandemic. A proposal for upgrading
with the 30th-anniversary celebrations.

student facilities was formulated and the
The students actively participated in

initial phase of this project was completed

several events organized by the Green

with the setting up of a unisex salon and
'{5 washing facilities. The
. second phase to upgrade the
student canteen in the boys'
= hostel, has commenced.
Several other infrastructure
- development projects
including the installation  of
an incinerator, toilets for

visitors, renovation of the
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record room and the stores, refurbishment
of the Ethical Review Committee office,
renovation of the Al4 building for the
Department of Public Health, the erection
of the boundary wall at the rear side of the
B4 building and water-proofing of the
canteenfloor areongoing.

The Faculty continued to have a
successful year in the sphere of research
with five of its members namely
Professors Nilanthi De Silva, Janaka De
Silva, Anuradhani Kasturirathna, H.A. De
Silva and Sachith Mettananda being listed
among the top 2% of scientists in the world
by Elsevier BV and Standford University.
Nineteen academics received the
President's Awards for Scientific

Publications and more than tenresearch
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awards were obtained by academics at
scientific conferences throughout the year.
There were 172 research articles published
in peer-reviewed journals and 54 abstracts

published as conference proceedings

| during the year. For the first time, the

Faculty awarded research grants to staff
members. Realizing the significance and
implications of COVID-related research,
nine research grants were awarded using
generated funds from the clinical trials

unit, amounting to approximately 3.8

million LKR.

The Faculty of Medicine celebrated its'
30th anniversary in 2021 with a series of
successful events that commemorated
international days including the World
Health day, Thalassaemia Day, Youth Day,
Liver Day, No Tobacco day, International
Day against lllicit Drug Trafficking and
Drug Abuse, Fertility and Contraception
day, Children's day and Diabetes day were
celebrated by conducting webinars,

poster campaigns short film

51

competitions and several other activities
aimed at delivering health messages and
creating awareness among the public. The
key event was the academic sessions and
international research symposia held on
29th and 30th October 2021, at the Main
Auditorium of the Faculty of Medicine in
Ragama. The sessions were organized in a
hybrid manner to cater to an international
audience and participants from USA, UK,
Netherlands, Belgium, Singapore.
Australia, New Zealand, Indonesia, India
and Sri Lanka participatedin the event. The
inaugural Carlo Fonseka Memorial Lecture
2021 was delivered by Prof. Janaka de
Silva. Prof. Carlo Fonseka Memorial Inter-
Batch Debate Competition was organize -

parallel to the 30th - anniversary

s
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celebrations of the Faculty of Medicine,
University of Kelaniya. A free paper session
was organized to promote research among
students and 27 papers were presented by
the undergraduate students of several

faculties.

Senior Professor J. Hewavisenthi
Dean/ Faculty of Medicine
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FACULTY OF
SCIENCE

MISSION
(414

The mission of the Faculty of Science of the University of
Kelaniya is to produce highly motivated graduates and
postgraduates capable of making a significant contribution to
national development and the wellbeing of mankind and of
conducting research and providing advisory and consultancy
services in various scientific disciplines to foster a better
understanding of the environment for the sustainable use and

conservation of natural resources. , ,
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INTRODUCTION OF THE FACULTY

he Faculty of Science, established in 1967, is one of the seven faculties of the
University of Kelaniya. At present, the Faculty of Science consists of 8 academic
departments namely the Departments of Chemistry, Industrial Management,
Mathematics, Microbiology, Physics and Electronics, Plant and Molecular Biology,
Statistics & Computer Science, and Zoology and Environmental Management, and two
units, namely the Software Engineering Teaching Unit and the Sports & Exercise Science
Unit.
The Faculty of Science offered 3 Bachelor of Science Degree Programs of 3-year duration
and 15 Bachelor of Science Honours Degree Programs of 4-year duration. From the
Academic Year 2020/2021, the Faculty of Science successfully increased the number of
Honors Degree Programs to 18 by introducing the following Honors Degree Programs,
which ledtoanincreaseinthe studentintake by 190.
« Bachelorof Science Honors in Applied Chemistry,
« Bachelorof Science Honors in Electronics and Computer Science, and
« Bachelor of Science Honors in Sports Science
Further, the Faculty of Science has increased the studentintake by 212 from the Academic
Year 2019/2020 for all its Degree Programmes, which led to an increase in the annual

student intake to 957. Hence the student intake from the Academic Year 2020/2021 has
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beenincreasedupto1147.

The annual student intake for the Biological Sciences and Physical Sciences are 221 and
362 respectively from the Academic Year 2019/2020. The Faculty also admitted 119
students to the BSc Honors Degree Program in Management and Information Technology,
109 students to the BScin Environmental Conservation and Management, 59 students for
the BSc Honors in Software Engineering, and 76 students for BSc in Physics and
Electronics Degree Programs through separate windows. Furthermore, the Physical
Sciences and Biological Sciences students are offered a range of auxiliary course units
from the Faculties of Commerce & Management Studies, Humanities, and Social
Sciences. At present, the Faculty of Science conducts 12 MSc Degree Programmes and 3
Postgraduate Diploma Programmes. Currently, the Faculty serves 2358 undergraduates,
138 academic staff, one academic support staff and 94 non-academic staff members. The
construction of the new lecture theatre complexisin progress, and it will further facilitate
student-centred learning activities in the Faculty of Science.

The Faculty provides services to students, the academic community and the public
through the Repair and Instrumentation Unit, National Glass Blowing Centre, The
Regional Centre for Asian Ant Research, Solar Solutions Centre, Central Equipment
Laboratory, Floriculture Research Center, Research and Consultation Centre for Coconut
oil, University-Industry Community Interaction Cell (Environment and Development

Consultants (EDCON), and the Research and Services Centre.

“PACULTY DF SCTE
|
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Grants The International Conference on Applied and Pure Sciences — ICAPS 2021 of the

Faculty of Science was held as a hybrid event on 29 October 2021 under the theme of
The Faculty of Science secured the following external grants amounting to LKR 360

millioninyears 2019 and 2020 under the World Bank-funded AHEAD operations, and

Green Technology towards a knowledge-based economy.

The Covid-19 pandemic prevented students from attending the Faculty of Science &\

-----

therelated work commencedinthe year 2021, and are being continued:

1. ELTA—-ELSE Faculty proposal—LKR 100 million

physically for academic activities. However, facing these challenges and following the

health guidelines, academic activities were carried out online, and the Faculty managed

Z =°ve/ EERIIRE 11ed-Besaatch o LKRI:O million to complete all the End-Semester examinations relevant to the Academic Year

o} ELTA—ELSE Department-wise proposals

2018/2019 physically by November 2021. Examinations for the Academic Year

& S aTm R N d U S R S E U |01 2019/2020 have already been commenced and academic activities for the final year

b. Department of Plant and Molecular Biology —LKR 15 million st Vi1 b egorm p il by April 2028

- (e meg POt student enrologuziaal EVE CP e The Faculty is also planning to introduce the BSc in Data Science & Analytics Degree

. Depargment of Indu geiian 2SRy |-G million program, the 3 plus 1 BSc Honors Degree program, BSc in Software Engineering

= Department of Ch QS EEEeEl< AN (External) Degree program, Diploma Program in Astronomy, Computer Science, and

G Department of Mathematics - LKR 20 million friformagiin T EEE, hordl

d: Departments of Math ol G5 RN SEHO T S Due to staff and student dedication and hard work, the Faculty of Science of the

Sfgtisticss. ComputciEees -0 milligy University of Kelaniya has now become a Centre of Excellence in Tertiary Education in

% Research Innovation and Commercialization (RIC) Sri Lanka. The Faculty of Science has created a conducive environment to promote

g B of GhemistiigEK R Qi ol freedom of thought, innovation and creativity. The graduates who are endowed to the

2 Department of flysics and Electgggics s LIy nation from the Faculty of Science will undoubtedly contribute significantly to the
Patents progress and wellbeing of mankind globally.

With this capacity and in line with the mission, the Faculty of Science has been

The Faculty of Sci [ he followi inth 2021:
Sharutyiiagieice redelyed tNNg owing pateiggieyear 20 rendering its outstanding services to prepare and produce scholars and professionals

- 1. A h fi ing the shelf lif idati ility of bak
T MESERGE 0 i proving tTeEERgtite aggoxigativesiability.of DEEE BE0d U with capabilities, skills, and attitudes to drive the economy, support civil society and

using coconut oil cake (Poonac) extract - Number 19795

5 B

= !?j . A method of improving the shelf life and oxidative stability of bakery products

government, and make essential decisions in the interest of mankind.

ing Psidi i .Leaf -N 197 . : :
using Psidium Guineense Sw. Leaf extract - Number 1979 Senior Professor S R D Kalingamudali

el 3. SL P itled “Auto Removing Regulator for Liquefied Petrol .
— 3 SL Patent titled “Auto Removing Regulator for Liquefied Petroleum Gas Dear,/ Fatillty OFScisrce
Cylinders and Electricity CUTOFF System at Gas Leakages” has been published in
page no 46 of Gazette no. 2212 of the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of

SriLankaon 2021.01.22 - Application No: 20365

-
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FACULTY OF
SOCIAL SCIENCE VISION

To maintain excellence by nurturing independent thought, critical analysis, a sense of
social responsibility, respect for cultural diversity and ethical values through multi-
disciplinary and inter-disciplinary collaboration with a commitment to the development of

SriLankain particular, and South Asiain general.

MISSION
€6

To advance and promote the socio-economic, political, cultural
and academic development of Sri Lankan society through

teaching, research, innovation and intellectual leadership.

b

y 2021 60



Course and Action in response to the COVID-19 pandemic (Staff/ Students)

By 2021, the academic staff of the Faculty of Social Sciences (FSS), were well acclimated
to conducting lectures online and the lectures of all levels of the Bachelor of Arts Degree

Programs, MA/MSSc and Diploma Programs were carried out successfully.

The Covid-19 Response Committee of the Faculty along with a team of able and
enthusiastic lecturers worked towards conducting BA examinations in the FSS with
students being physically present at the University premises amidst Covid-19 pandemic
conditions. Separate exam halls were allocated for students to sit for the exams. The four
categories of exam halls thus allocated were A-hostellers; B-non hostellers; C-isolated
candidates; D-differently abled candidates. The FSS managed to complete a larger part of
the exam without facing drastic medical issues and the Chief Medical Officer of the
University as well as the MoH, Kelaniya who visited Examination Halls approved the exam

plan.

However, since health authorities in the country took decisions to tighten the regulations
on social gatherings and since the country was facing another wave of Covid-19, the FSS
decided to hold the rest of the exams online. Those exams were also successfully
completed, and a separate Computer Centre was converted into a central examination
center for online examinations. A set of young lecturers was trained to handle the
examination activities and the students were given the opportunity to face mock

examinations to make them familiar with this new process.

A re-sit exam was also held in December for those who could not sit for the exams due to

Covid-19 conditions.

MA/MSSc examinations were held successfully. The candidates were physically present.
They were divided into three categories as A-fully vaccinated, B-partially vaccinated and

C-those who were not vaccinated.

Apart from the lectures and examinations, each department of the Faculty conducted

various academic and cultural activities using the zoom platform.

Faculty -level research/ awards/ activities on SDGs

The Department of Library and Information Sciences held its Annual International
Research Conference (4th International Conference on Library and Information
Management - ICLIM) in collaboration with the Research Centre for Social Sciences using
the virtual space. Similarly, the Department of Geography held a virtual Internal
Conference in collaboration with the assistance of two universities in India and with the

Research Centre for Social Sciences.

The Research Centre for Social Sciences held a Research Forum commemorating
Women's Day, where researchers of the Faculty who were engaged in gender studies in

various disciplines of Social Sciences shared their research experiences.

The FSS continued the research project titled 'The Impact of Social Protection on
Sustainable Development Goals in Sri Lanka: an Empirical Analysis' under an AHEAD

(Accelerating Higher Education Expansion and Development) Grant.

The Research Centre for Social Sciences published the first volume of the research

journal, 'Samajeeya Vidya'in Sinhala medium.

Several members of the FSS won Vice-Chancellor's Awards for their outstanding

contributionto researchin Social Sciences. They are as follows:

*  Professor M.G. Kularathna—0Qutstanding Senior Researcher

* Dr.H.R.S. Sulochani—QOutstanding Early Career Researcher

« DrNamaliSuraweera - Outstanding Senior Researcher

« Dr.Priyanwada Wanigasooriya - Outstanding Senior Researcher

Further a team consisting of Professor M.M. Gunatilake, Dr. Roshini Jayaweera, Dr. N.D.P.
Padmakanthi, Dr. J.D.PC.D. Dhramadasa and Ms. M.Y.N. Mendis received the award for

the recipients of the highest amount of external research grants.
Highlights of the year, 2021

The FSS has been given the opportunity by the UGC to establish a Department of
Information and Communication Technology (DICT) for Bachelor of Arts undergraduates
and the FSS has initiated planning and training/recruiting staff for this new department.

The FSS has created a Quality Assurance Cell for the Faculty and has also established a
Grievances Committee and a Finance Committee. A Building and Maintenance
Committee was also established for monitoring the works, constructions and

maintenance activities pertaining to the physical infra-structure development of the FSS.

The major community service undertaken by the FSS was to raise funds for the
Kiribathgoda Base Hospital to be used in its Covid-19 treatment activities. An amount

exceeding eight hundred thousand rupees was collected.

Professor M M Gunathilake

Dean/ Faculty of Social Sciences



n 2020, the UoK Library pioneered the

development of digital information

resources over a long period of time. In
2021, it was particularly explored how
digital services could add more value than
physical collections, not only by enabling
remote access but also by enhancing
access with expert knowledge of searching,
synthesizing, and using information
competently. Overall, the response to the
pandemic has vastly accelerated this
"digital shift." During the COVID-19
pandemic, one of the university's primary
goals was to provide the UoK Library with
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THE LIBRARY

the digital infrastructure needed to enable
students and scholars to study and work
from home. The library continued to
operate remotely via the Shibboleth
gateway to provide digital resources and
digital library services such as widening the
access to research and publications in
Research Repository, Past Exam Paper
Repository, Electronic Reading Room etc.
Other highlights include LibChat Virtual
Assistance Service, Library and research
skills workshops, and Online Document
Delivery Service.

Online inquiries received by the library

were more than 2,451 via email, website,
and LibChat, and 16,563 visits took place
24/7 without interruption. Librarians
worked from home, and all staff members
were initially given intense training on how
to address the informational requirements
of students and staff remotely. It was
observed that LibChat became more
popular as the lockdown continued, with a
significantincrease over the previous yeatr.
Since 2020, in response to the national
lockdown and the global COVID-19
pandemic, the UoK Library has been
primarily developed as a virtual library
service, purchasing more than 320 e-books
for recommended readings in 2021,
bringing the library's total e
- book collection to
100,914. The Electronic
Reading Room of the
library was strengthened
by uploading
recommended information
resources in parallel with
the undergraduate lectures
delivered at different
faculties. Informational
and instructional support
for teaching programs, Z&
support for teaching and *

learning with e-versions of jie
information sources, open
access books, and
multiple-licensed
textbooks whenever W%
possible, providing access "':;.
to additional limited B
information and knowledge
resources were made
available at this point to
enhance the teaching and =3
learning function of the
university by uploading
more than 420
recommended readings,
1,926 past question
papers, 2,287 research
publications and supplying
172 documents via online
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document delivery service during the year
2021. The library has partnered with the
National Digital Library of India to provide
UOK students and staff access to over 40
million items of lecture videos in different
subject disciplines, information sources,
and other educational materials. The
library has adapted its services in line with
national lockdown guidelines and
institutional requirements. In addition, a
digital wallboard was set up in the library
with the assistance of the British Council of
Sri Lanka, enabling readers to access the
Council's digital collection via QR codes.

Copyright was a significant challenge for
the UoK community, especially during the




pandemic. The UoK Library helped raise
awareness about copyright issues and the
publishing process. The webinars helped
clarify the legal and ethical aspects of
documents that can be uploaded to CAL
and which formats to be used. Librarians
also actively participated in sharing
experiences with the international
community, such as the Clarivate South
Asia's South Asian Librarians Forum 2021
in communicating the role of librarians in
promoting academic integrity and overall
corporate profile. They also participated in

many scholarly conferences, partnering
with the 4th International Conference on
Library and Information Management
(ICLIM). Various awareness campaigns
were conducted on topics such as
publication process, predatory journals,
hijacked journals, journal indexing, Impact
factor etc to create an integrity and
sustainable scholarly ecosystem.

During the year 2021, the library's primary
focus was to continue to support final year
students who sit for exams and complete
dissertations, as well as postgraduate
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students who research throughout the
year. This support was aimed not only at
troubleshooting but also at presenting
support for dissertation and thesis
preparation. In 2021, three interactive
digital media salons were established in
the library to facilitate group teaching and
learning work with national and
international collaborations. These digital
salons also allow students, faculty, and
staff to build and exhibit artistic or
research-based projects that heavily rely
on digital formats. When the university was

closed, the library was open to students
during the pandemic due to the high
demand for essential study materials that
were not available in digital formats but
were necessary for their research work.
Opening to membership was made under
the strict health guidelines imposed by the
COVID-19 Responses Committee of the
university.

When the lockdown began, the library
quickly transformed face-to-face
workshops into online synchronized
webinars. Accordingly, the UoK Library

offered online workshops and drop-ins to
students and staff to assist with distance
learning and teaching. Many training programs
on information competency development were
started and implemented. All students could
participate in more than 60 webinars in online
dropouts to help with research and referrals with
librarians via Zoom. New and continuing
students could join the “Library Orientation”
sessions through Zoom for an online library tour
and build their skills by participating in online
workshops on information literacy. Recordings
from the Library webinars were also available on
the library website, which enabled many other
students who were unable to attend these
sessions to benefit from them.

The UoK Library funded university-wide access
to Urkund: Ouriginal. It examined the similarity of
student papers, theses/dissertations, research
papers, and assignments to other sources in
order to detect plagiarism. It also took the
initiative to explore the originality of student
activities by integrating Urkund into the LMS of
the Faculty of Science and the Faculty of
Management and Finance. In 2021, these
faculties tested this system for different
courses, and it is expected to be extended the
facility to all faculties by 2022. In 2021, 11,976
papers were submitted to Urkund and
conducted similarity analysis to detect possible
plagiarized content.

National Library and Documentation Services
Board, the ISN Agency of Sri Lanka, has
authorized the UOK library to act as a facilitator
to provide ISBN and ISSN to individuals, centers,
and departments of the university that require
these. This facility has allowed the UoK Library
to serve both the commercial and self-publishing

individuals/departments in the university as a
closer destination for providing international
standard numbers for their literary and scholarly
works. This section also assisted the required
parties for daily inquiries regarding publishing,
copyright, legal deposits, barcoding, etc. A total
of 26 ISBNs and 11 ISSNs were provided during
the year under review.

In order to achieve the goal of the UK's vision, the
UoK Library serves to nurture a culture that
actively promotes innovation and creativity. This
is evidenced by the conceptual leadership role
played by the library in developing a set of new
policies and service provisions implemented
throughout the institution. An example of the
policies developed during 2021 is the OER Policy.
The Library's Interactive Media Unit started
developing the university's collection of
audiobooks, and by the end of 2021, it comprises
of 19 full audiobooks. The main objective of this
project was to facilitate library use with a remote
library service by providing access to a collection
of audiobooks thatare needed on time during the
COVID 19 pandemic and for the readers with
disabilities who rely on voice-only media. The
library also developed an easy-access system
for its Braille Collection, focusing on visually
impaired undergraduates, intending to provide
reading support so that students could locate
the required books in the Braille Collection
anywhere and reserve them before arriving at
the library.

Dr CC Jayasundara
Librarian
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Introduction to the CDCE

The CDCE operates under circular provisions laid down
by the UGC circular no. 932 and the by-laws of the
University. Accordingly, it functions under a Director who

reports directly to the Vice-Chancellor. There are three
Deputy Directors manning the three divisions of,
Registrations and Examinations, Learning Resources
and Training. The academic and administrative decisions
are taken by the Boards of Study and the Management
Committee of the CDCE with the approval of the Senate

and the Council of the university as applicable.

Our Mission

Our missionis to achieve excellence in providing learners
with opportunities to develop knowledge, attitudes, and

skills to serve the world with respect for the dignity of life.
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~ Online Learning

In 2021, the CDCE developed significantly by teaching via the Learning
Management System (LMS) and by modifying Zoom lectures and seminars
videos on LMS pages as solution for the COVID -19 pandemic situation.
Nevertheless, the CDCE has decided to use this method continuously since it

provides the best progress for our center.

~ E-Library

The CDCE has decided to build a new E-library for the center to provide and
efficient service to the students to fulfill the current requirements. Students from
across the country are registered at CDCE and they are unable to visit the CDCE
frequently for academic purposes. By using the E-Library they can read

recommended readings online.

~ Degrees Awarded by the CDCE \

The CDCE has a 20-year history and the Bachelor of Arts (General) Degree
program has been offered through CDCE from the beginning. It is also the most
in-demand external degree program (EDP) at the CDCE. A new syllabus for the
Bachelor of Arts degree was introduced by the UGC in 2021.

Currently, external degree programs are offered by four faculties:

Faculties of Humanities and Social Sciences
Bachelor of Arts - BA (External) — 3 years

Faculty of Science
Bachelor of Science - BSc (External) —3years

Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies
Bachelor of Commerce - BCom (External) —4 years
Bachelor of Business Management - BBMgt (external)] -3 years

All the external degree programs offered by the CDCE, except the BCom degree,

are 3-years general degree programs (90 Credits) and these degrees comply with
SLQF standards (90 credits).

Ven. Dr. Dodamkumbure Dhammadassi Thero

Director/ Centre for Distance & Continuing Education
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STUDENTS OF THE
UNIVERSITY - 2021

Total Students

112,350
I
Internal External Posteraduat
Undergraduates Undergraduates 0s grggga es
13,673 95,692 2
STUDENTS IN UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE
Local Students Local Students
13,622 2,970 PROGRAMS
The internal undergraduate student population is distributed among 20 different
programs of study in six faculties. The number of female students is higher than the
Foreign students Foreign students number of male students in each year of study in all faculties except the Faculty of
51 15 Computing & Technology. Table 6-2illustrates the data descriptively.

Figure 6 - 1: Students of the University

STUDENTS IN UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT - EXTERNAL
PROGRAMS UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE PROGRAMS

The University of Kelaniya offers a wide range of bachelor's degree programs for full-

time students. The University also has a Center for Distance & Continuing Education Teloie & = Iz Toiel RURnoEY @i STUelEnls i SXIamel ClEgioe [ROgReIS (917 SReETent O et/
which offers six programs of study for part-time students reading for external Total Number of Registered Students
degrees. Program of Study = = l E—
ale emale ota
With the enrollment of 3,959 students for undergraduate degree programs for the
2019/ 20 academic year, the total number of students for internal undergraduate Bachelor of Arts (General) 16 184 67232 83416
degree programs has increased to 13,673 students. The highest number of Bachelor of Business Management (General) 3553 8174 11727
undergraduates belong to the Faculty of Commerce & Management Studies which Bachelor of Commerce (Special) 112 224 336
represents 23% of the total internal undergraduate population. The Faculty of Bachelor of Science (General) 76 104 180
Computing & Technology has the lowest number of students (7%). The highest it o S o Qe 10 ) 1
number of students registered for external degree programs is for the Bachelor of : : -
. _ Bachelor of Science in Physiotherapy 14 8 22
Arts (General) degree program, which is 83,416 in total (Table 6-1).
Grand Total 19 949 75 743 95 692

4 . . . . .
Information on internal undergraduate students is provisional
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Table 6 -2 : Total student enrollment of the year 2021 — Local internal undergraduates

Faculty NBate of {Hie Prosain 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total (5rrand
M F M F M F M F M F M F M F otal
Bcom - - - - P29 64 131 65 132 8% 1216 285 607 892
FCMS BBMgt Hons - - - - I 2N807 189 298 166 330 198 441 725 1396 2121
BBMgt Hons (Financial - - - - - - 14445 35 1) P88 22 WSS 303 176
Computer Science - - - - 378 2 40 9 40 8 46 17 163 46 209
FCT Engineering Technology - - - - 74 14 78 7 71 15 ST 310 53 363
BA Hons Teaching English as a Second Language - - - - 46 30 S6p4 1 19 44 31 @381 1) 209 111 320
BA Hons in Film & Television Studies - - - - ISNAN33 16 34 14x 233 LTRRAS 62 148 210
Humanities - - : = 93 284 11124558 109 475 107 540 421 1857 2278
i BA Hons Teaching English as a Second - - - - 155 9210 L2 2>~ 83 2 36 6 136 142
BA Hons in Translation Studies - = = = 2 im02 224 W 122 1 27 Ty o 102
MBBS 56 104 70 90 68 104 64 107 58 107 81 139 397 651 1048
Y Speech & Hearing Sciences - - - - 10 37 1 43 ) e N | 379 19 200 219
Biological Science - E = = 14 40 56 113 54 125 42 16l 166 439 605
Environmental Conservation Management - - - - 1 7 11 39 15 40 1948 46 159 205
L ¥ Management & Information Technology - - 2 5 39 40 63 33 65 183 58 54 RISEL6Y 385
Physical Science - - = = SR 0 1824786 138 144 124 16l 409 580 889 :
Physical Science - ICT (Physics & Electronics) = - = = - - o8 N 29 pgald S | T 99 25350 151 \
Software Engineering = = - - 41 11 3 GREnl2 86, ¥ 12 45 11 158 46 204 1 . )
Peace & Conflict Resolution - - - - 85423 & 6 28 Aot T 24 108 132 i
St i 8 Social Science - - = = 147 657 100 632 75 634 78 668 380 2591 2971
Total 56 104 70 90 824 1851 1083 2294 1010 2288 1120 2829 4164 9458 13622 ¥
M - Male F - Female
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STUDENTS IN POSTGRADUATE PROGRAMS

The Faculty of Graduate Studies has enrolled 1,279 studentsin 2021 for 122 postgraduate
programs out of which 3 are foreign students who enrolled for 3 programs. Out of the total
student enrollment in postgraduate programs, most are enrolled for master's degree
programs and most of the students follow the programs in which the Board of Study

belongs to the Faculty of Science.

Table 6 - 3: Students in postgraduate programs

New Entrants

Student Enrolment

BoS Program of Study M v Total v v Total
MASTER'S DEGREE
Master of Commerce 20 14 34 29 29 58
= Master of Business (Accounting/Finance) 65 64 129 130 167 297
% Master of Business Studies 29 38 67 29 38 67
g Master of Business Administration 50 60 110 206 202 408
% Master of Business Management in Marketing 22 13 35 5229 81
g Master of Human Resources Management 25 26 31 66 78 144
5 MPHIL STUDIES
g Mphil 1 2 3 1 4 5
£ DOCTORAL STUDIES
© Doctor of Business Administration 22 7 29 62 16 78
PhD 1 0 1 9 4 13
Total 235 224 459 584 567 1151
MASTER'S DEGREE
Msc in Information Technology in Education 13 22 35 13 22 35
i MPHIL STUDIES
é Mphil 0 1 1 3 2 5
S DOCTORAL STUDIES
PhD 0 0 0 1 2 3
Total 13 23 36 17 26 43
MASTER'S DEGREE
MA in Buddhist Studies (1 Year) - Sinhala 8 0 8 22 4 26
MA in Buddhist Studies (1 Year) - English 1 0 1 5 0 5
MA in Buddhist Studies (2 Years) - Sinhala 6 3 9 38 15 53
2 MA in Buddhist Studies (2 Years) - English 4 2 6 19 7 26
% MA in Sinhala (2 Years) 0 0 0 48 116 164
E MA in Linguistics - Sinhala (1 Years) 1 6 7 10 9 19
MA in Linguistics - English (1 Years) 2 14 16 2 14 16
MA in Linguistics - Sinhala (2 Years) 5 14 19 5 14 19
MA in Linguistics - English (2 Years) 27 140 167 48 267 315
MA in Christian Studies (1 Year) 4 20 24 16 39 55
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New Entrants

Student Enrolment

BoS Program of Study M = Total v = Total
MA in Drama & Theater (1 Year) 0 0 0 20 49 69
MA in Music (2 Years) 0 0 0 18 35 53
" MA in Dance (2 Years) 0 0 0 34 49 83
£ MPHIL STUDIES
E Mphil 1 5 6 11 15 26
DOCTORAL STUDIES
PhD 5 7 12 17 16 33
Total 64 211 275 313 649 962
MASTER'S DEGREE
. Master of Public Health 8 28 36 8 28 36
§ MPHIL STUDIES
% Mphil 0 0 0 2 6 8
g DOCTORAL STUDIES
PhD 0 0 0 5 4 9
Total 8 28 36 15 38 53
MASTER'S DEGREE
Msc in Analytical Chemistry 16 27 43 16 27 43
Msc in Biochemistry and Biotechnology 5 30 35 5 30 35
Msc in Industrial & Environmental Chemistry 36 65 101 59 117 176
Msc in Crop Protection & Plant Biotechnology 1 1 2 1 1 2
(1 year)
Msc in Crop Protection & Plant Biotechnology 6 21 27 10 47 57
(2 year)
Msc in Aquaculture & Fisheries Management 3 8 11 7 15 22
51 Msc in Environmental Management (1 year) 8 17 25 8 17 25
g Msc in Environmental Management (2 year) 16 32 48 16 32 48
Msc in Data Analytics (1 year) 23 7 30 23 7 30
Master of Information Technology 52 54 106 52 54 106
MPHIL STUDIES
Mphil I 10 11 8 15 23
DOCTORAL STUDIES
PhD 3 1 4 4 9 13
Total 170 273 443 209 371 580
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FOREIGN STUDENTS
FOREIGN STUDENTS IN UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE

PROGRAMS
New Entrants Student Enrolment 10 students have newly enrolled under foreign entry to the internal undergraduate degree
BoS Program of Study M F_ Total M F_ Total programs conducted by the Faculty of Medicine in the year 2021 (2019/20 academic
year). Accordingly, the total foreign enrollment to the internal undergraduate degree
MASTER'S DEGREE

programs is updated as 51 students. The table 6-4 below shows the number of

MSSc in Sociology (Sinhala Medium) 0 0 0 2 5 7 undergraduates under foreign entry indicating their country, degree program and
MSSc in Sociology (English Medium) 0 0 0 2 4 6 respective academic year. The number of male undergraduates is higher than female
MSSc in Archeology 0 0 0 0 4 4 undergraduates under the foreign entry category. Moreover, the highest number of
MSSc in Economics (Sinhala Medium) 0 0 0 ) ) 5 fore|.gr-1 students have been registered to the MBBS program conducted by the Faculty of
: Medicine.
MSSc in Geography 0 0 0 5 6 11
MSSc in History 0 0 0 0 6 6 Table 6 - 4 : Undergraduate student enrollment under foreign category
S MSSc in Archeology 0 0 0 20 38 58 —
-2 Facult P f Yo f C t Yo f tudent Enrolment
3 MSSc in Economics (Sinhala Medium) 0 0 0 0 0 0 acwity rogram o ear o ountry ear o
z study study Intake M F Total
-g MSSc in Geography 0 0 0 2 21 23 -
S Bangladeshi 6 - 6
MSSc in History 0 0 0 0 2 2 D —
Cambodia 1 - 1
MPHIL STUDIES FHU Humanities 2 China 2016/17 1 - 1
Mphil 4 8 12 1313 26 Myanmar 7 7
DOCTORAL STUDIES Vietnam 2 - 2
PhD 2 3 5 13 12 25 Bhutan 2 4 6
Total 6 11 17 58 112 170 1 Canada 1019/20 - 1 1
e MPHIL STUDIES Sri Lanka 2 1! 3
£ . Canada 1 - 1
29 Mphil 3 2 5 3 2 5 2 SL—k 2018/19 " |
g = 1 Lanka -
22 DOCTORAL STUDIES
L L FMED Medicine Bhutan _ 3 3
= PhD in Multi-Disciplinary Studies 2 2 4 3 2 5 3 S 2017/18
S USA : 1 1
Total o eyl 9 G 10
i Bhutan 2016/17 J 5 5
MPHIL STUDIES Bhutan 2015/16 S 5
- a Mphil 0 1 1 0 1 1 Australia ] B 1
= = S s £
2 g DOCTORAL STUDIES 5 Bhutan 2014/15 —— 6
%) —
= PhD in Multi-Disciplinary Studies P 0 i "0 0 UAE - 1 1
Total i 1 o ™ 1 Grand Total 3219 51
|
™ Grand Total S OIEENEES 1276 1202 1768 2970 |
M - Male F - Female ' M - Male I g Female » I
- -
—— ¥ p ~ » - » \ -
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FOREIGN STUDENTS IN UNDERGRADUATE
DEGREE PROGRAMS

3 foreign students have enrolled for the 3 programs in which the Board of Study
belongs to Commerce & Management Studies and Humanities. Thus, the total
foreign enrollment in postgraduate studies of the University of Kelaniya as at the
December 31, 2021, is 15 students. Table 6-5 describes the corresponding
postgraduate program of study, number of foreign students and their respective
country origin.

Table 6 - 5 : Postgraduate student enrollment under foreign category

New Entrants (2019) Student Enrolment
M F Total M F Total

BoS Program of Study Country

Master's Programs

Master of Business studies Namibia 1 0 1 1 0 1

Master of Human Resource

China 1 0 1 1 0 1
Management

Commerce
& Business
Management

Master's Programs

Cambodia 0 0 0 3 0 3
China 0 1 0 0 1 1
" MA in Buddhist Studies Myanmar 0 0 0 1 0 1
:f_; (2 Years)-English Nepal 0 0 0 | 0 |
<
E Vietnam 0 0 0 0 4 4
= MA in Linguistics — English China 0 1 1 0 1 1
(2 Years) Iraq 0 0 0 0 1 1
Mphil Programs
Linguistics China 0 0 0 0 1 1
Grand Total 2 2 4 7 8 15
M - Male F - Female
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EXAMINATION DATA

The University of Kelaniya holds examinations under three type of programs each
year: internal undergraduate degree programs, external undergraduate degree
programs and postgraduate programs. Out of the exams held during the year 2021,
2,603 students have passed out from internal undergraduate degree programs and
5,596 students have passed out from external undergraduate degree programs.
1,408 students have passed out from postgraduate programs.

UNDERGRADUATE OUTPUT - INTERNAL DEGREE
PROGRAMS 2021

Out of the total graduates passed out in 2021, 888 (33%) graduates belong to the
Faculty of Social Sciences which represents the highest number of graduates from
all the faculties. And the least number is from the Faculty of Computing &
Technology which is 110 (4%). Moreover, 264 (10%) of students have obtained first
class awards, 1,501 (56%) have obtained second class upper divisions, 425 (16%)
have obtained second class lower divisions and 465 (18%) have obtained general
passes. Table 7-2 indicates the graduate output of the internal undergraduate
degree programs as of December 31, 2021.

UNDERGRADUATE OUTPUT - EXTERNAL DEGREE
PROGRAMS

The undergraduate output of the external degree programs in 2021 was 5,596 where
the highest output was from the BA (General) degree program.

Table 7 - 1: Undergraduate oufput - External degree programs

Number of Graduates

AR Em Oy Male Female Total
Bachelor of Arts (General) 509 4541 5050
Bachelor of Business Management (General) 459 85 544
Bachelor of Science (General) 2 2
Grand Total 0 4628 5596
HAunaal Report & /becounts 2021
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Table 7 - 2 : Undergraduate output - Internal degree programs
First Class Second Upper Second Lower Pass Total Faculty
Faculty Program of Study Total
M F M F M F M F M F o
BBMgt (Special) Degree in Accountancy 5 11 12 37 13 12 9 4 9264
BBMgt (Special) Degree in Banking - - 2 12 7 4 - 1 9y - L)
BBMgt (Special) Degree in Finance 7 14 8 19 4 - - - 195383
BBMgt (Special) Degree in Human Resources Management 1 9 4 23 3 9 3 2 11 43
BBMgt (Special) Degree in insurance - - 1 2 3 3 2 1 6 6
FCMS 481
BBMgt (Special) Degree in Marketing - 7 12 24 10 10 6 1 28 42
Bcom (Special) Degree 1 7 3 28 9 23 16 10 29 68
Bcom (Special) Degree in Business Technology 2 - 2 8 2 5 4 - 10 13
Bcom (Special) Degree in Entrepreneurship - 1 - 2 1 3 1 ¥ 2 8
Bcom (Special) Degree in Financial Management - 5 7 11 = 10 - 1 okl 21
BET Honors Degree - 3 13 11 7 5 17 8 YL, )
FCT 110
BICT Honors Degree 1 2 3 5 6 8 19 3 297590
BA - 2 9 49 6 15 34 14 49 80
FHU 548
BA (Honors) 9 60 39 241 13 28 20 9 81 338
MBBS - 4 9 35 17 37 28 38 54 114
FMED 209
Bsc in Speech & Hearing Sciences - 8 - 10 1 11 4 7 5 36
Bsc Biological Science - 1 7 26 3 13 11 14 21 54
Bsc Environmental Conservation and Management - 4 2 10 4 12 2 1 SN 527
Bsc Management and Information Technology - 1 - 1 4 - 3 4 7 6
Bsc Physical Science - 1 3 11 10 23 48 20 Gl 53
Bsc Physics & Electronics - - - - 2 - 8 5 10 5
FSC 419
Bsc Honors Biological Science 2 15 5 28 2 6 - I 9 50
Bsc Honors Environmental Conservation and Management - 3 - 5 - - - - - 8
Bsc Honors Management and Information Technology 4 2 4 6 1 2 - 1 O e
Bsc Honors Physical Science 4 11 9 22 - 2 - - B 33
Bsc Honors Software Engineering 3 2 7 6 4 1 6 1 20 10
BA - 5 7 67 4 15 8 8 195=05
FSOSC 888
BA (Honors) 4 43 54 580 9 23 25 36 92 682
Total 43 221 222 1279 145 280 274 191 684 1971 2655
M - Male F - Female

Annual Report & ecounts 2021 Annual Report & ecounte 2021



POSTGRADUATE OUTPUT 2021

In 2021, 1,408 students have passed out from postgraduate degree
programs. Out of the total postgraduate output, 1,310 (93%) have
obtained master's degrees of which the Board of Study belongs to
the Faculty of Social Sciences. A summary of the postgraduate
outputisdepictedintables 7-3 and 7-4.

Table 7 - 3 : Postgraduate output by the type of degree program

Type of Degree Program Number of Graduates
Postgraduate Diploma Programs 45
Master's Degree Programs 131
Mphil Degree Programs 24
Doctoral Degree Programs 29

Qs Aecounte 2021

Table 7 - 4 : Postgraduate oufput 2021

B;?::y()f Name of the Program of Study Degree lzrmbe; Grad;;:d
Postgraduate Diploma
PG Diploma in Business Administration PD 1 2 3
FCMS PG Diploma in Commerce PD 1 1 2
PG Diploma in Human Resources PD 0 2 2
PG Diploma in Marketing PD 20 5 25
FSC PG Diploma in Information Technology PD 0 5 5
PG Diploma in Economics PD 1 1 2
PG Diploma in Geography PD 0 2 2
FSOSC
PG Diploma in Philosophy PD 1 1 2
PG Diploma in Political Science PD 1 1 2
Total 25 20 45
Master's Degree Programs
Master of Business Nbus 30 28 58
Master of Business Administration MBA 48 49 97
FCMS Master of Commerce Mcom 10 7 17
Master of Human Resources Management MHRM 9 26 35
Master of Marketing Management MBA 25 18 43
Master of Arts (1 year) MA 45 32 77
FHU
Master of Arts (2 years) MA 48 96 144
Master of Science (1 year) Msc 28 52 80
Fse Master of Science (2 years) Msc 11 15 26
Master of Social Sciences MSSc 2 11 13
FSOSC
Master of Arts MA 261 459 720
Total 517 793 1310
Mphil Degree Programs
FHU Master of Philosophy MPhil 8 6 14
FMED Master of Philosophy Mphil 0 2 2
FSC Master of Philosophy Mphil 1 2 3
FSOSC Master of Philosophy Mphil 5 0 5
Total 14 10 24
Doctoral Degree Programs
Doctor of Business Administration DBA 6 2 8
FEMS Doctor of Philosophy PhD 2 0 2
FHU Doctor of Philosophy PhD 5 6 11
FMED Doctor of Philosophy PhD 0 1 1
FSC Doctor of Philosophy PhD 0 3 3
FSOSC Doctor of Philosophy PhD 2 2 4
Total 15 14 29
Grand Total 571 837 1408
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Table 8 - 3 : All staff - approved cadre, existing staff, and vacancies

Staff category Approved Existing Staff Permanent
Salary Scale Cadre Permanent Temporary Cadre
M F Total M F Total Vacancies
Academic U-AC 3to U-AC 5 831 322 367 689 142
Staff U-AC 1to U-AC 2 280 63 217 280
U-ACS5 1 1 1 0
Library Staff U-AC4 1 0 1
U-AC3 12 6 5 11 1
Administrative O EX 3 2 ! ! 2 0
& Financial U-EX 2 15 5 9 14 1
Staff U-EX 1 5 2 12 14 1
Other U-EX 3 0 0
Executive U-EX 2 5 2 2 3
Staff U-EX 1 21 1 1
Medical U-MO 2 1 1 1 0
Officers U-MO 1 3 1 1 2
Academic U-AS2 5 21 7 28 5
Support Staff g 5 17 22
U-EX 2 1 1
U-EX 1 3 5 8
Table 8 - 1: All staff U-MN 4 17 9 26
Staff Category Number of Staff Technical Staff U-MN 3 148 1 0 1 38
U-MN 2 0 0
Primary Level 382 U-MN 1 0 0
Secondary Level 428 U-MT 1 47 27 74
Tertiary Level 73 U-MN 4 34 54 88
Senior Level 722
- Clerical & U-MN 3 331 11 19 30 ,
Total 1605 Allied Staff U-MN 2 4 ) 6
QUALIFICATIONS OF THE STAFF Sk AL
U-PL 3 108 3 111
Table 8 - 2 : Qualifications of the staff ) 417
Primary Staff U-PL2 38 20 58 35
Staff Category Number of
Highest Qualification Primary Secondary Tertiary Senior Staff U-PL 1 183 30 213
Level Level Level Level
b b = = Total 1837 878 727 1605 63 217 280 232
Up to GCE O/L 303 303
Passed GCE O/L 71 10 81 * Employee categorization according to the Director General of the Department of Management Services by the letter No.
DMS/1528(s) vol -1 and dated 06.11.2019
Passed GCE A/L 8 331 4 343
Completed Diploma 45 4 1 50 Excluding the approved cadre of U-AC 1 to U-AC 2
Bachelor's Degree/ PG Diploma 37 45 114 196
Master's Degree 5 19 182 206
Mphil or Equivalent Degree 1 70 71
Doctoral Degree 355 355
Total 382 428 73 722 1605
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NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL AWARDS
RECEIVED BY THE STAFF - 2021

Dr. A.M.l. Lakshan, Accountancy, Best Reviewer, 12th International
Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021, University of
Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

Prof. U.L.T.P. Gunasekara, Accountancy, Best Reviewer, 12th
International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka.

Prof. S.S. Weligamage, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers —CBI 2021, 12th
International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

Dr.J.M.B.R. Fernando, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers —ICBI 2021, 12th
International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

Mr. PS. Morawakage, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers - ICBI 2021, 12th
International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

Mrs. K.M.K.N.S. Kulathunga, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers — |CBI
2021, 12th International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI)
2021, University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

Mrs.W.B.M.D. Basnayake, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers — ICBI 2021,
12th International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

Dr. L.D.C.J. Liyanage, Finance, Outstanding Reviewers — ICBI 2021, 12th
International Conference on Business and Information (ICBI) 2021,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

*  Ms. PW.G. Madhushani, Finance, Bestresearch paper - ICBI 2021 - Topic
of the manuscript: Initial Return of Initial Public Offerings (IPOs) and
IPOs Underpricing, 12th International Conference on Business and
Information (ICBI) 2021, University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka

Gangahawatte S.D.S., Kitulwatte |.D.G., Edirisinghe PA.S., Alwis D.,
Jayasinghe J.M.Y.K., Forensic Medicine, Award for the best research
paper of the year at the 20th Annual Scientific Sessions of the College of
Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka, Topic: Risk factors, nature and
effects of domestic violence among victims who presented to three
teaching hospitals in Sri Lanka during the COVID 19 pandemic, College
of Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka
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Thivaharan Y., Dias N.N.V., Edirisinghe PA.S., Kitulwatte [.D.G., Forensic
Medicine, First place at the competition for best case report at the 20th
Annual Scientific Sessions of the College of Forensic Pathologists of Sri
Lanka, Topic: Death of a child following a superstitious ritual of exorcism,
College of Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka

Uthulingam T., Edirisinghe P.A.S., Wijewardena H.P.,, Thivaharan Y.,
Jayasundara M.M.S., Borukgama N., Kulathunga D.L., Alwis D.N., Samudini
G.D.P, Kitulwatte I.D.G., Forensic Medicine, Second place at the competition
for best research paper of the year, at the 20th Annual Scientific Sessions of
the College of Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka, Topic: A study on victims of
Intimate partner violence reported to Colombo North Teaching Hospital, Sri
Lanka during 2019-2021 (Pre and during COVID 19 pandemic), College of
Forensic Pathologists of SriLanka

Thivaharan Y., Kitulwatte 1.D.G., Forensic Medicine, Second place at the
competition for best case report at the 20th Annual Scientific Sessions of the
College of Forensic Pathologists of Sri Lanka, Topic: Death of a woman
following an unsuccessful endoscopic retrograde cholangiopancreatography
(ERCP) procedure for common bile duct calculi.,, College of Forensic
Pathologists of SriLanka

Dr. E.PD.S. Ediriweera, Health Data Science Unit, Best oral presentation
award, Best oral presentation award at the Sri Lanka College of Internal
Medicine, 4th Annual Congress, 24th — 25th February 2021, Sri Lanka College
of Internal Medicine

Dr. E.P.D.S. Ediriweera, Health Data Science Unit, 2nd place in the RCPsych
Trainee researcher of the year - Junior/Trainee of the year poster prize
(Education & Training category), Royale College of Psychiatrists

Dr. E.PD.S. Ediriweera, Health Data Science Unit, Best oral presentation
award, at the Sri Lanka College of Internal Medicine, 4th Annual Congress,
24th—25th February, 2021, SriLanka

Madunil Anuk Niriella, Dileepa Senajith Ediriweera, Anuradhani Kasturiratne,
Shamila Thivanshi De Silva, Anuradha Supun Dassanayaka, Arjuna
Priyadarshin De Silva, Norihiro Kato, Arunasalam Pathmeswaran, Ananda
Rajitha Wickramasinghe, Hithanadura Janaka de Silva, Medicine, Best
Research Paper at the annual academic sessions (SIMCON 2020) of the Sri
Lanka College of Internal Medicine for authorship of oral presentation -
Outcomes of NAFLD and MAFLD: Results from a community-based,
prospective cohort study

Thulani U.B.; Mettananda K.C.D.; Warnakulasuriya D.T.D.; Peiris T.S.G.;
Kasthurirathna K.T.A.A.; Ranawaka U.K.; Chakrewarthy S.; Kurukulasooriya
S.A.F; Niriella M.A.; de Silva S.T.; Pathmeswaran A.P.; Kato N.; de Silva H.J,
Medicine, EM Wijerama award for the best presentation - Ceylon Collage of
Physicians Annual Conference 2020, Topic: Validation of the World Health
Organization/International Society of Hypertension (WHO/ISH)
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cardiovascular risk predictions in Sri Lankans based on findings from a
prospective cohort study, Ceylon College of Physicians, SriLanka

* Motha M.B.C., Palihawadana T.S., Jayasinghe C., Ranawaka U.K.,
Medicine, J B Peiris Award for best presentation in Neurology - Ceylon
College of Physicians Annual Conference 2020, Research award for
Research paper 'Seizure patterns, preconception care and pregnancy
outcomes in women with epilepsy in a tertiary care hospital.', Ceylon
College of Physicians, Sri Lanka

+ Bandara K.M.T., Pathmeswaran A., Ranawaka U.K., Medicine, National
Stroke Association of Sri Lanka Award for best research presentation on
Stroke, Topic: Usefulness of Timed Up and Go test, Berg Balance Scale
and Six Minute Walk Test as Fall Risk Predictors in Post Stroke Adults
Attending Rehabilitation Hospital, Ragama, Ceylon College of
Physicians, SriLanka

De Silva S.T., Ediriweera D., Niriella M.A., Kasturiratne A., Pathmeswaran
A., Kato N., Wickramasinghe A.R., de Silva H.J., Medicine, Sir Nicholas
Attygalle Award at SLMA 134th Anniversary International Medical
Congress 2021 for authorship of oral presentation, Topic: Prevalence,
predictors, and outcome of chronic kidney disease in a cohort of aging,
urban adult Sri Lankan, SLMA, SriLanka

De Silva S.T., Ediriweera D., Niriella M.A., Kasturiratne A., Pathmeswaran
A., Kato N., Wickramasinghe A.R., de Silva H.J., Medicine, S
Ramachandran Award for the best scientific communication in
Nephrology at SLMA 134th Anniversary International Medical Congress
2021 for authorship of oral presentation, Topic: Prevalence, predictors,
and outcome of chronic kidney disease in a cohort of aging, urban adult
SriLankan, SLMA, Sri Lanka

* Professor S.F. Jayamanne, Medicine, NRC Merit Award, National
Research Council, SriLanka

Kalpani A.G.S., Mohamed F., Hough J.E., De Silva D.N., Chandrasena
WMHNM., Jayamanne SF., Medicine, Dr. E.M. Wijerama Award, For the
best oral presentation at the SLMA 133rd Anniversary International
Virtual Medical Congress, Sri Lanka Medical Association, Sri Lanka

Prof A.P. Premawardhena, Medicine, T.S. Varugunam Oration - Internal
Medicine Anniversary sessions, Sri Lanka College of Internal Medicine,
2021, SriLanka

Prof. Menaka Hapugoda, Molecular Medicine Unit, SUSRED award
(Support Scheme for Supervision of Research Degrees), For supervision

of a PhD degree, National Science Foundation of Sri Lanka

Prof. Aresha Manamperi, Molecular Medicine Unit, Dr. C. Palasuntheram
Prize for best research, Topic: Clinical features & epidemiology of
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hantavirus hemorrhagic fever with renal syndrome (HFRS) in Sri Lanka., Sri
Lanka College of Microbiologists, Sri Lanka

Prof. Aresha Manamperi, Molecular Medicine Unit, First Prize for Oral
presentations category, For the research paper titled “Clinical features &
epidemiology of hantavirus hemorrhagic fever with renal syndrome (HFRS) in
SriLanka, Sri Lanka College of Microbiologists, Sri Lanka

Prof. N.R. De Silva, Prof. PA.D.H.N. Gunathilaka, Parasitology, NRC Merit
Award, Merit Award for Scientific Publications published in the year 2018,
National Research Council, Sri Lanka

K.G.H. Silva, B.A.G.G. Mahendra, D. Ediriweera, J. Hewavisenthi, Pathology,
Best research abstract, Annual academic sessions 2021, For abstract titled
'‘Comparison of expression of ER, PR and p53 immunohistochemical stains
between endometrial curetting / biopsy and resected endometrial carcinoma
specimens', College of Pathologist Sri Lanka

K.G.H. Silva, B.A.G.G. Mahendra, D. Ediriweera, J. Hewavisenthi, Pathology,
Best research paper at the annual academic sessions of CPSL October 2021,
College of pathologists of Sri Lanka (CPSL

Research group: Dr. R.P. Wanigatunge Dr. H.M. Herath Ms. C.D.V. Chithrasena
(Student), Plant & Molecular Biology, Best Research Presentation Award, at
the 40th Annual Sessions of the Institute of Biology 2020 (Sessions of
Microbiology & Chemical Biology), Institute of Biology Sri Lanka

Dr. A.A.L.K. Athauda, Public Health, School of Population Health Doctoral
Publication Excellence prize, School of Population Health Doctoral
Publication Excellence prize, University of Auckland, New Zealand

Prof. C.S.K. Rajapakse, Chemistry, SUSRED (Support Scheme for Supervision
of Research Degrees) award for supervision of a MPhil student, NSF, Sri
Lanka

Ms. T. Mahalingam, Prof. C.S.K. Rajapakse Mr. K.P. Somachandra, Plant &
Molecular Biology, SUSRED (Support Scheme for Supervision of Research
Degrees), NSF- Sri Lanka

Prof. R.K. Sriyani Dias, Zoology and Environmental Management, SUSRED
(Support Scheme for Supervision of Research Degrees) award for the
Supervision of a PhD student, National Science Foundation of Sri Lanka

D.S. Kodithuwakku, Social Statistics, Best Research Award - Postgraduate
Stream, Annual Best Research Award conducted by the Institute of Applied
Statisticsin SriLanka, Institute of Applied Statistics.
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PRESIDENTIAL AWARDS VICE-CHANCELLOR AWARDS FOR RESEARCH AND
INNOVATION

Faculty of Medicine

Emeritus Professors in the University of Kelaniya — 2021

Cadre Chair Senior Prof. N. R. de Silva, Department of
Parasitology
Vidyajothi Prof. H. A. de Silva, Department of Pharmacology
Vidyajothi Prof. H. J. de Silva, Department of Medicine
Prof. K. T. A. A. Kasturiratne, Department of Public Health
Prof. A. Pathmeswaran, Department of Public Health

«  Prof.N.K.Gunawardena, Department of Parasitology
Prof. T. G. A. N. Chandrasena, Department of Parasitology
Prof. B. A.H.R. Premaratna, Department of Medicine

«  Prof.N.M. Devanarayana, Department of Physiology
Dr.S.F.Jayamanne, Department of Medicine

*  Prof.D.S.G. Mettananda, Department of Paediatrics

*  Prof.G.P.G.M.D.Hapugoda, Molecular Medicine Unit

* Prof.P.A.D.H.N.Gunathilaka, Department of Parasitology
Prof. A. A. P.S. Manamperi, Molecular Medicine Unit

* Prof.Y.I.N.S. Gunawardene, Molecular Medicine Unit
Prof. U. K. Ranawaka, Department of Medicine
Dr.E.P.D.S. Ediriweera, Health Data Science Unit
Dr. G.P.S. Gunaratna, Department of Parasitology
Prof. A. P.de Silva, Department of Medicine

Prof. Rohana Luxman Piyadasa
Prof. D.D.S. Kulatunga
+  Prof.Jagath Weerasinghe
Prof. (Mrs.) Sujatha Senadeera Salgado
Prof. P.S. Wijesinghe

Medals for the Vice Chancellor's Award for bringing honor to the University
by winning prestigious national or international awards in 2021

Prof. H.J. de Silva, Department of Medicine
Prof.N.R. de Silva, Department of Parasitology
*  Prof.H.Adesilva, Department of Pharmacology
Prof. A. Pathmeswaran, Department of Public Health
Prof. (Mrs.) M. D. Amarasinghe, Department of Plant & Molecular Biology
+  Prof.B.A.H.R. Premaratna, Department of Medicine
Prof. A. P.de Silva, Department of Medicine
Prof. A.A.PS. Manamperi, Molecular Medicine Unit
Prof. N. K. Gunawardena, Department of Parasitology
Prof. Y.I.N.S Gunawardene, Molecular Medicine Unit
Prof. M. M. M. Najim, Department of Zoology & Environmental Management
Prof. (Mrs.) N. M. Devanarayana, Department of Physiology
Prof. U.K. Ranawaka, Department of Medicine
Prof. (Mrs.) T.G.A.N. Chandrasena, Department of Parasitology
Faculty of Science «  Prof. (Mrs.) K. T. A. A. Kasturiratne, Department of Public Health
«  Prof. (Mrs.) M. D. Hapugoda, Molecular Medicine Unit
*  Prof.D.S. G. Mettananda, Department of Pediatrics
«  Prof. PA.D.H.N. Gunathilaka - ABSENT, Department of Parasitology
Prof.S. F. Jayamanne, Department of Medicine
*  Dr.PG. Wijayarathna, Department of Software Engineering
Dr. (Mrs.) M.R.K.N. Yatigammana, Department of Commerce & Financial
Management
«  Dr.(Mrs.) W.P. T. Hansameenu, Department of Mathematics
Dr.E.P.D.S. Ediriweera, Department of Medical Education
Dr. PW.Samarasekere, Department of Applied Computing
«  Dr.(Miss) K.H.W.L. De Silva, Department of Plant & Molecular Biology
«  Dr.(Mrs.) G. Gunarathna, Department of Parasitology

Prof. U. S. Amarasinghe, Department of
Zoology & Environmental Management

Prof. M. M. M. Najim, Department of Zoology &
Environmental Management
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Miss. S. 1. Wijenayake, Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies
Dr. A. K. A. B. Baminiwatta, 1st Place, Faculty of Medicine

Prof. P.A.D.H. N. Gunatilake, 2nd Place, Faculty of Medicine

Dr. (Mrs.) A. A. L. K. Athauda, Merit Award, Faculty of Medicine

Dr. (Mrs.) R. P.Wanigatunge, 1st Place, Faculty of Science

Dr. (Mrs.) D.A.D. A. Daranagama, 2nd Place, Faculty of Science

Mr. T. D. Kodituwakku, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

The Outstanding Senior Researchers

« Dr.C.C.Jayasundara, Libra

Dr. (Mrs.) M. P N. Janadari, 1st Place, Faculty of Commerce and
Management Studies

Dr. A. M. |. Lakshan, 2nd Place, Faculty of Commerce and Management
Studies

Prof. D.S. G. Mettananda, 1st Place, Faculty of Medicine

Dr.E.P.D.S. Ediriweera, 2nd Place, Faculty of Medicine

Prof.H. T. C. S. Abeysena, Merit Award, Faculty of Medicine

Prof. U. K. Ranawaka, Merit Award, Faculty of Medicine

Prof. (Mrs.) K. C. D. Mettananda, Merit Award, Faculty of Medicine

Dr. (Mrs.) A. Hapangama, Merit Award, Faculty of Medicine

Prof. (Mrs.) B.T.S. D. P Kannangara, 1st Place, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Mrs.) W. M. D. N. Wijeyaratne, 2nd Place, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Mrs.) P. A. Paranagama, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Senior Prof. N. A. K. P. J. Seneviratne, Merit Award, Faculty of Science
Prof. (Mrs.) B. M. Jayawardena, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. L. B. D. R. P. Wijesundera, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. M. M. M. Najim, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Mrs.) L. D. Amarasinghe, Merit Award, Faculty of Science
Prof. G. A.S. M. Ganehiarachchi, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Miss) N. Jayathilaka, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Mrs.) D. S. M. de Silva, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Mrs.) P.A.S.R. Wickramarachchi, Merit Award, Faculty of Science
Prof. R. M. C. S. Ratnayake, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Mrs.) K. P.R. N Attanayake, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Prof. (Miss.) C.S. K. Rajapakse, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Dr. M. P. Deeyamulla, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Dr. (Mrs.) I. V. N. Rathnayake, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Dr. K. M. D. C. Jayathilaka, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Mrs. A. M. C. H. Attanayake, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Dr. (Mrs.) N. V. Chandrasekara, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

Dr. (Miss.) K. H. W. L. de Silva, Merit Award, Faculty of Science

rian

=
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The Most Outstanding Recipient of the External
Research Grants

« Dr. (Miss) A.P. Halmillawewa, Department of
Microbiology

The Researcher with the Most Publications from
Internal Research Grants

« Senior Prof. N.A.K.PJ. Senevirathna, Department of
Chemistry

The Researcher with the Highest Number of
Publications in indexed Journals

« Dr.E.PD.S. Ediriweera, Health Data Science Unit
+ Prof. (Mrs.) L.D. Amarasinghe, Department of
Zoology and Environmental Management

The Best Innovators/ Inventors in the University

«  Senior Prof. N.A.K.P.J. Seneviratne, Department of
Chemistry
+  Prof. (Miss) N. Jayathilaka, Department of Chemistry

The most successful directors of the
center/unit/committee of the University in 2021

+  Prof. (Mrs.) K. L. K. N. C. Premawardhena, Centre for
International Affairs

«  Prof.(Mrs.) C.D.S. Wettewe, Career Guidance Unit

« Dr. (Mrs.) M.R.K.N. Yatigammana, National E-
Learning Resource Centre (NELRC)

The best Promoter of International Relations in the
University

« Dr. (Mrs.) D.T.D. Warnakulasooriya, Department of
Physiology

The academics with the most outstanding creative
production in the University

*  Prof.S.N.J.K. Mendis

* Dr.U.P.Liyanage

*  Mrs.G.A.M. Karunarathna
* Dr.S.S. Withana
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1 | Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals 6 114
2 | Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 12 16
3.1 Papers published as full papers 26 20
3 | Conference Proceedings
FSC 3.2 Abstract publications 109 13
4 | Book Chapters published 1 8
5 Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher - -
area of expertise 5.2 By an author - -
I | Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals 1 6
2 | Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 12 13
RESEARCH & PUBLICATIONS OUTPUT 2021 el llppes | 7L
3 | Conference Proceedings
FSOSC 3.2 Abstract publications 3 4
Table 9 - 1: Research & Publications output of the Academic Staff 4 [ Book Chapters published 5 _
Number ; ; 5.1 By a publisher 4 1
Faculty Publication Category 5 Books/Textbo.oks published in the Yy apu
Local | Foreign area of expertise 5.2 By an author 1 -
1 | Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals - 24 1 | Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals - 1
2 | Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 78 2 2 | Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals - 1
) 3.1 Papers published as full papers 22 30 3.1 Papers published as full papers - -
3 | Conference Proceedings — ] 3 | Conference Proceedings
FCMS 3.2 Abstract publications 33 6 Library 3.2 Abstract publications 10 -
4 | Book Chapters published 17 2 4 | Book Chapters published - -
5 Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher - 2 s Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher - -
area of expertise 5.2 By an author - - area of expertise 5.2 By an author - -
1 | Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals - 12 ]
2 | Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 1 7 R E S E A R C H SYM P O S IA H E L D D U R I N G T H E YEA R 2 0 21
. 3.1 Papers published as full papers 16 4 Table 9 - 2: Research symposiums held during the year
3 | Conference Proceedings —
FCT 3.2 Abstract publications 1 3 Faculty No. Description
4 | Book Chapters published - 3 01 7" HRM Student Research Symposium 2020, 12" March 2021
. th ' . st
S Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher 1 - 02 9 lhStudents .Research Symposium, 2.1 December 20%0 _
area of expertise 52 By an author i i 03 12 In.ternatlonal Conference on Business & Information (ICBI) 2021, 11" November 2021
(Hybrid model)
1| Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals 3 ! FCMS 04 7" International Conference for Accounting Researchers and Educators (ICARE) 2021, 09"
2 | Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 1 - December 2021
. 05 12" International Conference on Business & Information (ICBI) 2021, 11" November 2021
3.1 Papers published as full papers 1 2 .
3 | Conference Proceedings — (Hybrid mode)
FHU 3.2 Abstract publications 1 - 06 4" International Conference on Advanced Marketing (ICAM), 11" September 2021
4 | Book Chapters published - 1 07 4" International Conference on Advances in Technology and Computing (ICATC) 2021, 18"-
] ] 5 1 Bv a publisher FCT 19" December 2021 (Virtual Conference)
5 BookséTextbr(t)'oks published in the - Yep 08 FCT-Faculty Research Symposium 2021, 18" December 2021 (Virtual event)
area of expertise 5.2 By an author 3 B 09 International Buddhist Conference on Pali and Buddhist Studies, 23" March 2021
1 | Publications in refereed indexed journals including e-journals 9 134 FHU 10 International Conference on Humanities (ICH) 2020/2021, 29" and 30" of July 2021
th . th .
2 | Publications in refereed non-indexed journals including e-journals 25 7 11 4" Undergraduate Research Symposium (HUG) 2021, 20" January 2022 (Virtual event)
12 30" Anniversary International Academic Sessions of the Faculty of Medicine, 30" October
3.1 Papers published as full papers 1 - FMED 2021
3 | Conference Proceedings —
FMED 3.2 Abstract publications 35 18 FSC 13 International Conference on Applied and Pure Sciences (ICAPS), 2021, 29" October 2021
4 | Book Chapters published 2 - 14 National Undergraduate Conference on Social Sciences, NUCSS 2021, 30" April 2021
X FSOSC 15 4" International Conference on Library and Information Management (ICLIM) — 2021, 26"
5 Books/Textbooks published in the 5.1 By a publisher - - November 2021
area of expertise
P 5.2 By an author - 1 " Funded by the Research council of the University of Kelaniya
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PATENTS - 2021

Table 9 - 3: List of patents

] WELFARE
— FACILITIES OF THE

Chemistry Cinnamon-based dietary supplements, and the process of preparation thereof Field
Chemistry A method for improving the shelf life of food products using coconut paring Field
residue extract (cpre)

Physics & Method and system for addressable data communication using radio frequency (rf) Field
Electronics communication SCH O LA RSH I PS
National
A formulation containing phenolic antioxidants in coconut oil or soy oil for Field Mah ap ola and Bursar, Yy

Chemistry

superior bioavailability. Table 10 - 1: Provision of Mahapola & Bursary

A method for extending the oxidative and microbial shelf life of unsaturated oils, Year of No. of Students Received

Chemistry egg.—ba.sed foods and baked c'flkes by applic.ation of thermostable phenolic Field Faculty Intake Year of Study Mahapola Bursary

antioxidants extracted from rice (Oryza sativa) bran.
- - - . — - - 2019/2020 1 - 556
A method for improving the shelf life and oxidative stability of edible oils, meat,
Chemistry egg-based foods, and vegetable and preserving the color of fruit or vegetable Field FCMS 2018/2019 2 510 58
juices using coconut paring residue extract (CPRE) 2017/2018 3 496 48
Chemistry/ 2016/2017 4 429 100

Physics '& Switching arc extinguishing method using multiple series contacts Field Total 1435 762

Electronics
2019/2020 1 - 125
Chemistry/

Physics & Vacuum manifold for the column- based solid- phase extraction. Field FCT 20182019 2 135 8
Electronics 2017/2018 3 120 16
Physics and Method for addressable data communication, processing, control, and 2016/2017 4 97 32
Electronics visualization based on RF wireless communication with or without an Internet Field Total 352 181

"
compeen 2019/2020 1 i 1046
Environmental Personal Protective Helmet Field
Management FSOSC 2017/2018 3 1053 154
2016/2017 4 848 172
Total 2900 1475
SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY OUTPUT 2021 1 :
2018/2019 2 91 11
Table 9 - 4: Science & Technology output 2017/2018 3 83 11
FMED

Department Name of the Science and Technology Development Output Status 2V Ty “ i 25
2015/2016 5 52 22
Development of new product/processes 2014/2015 5 57 12
Family Medicine COVID-19 APP Developed Total 357 190
Molecular Sterile Insect Technology (SIT) for controlling dengue vector mosquitoes in the 2019/2020 1 - 304

Medicine Uni field Developed
cdicine Unit © rsc 2018/2019 2 228 158
Design Prototypes developed 2017/2018 3 192 170
Surgery Continuous monitoring of expired CO2 during fiber optic intubation Developed 2016/2017 4 38 52
Total 508 684

Grand Total
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Other Scholarships

Table 10 - 2: Provision of other scholarships

Number of

Faculty Department Name of the Scholarship Students _ 4 -_
Received S ‘
FCMS Commerce and _

. _ /
& Financial Management Laptop Donation 15 F— N

FCMS Finance Department Scholarship for the undergraduates 14

FHU Modern Languages MEXT - Japanese Scholarship 4

FHU Modern Languages International Chinese Teacher Scholarship 17

FHU Modern Languages KOICA multi-country program for Korean 4
Language and International Development for
Intermediate Learners

-

FHU Modern Languages The 2nd KF-JNU-JDC Intensive Korean Language 1
Program for Next Generation Educators

L

FHU Modern Languages Erasmus - France 1

FHU Modern Languages German Academic Exchange 5

FHU Modern Languages DAAD 5

FHU Modern Languages German Cultural Institute - Colombo 22

FHU Modern Languages Goethe Institute - Munich 6

FHU WCC & CC MWTI Aachen Scholarship for MPhil 3

UNIVERSITY COMPLIANCE WITH THE RIGHT TO
INFORMATION ACT NO 12 OF 2016

FSOSC Geography ERASMUS PLUS Merging Voices, International 2
Mobility Program for Academic and Knowledge
Transfer Project - 2022/23

Details of information issued

The Management of the University of Kelaniya recognized the importance of compliance
with the provisions of the Right to Information Act No. 12 of 2016 of the Government. It
also complied with the principle of transparency of university decisions. Therefore, the
University of Kelaniya has released all information related to several matters requested
by citizens of Sri Lanka in 2021. The details of such requests and the university's issuance
of information are stated below (Table 11-1).

Table 11 - 1: Issuance of information as per the Right to Information act
Name of the Date the
inf .
S/N person who Date of information Nature of information
requested request was

information delivered
1 Ven. L. 2021.04.09 2021.04.20 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer
Ariyadamma Thero (Probationary), Senior Lecturer Gr. II/I and Lecturer
(Unconfirmed) of the Department of Pali and Buddhist
Studies, Faculty of Humanities held on 31.03.2021
and 07.04.2021
2 Ven. D. 2021.04.19 2021.04.20 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer
Chandrarathana (Unconfirmed) of the Department of Pali and Buddhist
Thero Studies, Faculty of Humanities held on 31.03.2021

-
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3 Ven. S. Asoka 2021.04.09 2021.04.20 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer
Nanda Thero (Probationary) of the Department of Pali and Buddhist
Studies held on 07.04.2021

4 Mr. L.A.D. Samith 2021.04.15 2021.04.29 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer
Kalhara (Probationary) of the Department of Pali and Buddhist
Studies held on 07.04.2021

5 Ms. K.V.J. 2021.08.16 2021.08.30 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer of
Koshalee the Department of Archaeology held on 22.03.2021

6 Ms. W.W.R.P. 2021.04.01 2021.08.30 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer of
Fernando the Department of Archaeology held on 30.03.2021

7 Ms. P.M. 2021.05.13  2021.08.30 Information of interview for the Post of Lecturer
Embuldeniya (Probationary), Senior Lecturer Gr. II/I and Lecturer

(Unconfirmed) of the Department of Archaeology,
Faculty of Social Sciences

8 Mr. W.G.S. V. 2021.10.09 2021.10.11 Information of the members of the Board of Studies of
Kumara the Department of Pali and Buddhist Studies

9 Prof. P. Narangoda 2021.10.18 2021.10.27 Information regarding Mr. Udagedara Sudath Senerath
as a PhD Candidate in the Faculty of Graduate Studies

10 Dr. A.M.N. 2021.11.24 2021.11.24 Composition of the Academic staff members for the
Chaminda three newly established departments of the Faculty
Social Sciences

11 Mr. R.M. 2021.11.09 2021.11.29 Information from his personal File — Recommendation
Amarathunga of the Selection Committee and the letter of calling for
Interview
12 Mr. A.Y.O. 2021.10.27 2021.12.21 Information of interview for the Post of Temporary
Lakshitha Lecturer of the Department of Fine Arts held on
06.10.2021
13 Mr. HR.P. Lal 2021.10.26  2021.12.21 Information of interview for the Post of Temporary
Lecturer of the Department of Fine Arts held on
06.10.2021
14  Prof. G.J.S. 2021.12.16  2021.12.22 Information regarding the Department of Linguistics
Wijesekara Approved Cadre, letter issued by Head of the

Department of Linguistics (12.09.2027), Letter issued
by DR/AE (29.11.2017)

15  Prof. G.I.S. 2021.12.28 2022.01.03 Information regarding the Department of Linguistics
Wijesekara Advertisement for the Post of Emeritus Professor
2017, Letter issued by Head of the Department of
Linguistics (2017.11.10)

16 Ms. S.D. 2021.12.28 2022.02.01 Information regarding her marks and supportive
Edirisinghe documents for the Professor interview held on
17.12.2021
Total no of requestreceived during year 2021 - 16
Total no of occasions of not providing information during the year 2021 - 00
Accordingly, total No. of responses during the year 2021 - 16
Total responses as a percentage of requests - 100%
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QUALITY ASSURANCE

The Quality Assurance activities of the University are
facilitated by the Centre for Quality Assurance (CQA)
established under UGC Circular 2019/09. The CQA is
headed by a director, who is guided by the Senate
Standing Committee on Quality Assurance (SSC-QA).
Faculty Quality Assurance Cells (FQACs) are established
in all six faculties. In 2021, in addition to the six FQACs
two Internal Quality Assurance Cells (IQACs) were
established in the administrative divisions and Center for

Distance and Continuing Education.

The Senate Standing Committee on Quality Assurance
meets regularly and monitors the progress of the six
FAQCs, and the two IQACs report to the SSC-QA and
share best practices, which facilitate enhancing the

internalization of practice.
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T External Reviews:
» 3“. ‘
aef 8 - The Institutional Review of the University was completed with
i the site visit evaluation held in December 2021.

« Self-Evaluation Reports (SERs) of four External Degree
Programs (EDPs), BA, BCom, BBMgt and BSc (Physiotherapy),
were submitted for the Program Review.

" Preparation of policy documents and guidelines:

* Policyon Grievance Redress

« Policyon Student Engagementin QA Activities
« Student Charter

» Policyon Curriculum Design and Development

Workshops and awareness programs:

In 2021 CQA facilitated workshops and training sessions on several
aspects:

*  Curriculum Design and Development

*  PeerObservation

* Human Resource Management

* Online Assessment

« Preparation of digital teaching material

Other QA- related activities

® . The Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies introduced
the 'Teaching Excellence Award' for teacher appraisal.

'+ TheFaculty of Commerce and Management Studies and Faculty
of Science have adopted a system for recording the workload of
academic staff methodically and developed a Human Resource
Plan.

* The Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies and the
Faculty of Science obtained the approval to introduce fallback
awards.

« ThelQAC of Administrative Divisions have initiated developing a
'Manual of Procedures' for the Administrative Divisions of the
University.
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COVID-19
CORONAVIRUS

DISEASE

Risk Management - COVID 19

The COVID-19 pandemic imposed enormous challenges on the higher education system
in Sri Lanka. By adopting national guidelines issued by the Ministry of Health and the
University Grants Commission, the University of Kelaniya faced the pandemic
successfully, and continued with educational programs for its students, inclusive of online
or physical teaching-learning activities, examinations, and research throughout the year
2021.

Specific measures adopted at the University of Kelaniya

The University of Kelaniya initiated a covid-specific control program within its premises
aligned with the national program.

Establishing a high-powered Covid response committee for the reduction of
risk

This committee is chaired by Professor Rajitha Wickramasinghe, Professor of Public
Health, Faculty of Medicine, and coordinated by Dr. Chinthaka Rathnayake, Chief Medical
Officer (CMO). The Vice-Chancellor, Senior Professor Nilanthi de Silva, regularly
participated in the meetings of this committee.

The committee comprises of 65 members including seven Deans of the Faculties,
Registrar, Bursar, Librarian, Public Health Inspector, 2 members (academic and non-
academic) from each faculty, Directors, Union leaders, Head of the Dept of Medical
Microbiology, Faculty of Medicine, Professor of Medical Microbiology, and the Medical
Officer of Health (MOH) at Kelaniya.

Committee meetings are conducted fortnightly.

The mandate of the committee is to plan, prepare guidelines, implement, monitor,
evaluate and review the situation and take timely action.
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Educational activities

Educational activities were conducted
online for most students in order to
minimize the risk of spreading Covid.
However, examinations and practical
classes were conducted physically on-
site where necessary, adhering to health
requirements to ensure the minimum
gathering and adopting the “bio-bubble”
approach following proper risk
assessment.

Medical Centre

All categories of health staff were
trained on procedures to be followed in
their relevant fields, in the Microbiology
and Family Medicine Departments of
the Faculty of Medicine, the Colombo
North Teaching Hospital and the Office
of the MOH/Kelaniya.

Funds
Additional funds were made available for the following control measures:
a) Purchase of personal protective equipment (PPE), including face
masks

b) Sanitizers, disinfectants for lecture halls, hostels, classrooms, vehicles
(ambulance transporting positive cases, contacts)

c) Posters (displayed in all units)

d) Adequate foot operated hand washing areas

e) Infrared thermometers for all the entrance points

f) Improved facilities at the University Medical Centre
Rapid Antigen Test

Rapid Antigen Tests for SARS CoV-2 were conducted free of charge for students and
staff, at the University Medical Centre and in the laboratories of the Medical
Microbiology Department of the Faculty of Medicine.
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RT-PCR

RT-PCR for SARS CoV-2 tests were
conducted free of charge in the
laboratories of the Medical Microbiology
Department of the Faculty of Medicine
for the university community as well as
members of the public who were tested
as required by the Ministry of Health.

Integrated Home-Based Care Centre

Covitriage SL App

Covitriage SL App for covid positive
patients was developed by a team of
academics from the Faculties of
Medicine and Science, along with
officials from the Ministry of Health, for
assessment of risk and identification of
amedical managementplan.

Integrated Home-Based Care Centre (IHBCC) at UOK — the University guest house
was converted to a well-equipped home quarantine center for covid positive

patients among the university staff.

Mass Vaccination

Several vaccination programs were conducted on-site in Dalugama and Kelaniya for

staff and students:
« Sinopharm1st&2nd dose

664 staff members were vaccinated on 14 May and 11 June 2021
1164 students were vaccinated in Octoberand November 2021

» Pfizer Boosterdose:

930 members of staff/students/community were vaccinated in December

2021

Welfare facilities

The following welfare facilities were provided for all covid-positive staff members:
interest-free loan scheme, traveling allowance (up to Rs 15,000), special quarantine

leave.
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Educational programs

Educational programs to create awareness among the community were telecast on
a number of TV channels, radio channels, social media, and newspapers, with the
participation of the Vice-Chancellor, Chief Medical Officer, Media Director and
Professors/senior lecturers at Medical Faculty/other faculties and students.

COVID-19 Statistics

Over the period August - December 2021, the Medical Centre has maintained
records of covid testing and the number of positive cases among staff and students.
A weekly PHI inspection report on the maintenance of hand washing facilities and
sanitizers was also compiled. The report is presented weekly (supplemented by a
monthly summary) to the Vice-Chancellor, the Chairperson of the covid response
committee and copied to the Registrar, Deans, Bursar, Librarian & other covid
committee members.

The summary report for Aug-—-Dec 2021 follows.

Table 11 -2: COVID- 19 statistics

Time period

No of tests done
Covid 19 Positive
cases - Staff
Covid 19 Positive
cases - Students
No of Covid - 19
Positive cases reported
from outside tests
(Staff only)

Total number of
Covid- 19 positive

NS
[\
—
W
[\
3

August From 04.08.2021
to 31.08.2021

September From 01.09.2021
t0 28.09.2021

October From 29.09.2021
t0 31.10.2021

November From 01.11.2021
to 28.11.2021

December From 29.11.2021
t0 02.01.2022

Total From 04.08.2021
to 02.01.2022
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GREEN PRACTICES

he Centre for Sustainability

Solutions demonstrates the

principle of sustainability both in
theory and in practice through
understanding non-sustainable
practices of the University and taking
action to reduce the impact of such
practices by coordinating and organizing
various activities. As the first step, the
university adopted a policy on the
environment; this policy binds all
individuals in the university to exercise
due care to avoid negative
environmental impacts of their own
activities. The University Environmental
Policy emphasizes that caring for the
environment is the bounded duty of any
individual in the university premises that
uses, or otherwise carries out an activity
that has an impact on the resources of
the environment. There are numerous
actions and activities carried out by the
CSS annually under different aspects of
sustainability. energy management,
water management, biodiversity
management, waste management,
sustainability leadership and education,
social wellbeing etc., to make the
university move forward towards
sustainability.
CSS is involved in issuing a university
circular on energy management which
includes a set of guidelines in setting
temperatures of A/C limiting to 020C
lower than the room temperature,
limiting A/C on-off time to 10.30 am to
3.30 pm, pre-assessment of office
conditions before installing A/Cs. Apart
from that, the implementation of the
energy audit recommendations such as
the following have been carried out:
installation of energy sub-meters,
proper arrangement of lighting to avoid
use of extra bulbs, making a decision on
purchasing inverter type air-
conditioners, LED bulbs/lights to phase
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out tube lights and incandescent bulbs
toincrease energy efficiency.

The CSS has proposed to implement
green the building concept in upcoming
buildings to be more energy-efficient;
solar roofs, using only LED lights and
enhance natural lighting where possible
to illuminate the interior, uses
natural/passive cooling/ventilation,
energy efficient glasses, green walls and
shading for cooling purposes, green
cover, natural lighting, and
natural/passive cooling. Energy
management systems are to be
introduced in new and renovated
buildings. CSS encourages the
University to use more renewable energy
sources to reduce the burden on grid
energy and has taken several initiatives
to promote the use of solar energy such
as installing solar mobile phone/laptop
charging stations for students, solar
water heaters in canteen boilers, solar
streetlights and solar roofing in certain
buildings. The CSS has implemented
strategies to reduce the greenhouse gas
emissions within the university by
planting a medicinal plant cloister,
signing an MoU with the Department of
Forest Conservation to develop and
manage 150 ha of forest reserve in
Puttalam, developing a wastepaper
management program, implementing an
e-waste collection and disposal
program. CSS recommends avoiding
purchasing of equipment that carry CFC
and other ozone depleting gases. In
2021, CSS organized several awareness
programs on climate change for the
university community and the general
public.

CSS has successfully implemented a
waste segregation and recycling
program in the University. More than
75% of biodegradable waste generated
within the University is turned into
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compost in a facility that was
developed by the CSS with the
assistance of the CEA. CSSissued a
university circular banning polythene
usage in University of Kelaniya. As a
result, no lunch sheets are permitted
in canteens and fruitful discussions
were held with the Student Union to
make them aware of the negative
environmental impact of the use of
polythene in their
activities/decorations. Further, CSS
introduced dark blue colored bins for
every department in the University to
collect waste papers for recycling. All
collected papers are handed over to a
registered recycler. CSS encourages
using soft copies where possible and
print double sided wherever possible,
reusing single side printed papers.
CSS promotes using biogas as an
alternative for LPG and two biogas
facilities in two canteens in the
university produce more than 4kg of
biogas per day.

Staff who are trained on composting
technology give advise and
knowledge to small-scale
enterprisers who are willing to
operate compost yards. CSS
coordinated a chemical waste
management program with the
assistance of Holcim Cement Pvt. Ltd.
The CSS has paid attention to the
conservation of water within
University. CSS has introduced a
rainwater harvesting system at the
premises of the Faculty of Commerce
and Management. It was able to
collect 58000L of water in 2021.
Wastewater released from the
university hostels, are being treated
and reused for gardening purposes.
The CSS introduced a sprinkler
irrigation system in 2018 for the plant
nursery and lawns. The CSS is
involved in transferring technical
know-how in formulating a waste
management system for the newly
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constructed ICT Faculty. A
Sedimentation Management Plan for
Managing Land and Water Pollution
Risks has been developed. In addition
to these wastewater treatments, It
plans to implement (Under
construction) a sewage water
treatment unit and use that water for
recycling water for toilet flushing
purposes. This can minimize the
portable water usage within the ICT
faculty.

Further, the CSS is into two other
important sustainability initiatives: (I)
Online Transport Management
System for optimization of energy
usage of campus vehicles. This
system will assist in online
reservation of university vehicles,
opportunities for pooling, tracking
distances travelled by each vehicle
thereby automatically calculating the
carbon footprint, engine efficiency
calculation etc. (Il) Waste face mask
management system within the
university. CSS is taking a proactive
initiation of face mask disposal
identifying it as an emerging waste
category as surgical and N-95 face
masks contain nylon and is
considered a clinical waste. The
separate handling of such waste is
needed. The CSS will introduce light
blue bins for the collection of face
masks and build awareness among
the university community to dispose
masks as recommended by the WHO
andincinerate the collected waste.
The CSS is widely involved in
education, awareness, extension and
outreach activities locally and
globally. A Sustainability Leadership
Certificate program is offered for
undergraduates of all the faculties of
the University. More than 500
students from different faculties
participated in this program during
2021. This program consisted of 10
modules: Human Society,
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Environmental Issues and Sustainable
Development, Sustainable Living and
Green Fashion: Role of the Youth, Non-
conventional Energy vs Conventional
Energy, Energy Management, Waste as a
Resource: Solid Waste Management,
Environmental Pollution and Human
Health, Water Management, Green
Buildings, Sustainable Production and
Consumption, Environmental
Sustainability Leadership and a group
project. The CSS is currently working on
obtaining SLQF standards for the
program in order to open it for students
who have finished their A/Ls island
wide. In addition to these activities, the
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FCT organized a webinar on promoting
zero waste practices in universities to
educate university students. CSS
commemorated the World Biodiversity
Day, and contributed to delivering an
invited speech on Green Initiatives,
plantated trees to combat climate
change and to reduce CO2 Emissions,
commemorated the World
Environmental Day, contributed to
delivering an invited speech on eco-
system restoration in the global south.
CSS also organized an invited speech on
the impact of Covid-19 on the
environment of Sri Lanka Green
Dialogue organized by CIR.




INFORMATION ON SPORTS
ACTIVITIES

Badminton (Men & Women)
Baseball (Men)
Basketball (Men & Women)
Carrom (Men & Women)

Chess Men & Women)
Cricket (Men & Women)
Elle Men & Women)
Football

Hockey (Men & Women)
Judo Men & Women)
Karate (Men & Women)
Netball

Rugger

Scrabble (Men & Women)
Swimming (Men & Women)
Table Tennis (Men & Women)
Taekwondo (Men & Women)
Tennis  (Men & Women)
Track & Field  (Men & Women)
Volleyball (Men & Women)
Weightlifting  (Men)
Wrestling (Men)

Wushu  (Men & Women)
Yoga (Men & Women)

+ Total No. of Teams (Men & Women) - 40
«  Number of Students Involved in Competitive Sports - 446 (virtually)

SPORTS TRAINING PROGRAMS & EVENTS®

76 students were appointed as Captains & Vice Captains (Men & Women) for 23 sports
disciplines apart from yoga.
Total Number of Training Sessions conducted - 34 online sessions per week

(16th March-20th May and 08th July —03rd October 2021)

Table 12 - 1: Sports events and student participation

Events No. of Student who Participated
Training Program (virtually) 664
No. of Friendly & Dual Matches 04

* Training sessions were not held due to the pandemic during the periods from 21st May to 07th July and 04th October to 31st
December
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PERFORMANCES AT THE NATIONAL AND INTER
UNIVERSITY LEVEL IN 2021

National Taekwondo Championships

Indumini Gunawardhana won Bronze Medal in Lightweight
weight women category
R A lrushani Madusha won Bronze Medal in Welterweight
weight women category

+ KM Sameera Wijesinghe won Bronze in Medal Heavyweight
weight men category

National Karate Kumite Championships

T.L.S. Prabhaashini (HS/2017/0865)50kg (Women)
Gold Medal

H.L.M.V. Aminugama (PS/2017/006)55kg (Women)
Bronze Medal

National Karate Kata Championships

P.D.G Randil Senior (Men) Black Belt -
Gold Medal

H.L.M.V. Aminugama Senior (Women) Black Belt -
Bronze Medal

National Scrabble Pool

« Janindu Dheshan Karunaratne (ME/2017/073), a student of the Medical Faculty has
been selected the national Scrabble pool

Inter University Virtual Tackwondo Championships

«  The University of Kelaniya secured 3RD Place in the women's Category & 4th place in
the men's category

Inter University Virtual Karate Championships

*  The University of Kelaniya won 1st Place in Women Category and 3rd Place in the
men's Category
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Invitational Universities Rapid Chess Championships

M.L.C. Mendis (PS/2017/123), student of science faculty ranked number 1 in
overall Mens' category

Sports Article Challenge Competition on International Day of
University Sports

* Sinhala Language: 1stPlace Hiranya Dissanayake (University of
Kelaniya)

* English Language: 1st Place Verosha Aeygoonewardena (University of
Kelaniya)

* Ms. Chathuri Hashani, 4th year student of Faculty of Commerce & Management
has been appointed as the National University student Ambassador by Sri Lanka
Universities Sports Association (SLUSA) for the year 2021/22 academic year.
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OTHER SPECIAL EVENTS CONDUCTED BY THE
DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICAL EDUCATION IN 2021

Inter-University Virtual Taeckwondo Phoomse Championships

The first ever Inter-University virtual Taekwondo Phoomse Championships was
conducted with the collaboration of Sri Lanka Universities Sports Association. The
competition was held on 12th & 13th of November at the New Gymnasium under the
patronage of the Vice-Chancellor. 10 state universities participated in this
competition and the financial contribution was made by the Sri Lanka Universities
Sports Association with the University of Kelaniya.

Affiliated Sport Controlling Bodies in 2021

The University of Kelaniya was affiliated with the following National & Provincial
level Sports Controlling Bodies of Sri Lanka (with executive voting power) for the
year 2021.

National Associations

SriLanka Cricket

« SrilLanka Weightlifting Federation

« SrilLankaWrestling Federation

+ Table Tennis Association of Sri
Lanka

« SrilLanka Chess Federation

» SrilLankaJudo Federation

« National Aquatic Sports Union of Sri
Lanka (NASU)

Provincial and District
Associations

Western Province Rugby Football
Union

* Gampaha District Cricket
Association

*« Gampaha District Netball
Association

« Western Province Badminton
Association
Gampaha District Basketball
Association
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Other Associations

« SrilLanka Universities Sports Association
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Other Positions held by Staff members during

the year of 2021

Mr. GGU Saman Kumara

- Executive committee member of Athletic
Associationin Sri Lanka

- Hon. Recorder of Athletic Association in Sri
Lanka

- Recorder of Sri Lanka Universities Sports
Association

- Member of the Panel of Judges for
Presidential Sports Awards

- Chairman of Statistics, Records & Standards
subcommittee of Sri Lanka Athletics

Mr. HDSP Wijegunaratne
- Chairman, Table Tennis Sub- Committee of
SLUSA
- Member of Badminton, Rugger Sub-
committees of SLUSA
- Vice President Sri Lanka Table Tennis
Association

Ms. K.N.S. Kumari
- Member of Karate and Carrom Sub-
Committees of SLUSA

Ms. GASG Godamune
- Chairman, Taekwondo subcommittee &
Member of Karate, Netball, Basketball &
Hockey Sub-Committees of SLUSA

Ms. HMKT Karunarathne
- Member of Chess and Elle Sub-Committees
of SLUSA

Ms. I.P.K. Mahadula
- Member of Tennis and Swimming Sub-
Committees of SLUSA

Mr. A.M.A. Athukorala
- Member of Volleyball, Rugby and Baseball
Elle Sub-Committees of SLUSA

Mr G.R.C. Kularatne
- Member of Athletics and Weightlifting Sub-
Committees of SLUSA
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CAPITAL

INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT

Several infrastructure development projects continued during 2021. Table 13-1
provides the relevantinformation.

Table 13 - 1: On-going projectsin 2021

Estimated Estimated Student
Project/proposal Cost (Rs.  Project capacity
Million) Period

Awarded
Value

Progress
(%)

Ongoing/Existing Projects

New lecture theatre complex of the
Faculty of Science

Building for the Information
Communication Technology Centre (ICT)

Four Storied Pannarama Hostel Building
at Hattiyawatta

Construction of a new building for the
Faculty of Commerce & Management
Studies
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QUALITY
EDUCATION

DECENT WORK AND 10 REDUCED
INEQUALITIES

ECONOMIC GROWTH

1 PEACE AND JUSTICE 1 PARTNERSHIPS
STRONG INSTITUTIONS FOR THE GOALS

ACTIVITI ES ON SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT GOALS

Policy Statements

The university conducts its activities ensuring compliance with relevant environmental
legislation and regulations existing in the country.

The institutional framework for sound environmental managementis strengthened by
the university through capacity-building, legislative instruments and improved inter-
institutional coordination and linkages.

The university environment and the environmental impact of the institution's activities
are managed through a pre-defined Environmental Management System that is
continuously updated and maintained.

The environmental impact of institution's activities is continuously assessed and
reported through an appropriate and institutionalized monitoring framework based on
acomprehensive setof indicators and necessary improvements are made.

The framework for setting and reviewing environmental objectives and targets is
provided by the University.

The University's environmental policy is accessible to the public and every stakeholder
should clearly understand the institution's environmental policy, his/her obligations
under this policy and abide with the contents of the Environmental Management
System.

The economic value of environmental services is recognized so as to assure the
sustainability of such services for the benefit of the university.
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Strategies

Reduce wastes generation by promoting efficient use, reuse and recycle (3R)
Implement composting processes for organic wastes

Collect metals, glasses, plastic/polythene, and paper and establish a mechanism to
dispose them through registered recyclersinaregular manner.

Facilitate the proper disposal of electronic waste by creating a continuous disposal
channeltoresponsible recyclers.

Establish standardized chemical waste collection and storage from the laboratories
and transportthemtoregistered companies.

Introduce the autoclaving method for the disposal of bio-hazardous waste.

Promote sustainable construction principles in new constructions and refurbishments
and practice green building principles in new constructions.

Reducing the negative impact on climate change through the implementation of
various projectsincluding a Carbon Management Plan.

Minimize environmental impact through environmentally friendly procurement plans.

Preventing pollution by managing and reducing emissions to air and discharges to
water.

Introduce rainwater harvesting.
Promote wastewater collection, treatment, and reuse for gardening purposes.
Promote the efficient use of energy.

Managing the University to create and enhance wildlife habitats through the
formulation and implementation of a Biodiversity Action Plan.

Promote respectful behavior towards the environment among the university
community and in society by using environmental education as a primary tool
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NO
POVERTY

el

SDG 01: NO POVERTY

The University of Kelaniya has awarded 84
scholarships to the undergraduates of the
University other than the Mahapola and Bursary
scholarships in 2021. Apart from that, the
University's Alumni association annually awards
monthly allowance to the undergraduates who are
in need of financial aids.

Moreover, the Department of Commerce &
Financial Management of the FCMS has helped 15
students with laptop donations.

SDG 02: ZERO HUNGER

SDG 03: GOOD HEALTH AND
WELL-BEING

“Ayati” National Centre for Children with
Disabilities

Ayati is a state-of-the-art center for children with
disabilities and their families, providing expertise in
health and education through scientific and latest
modalities of intervention to enable children to
reach their best potential and to contribute
positively to society. It is with this understanding

Title: IRecent Advancements in
Audiological Assessments and

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

\ 4

There are 10 canteens and 4 milk bars in the
University with affordable food and beverages.

The University has started a solid waste
management program within the university. As part
of the program, the University produces high quality
compost and sells part of them to external buyers
and generates income to the University. In addition,
this compost unit acts as a model for Pradeshiya
Saba and other universities for compost making. It

Title: Impact of Social Protection on
Sustainable Development Goals

Name: Dr. G.K.R.Jayaweera, Senior
Lecturer, Department of Economics,
Faculty of Social Sciences

Type of Work: Research
Contribution Level: National

Description: Dr. Roshini Jayaweera
together with a team of academic staff
attached to the department of
Economics, Faculty of Social Sciences
is involved in an AHEAD funded
research project titled “Impact of
Social Protection on Sustainable
Development Goals.”. The research
periodis from 2020 to 2022. The project
is funded by the World Bank.
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gives knowledge to local farmers, who
have large- or small-scale planters or
owners of compost yards. It also gives
access to research students for doing
their research related to
composting.Moreover, the University has
a campus food waste tracking system in
which it has identified an average of
200kg of food waste per day. All the food
waste is collected separately and is
removed as piggery food for the piggery
farmers. Other than these food waste if
any food waste mixed with any other
waste types, on average 650kg, is
transferred to the Municipal Council
waste collection.
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Interventions

Name: Ms. N D Dantanarayana,
Lecturer (Probationary), Department
of Disability Studies, Faculty of
Medicine

Type of Work: Symposium in Audiology
as a continuous professional
development activity for
undergraduates and graduates who are
currently working as audiologists

Contribution Level: Local

Description: An Audiology Symposium
on "Recent Advancements in
Audiological Assessments and
Interventions" was organized by the
Department of Disability Studies along
with the 30th Anniversary Celebrations
of the Faculty of Medicine. This
symposium was held on the 30th of
October 2021 and resource persons
included one local speaker who is an
expert in the field of audiology in Sri
Lanka and 2 foreign speakers who are
university professors in audiology from
India and New Zealand. Undergraduate
students in audiology, practicing
audiologists and other interested
groups participatedin this event.
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that Ayati (meaning 'Hope' in Sanskrit)
was set up to help significantly improve
their quality of life and independence and
provide them with the opportunity to
develop and blossom.

The AYATI center is built within the
premises of the Faculty of Medicine,
University of Kelaniya, located in Ragama.
The Centre, which has been designed by
the renowned architect Channa
Daswatte, spreads across a two-acre land
in Ragama with a 42,000 sq. floor area.

Services at this center are provided
primarily by the Faculty of Medicine
University of Kelaniya, the Ministry of
Health and with the collaborations of
Ministries of Education and Social
Services. The multi-disciplinary services
provided at the Ayati centerincludes,

« Audiology

« Education

* Medicaland health

*  Occupational therapy

*  Physiotherapy

*  Psychology

+ Social welfare

« Speechandlanguage therapy
+ Telehealth
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Title: A parental education program
and a hearing screening for children
with Down's Syndrome

Name: Ms. N D Dantanarayana,
Lecturer (Probationary), Department
of Disability Studies, Faculty of
Medicine

Type of Work: Project

Contribution Level: Local
Description: A parental education
program and a hearing screening for

children with Down's Syndrome were
organized by the Department of

Benefactors in the form of generous
business giants and philanthropists such
as Hemas Holdings, MAS Holdings
contributed towards the cause and Sri
Lankan Cricket legends Kumar
Sangakkara and Roshan Mahanama
joined hands to raise funds for this
national level cause. The Sri Lankan Army
also contributed by providing the labor
required for the construction of the center.
The AYATI Centre, which is designed to
serve children with disabilities, was
estimated to cost approximately 450
million rupees. The ongoing management
of the center is overseen by the Faculty of
Medicine, University of Kelaniya.

Services at this center are provided free of
charge for Sri Lankan nationals.

The center possesses highly skilled
personnel who can handle any complex
task pertaining to glass blowing. The
fabrication of specially designed scientific
glassware is a special service offered by
the center. This is the only scientific glass
blowing center currently established in
the country.

In addition, training programs are
conducted by the center to disseminate
scientific glass blowing skills to interested
personnel from other universities,
institutes, schools and entrepreneurs.
The center also manufactures ornamental
glassware such as gifts and souvenirs.
However, priority is given for
manufacturing scientific glassware due to
the lack of human resources.

Disability Studies and the Ayati
National Centre for Children with
Disabilities of the Faculty of Medicine
of the University of Kelaniya to
celebrate the World Hearing Day 2021.
This program was organized with the
World Health Organization (WHO)
along with the WHO objectives for the

World Hearing Day 2021. This project GENDER
was held onthe 3rd of March 2021.

SDG 05: GENDER EQUALITY

EﬂUAl"Y The University adopts the strategies indicated in
the book “Preventing Sexual and Gender-based
Violence (SGBV): Strategies for Universities”. The
University of Kelaniya has a Center for Gender
Studies, directed by Dr. E. A. D. Edirisinghe to
promote gender equity and equality. The Center for
Gender Studies is the first ever gender center
establishedin Sri Lankan public sector Universities.

SDG 04: QUALITY EDUCATION QUALITY

As a state University, the University of Kelaniya EDUCA"[]N
offers free education to its students up to the

undergraduate degree and additional financial aid
is provided for those who are in need. In addition,
the University offers several first-degree programs
(part time/ external degree programs) at affordable
costs and certificate level programs and diploma
programs are offered for those who are not
attending a university.

“Professor P A S Edirisinghe, Cadre Chair, Department of Forensic Medicine,
was nominated as 16 USAID's Heroes All Over the World for Activism Against
Gender Violence Campaign 2014”

Glass Blowing Center

Her work on women and children subjected to violence in Sri Lanka has been recognized
by the USAID and nominated as 16 USAID's Heroes All Over the World for Activism
Against Gender Violence Campaign 2014.

The glass blowing center at the University of Kelaniya provides an excellent service in the
manufacture and repair of scientific glassware for laboratory use. This includes the
fabrication of totally new special purpose scientific glassware as required for research
and the repair of expensive broken laboratory glassware.
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SDG 07 AFFORDABLE AND Technology premises. This building will be built at a cost of Rs. 4.3 billion under the project

Science & Technology Human Resource Development Project, Asian Development Bank.
CLEAN ENERGY

The Faculty of Medicine, University of Kelaniya has .
established the Green Practice Committee (GPC) to SDG 13: CLIMATE ACTION CLIMATE
The University of Kelaniya is the first Sri Lankan AG"DN

plan, implement and oversee its sustainability
activities. Belng a Faculty of MquCIHG, good health national university that adopted an environmental
under all circumstances is our primary concern and . .
policy, and as such it expects to demonstrate the
theory and practice of sustainability through taking

therefore we extend our mission beyond the
physical borders of the Faculty and reach our action to understand and reduce the unsustainable
impact of its own activities. In this context, the

community with the theme “Sustainability for a
University of Kelaniya has planned to reduce its

healthier future”.

energy consumption and hence to reduce its carbon
Title: Carbon neutralization by footprint by adopting energy conserving strategies.
increasing the efficiency of renewable The Green Society of the Faculty of Medicine,
(solar) energy conversion system University of Kelaniya has taken several initiatives
towards energy conservation and as part of this effort, a webinar was held under the
theme “Energy Conservation: opportunities and challenges” on the 4th of August 2021.

Name: Dr A L A K Ranaweera, Senior
Lecturer, Department of Physics and
Sslilies Title: Climate Resilient Integrated Water Management Project (CRIWMP)
Upeertisile Researd Name: Dr. S A N P Sakalasooriya, Senior Lecturer, Department of Geography,
Faculty of Social Sci

Contribution Level: Local SOl el Sl
T f Work: Project
Description: Research work toward ype ot fork:Frojec
Carbon neutralization by increasing
the efficiency of renewable (solar)
energy conversion system

Contribution Level: National

Description: Dr. S A N P Sakalasooriya was the Leader of the Divisional Planning
Team for compiling and editing the Hotspot Area Agricultural Development Plan
(HSAADP) of the North-Western Province, Climate Smart Irrigated Agriculture
Project (CSIAP), a World Bank Funded Project, which the Ministry of Agriculture is
implementing in Sri Lanka. He has conducted much research for and compiled
several reports of UNDP projects, especially the final report to GCF of the midterm
evaluation of GCF-funded Climate Resilient Integrated Water Management Project

SDG 11: SUSTAINABLE CITIES 1 ,.@,[.:.:;} {l UABLECITIES (CRIWMP).
AND COMMUNITIES { o ECITIES

An agreement has been signed between University

AND COMMUNITIES

of Kelaniya and Green Building Council of Sri Lanka - N
on 14th of October 2021 at the Vice-Chancellor's = |
Office of University of Kelaniya. This agreement has R . r.‘C
been signed related to the evaluation of receiving y Ya s [t
the platinum rating issued by the Green Building ™ | _ _ | ™= ==
Council of Sri Lanka for the proposed building i [ ‘l” FJ:“:H_'_'_'

complex on the Faculty of Computing and
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SDG 15: LIFE ON LAND |

Solid Waste Separation and Storage

1 = LIFE
) ONLAND

The Green Practices committee initiated a solid
waste management program in 2014. The solid
waste management program includes waste
separation, waste collection, and the direction of N\
recyclable waste for approved waste recyclers.
More than 250 bins with standard color codes
(Green for organic wastes, blue for paper, orange for
polythene, red for glass) for different waste types
are placed in the university premises for waste
collection.

B
—
e
|
|
S

-

Rainwater Harvesting

The University of Kelaniya has a rainwater
harvesting system with a total capacity of
60,000 L which was implemented on July
28th, 2015. The water collected is used for
the Compost Yard, Plant Nursery,
Gardening, and cleaning of equipment
used by the Landscape Division.

Biogas Production

There are two biogas units in the
University. The biogas unit | is at the
Faculty of Medicine (Volume - 5000 L)
which is used in the faculty canteen for
preparing food. The biogas unit Il is at the
Base canteen (Volume - 500 L) which was
established and managed by the
Departments of Zoology and
Environmental Management as a pilot
project.

Solid Waste Management Project

Title: naerobic Soil Disinfestation (ASD)
to control soil borne plant pathogens for
the firsttime in Sri Lanka

Name: Prof. R N Attanayake, Professor,
Department of Plant & Molecular
Biology, Faculty of Science

Type of Work: Research
Contribution Level: Global

Description: Prof. R. N. Attanayake who
is attached to the Department of Plant
and Molecular Biology of the Faculty of
Science is involved in the project on
Anaerobic Soil Disinfestation (ASD) to
control soil borne plant pathogens for the
first time in Sri Lanka. The project was
funded by NSF, Sri Lanka. The project is
directly related to the SDG goal 15- Life
onland.

The University of Kelaniya has initiated composting projects to make the university
environment a beautiful and better place. There are two compost yards in the University.

Unitlis atthe Faculty of Medicine and Unit Il is atthe landscape division.

The compost production at the Faculty of Medicine: The building was donated by the

Central Environmental Authority and was operational since December 11th, 2013. The

composting in Compost Yard Il, commenced on September 14th, 2015. Compost is

produced using garden wastes received from the daily accumulation from the university

premises.
Gliricidia maculate, Tithonia diversifolia (Mexican Sunflower), Crotalaria juncea (Sunn
Hemp) has been planted within the area as a Nitrogen source, in order to maintain C:N }

o
-

ratio of the compost. These composts are now being used for the fruit and vegetable
garden. / |

T
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UNIVERSITY OF KELANI¥A e
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

ST

1nln
For the year ended 31® December in LKR Note 021 020
Hestated) gt 31" [ecemb RR N 2021 et
{ A ecember in LK ale 2 (Restated)
NVENU
REVENUE ASSETS
Giovernment CGramts - Recurmeny 4 4,1 28,000, 00 4,085 (000,000 NONCCUHRRENT ASSETS
Grovernment Grants - Rehabilitations & Improvensents |4 Ch0 ORE 26671841 | Property Plant & Equipment 14 12,693 376,976 | 2055238 578
Library Books & Cloaks 1% 19,953 553 12 5KT. 75T
Internal Income 5 1. 250051520 1. 380,421 505 5 3
Capital Work in Progress I 2.513.229.838 270,265,323
Amortization of Govemment Grants & TDonation 505,540,598 44 GRE616 Intanaible Asset: 17 G022 104 18,790,503
Grants - Mahapola 10, 1 44 600 1138 500 Financial Assets 18 4,085,645, 186 L 752 118,898
Cienmts - Hursary 97 944,000 6 BA6, 000 1932 ITR.TIT 17019 807,002
[ NT ASSETS
Cirant - STHRD Project 74 8471 70 6106154 URRENT ASSET
Invemorics 1% 40,200 794 18251750
Yonations iy Endowment finds 441 800 500,000 . PR TP 107 %3 .
Diorntion Endowment fund 4418 Sundry Debtors & Receivables W 17454 638 103 K8 812
Externai Ressarch Cirants 6Z167.470 63172014 Advances 1o Stafl z 957,730 1,323 B97
TOTAL REVENL 6, 182,708,178 6,059,907 .201 Advances & Prepayments 22 B4 3,872 151,767 386
EXPENSES Cash & Cath Equivillenis 21 429,71 658 360279207
Personal Emoluments & LML TN, 702 s 810 [0 s2 .'.T?J'Tf?ﬂ,dnﬂj . 'ﬂ‘j‘l‘j.‘f,ﬂSJ
: . TOTAL ASSETS 20,095,358,410. 17965258, 113
Travellmg Expenses b 354,620 3 40T 440
K % 0GR 0815 60K -
Supplies 8 3,996,582 80,813,609 EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Maimenance Expenses ¥ 1.197 27698700 EQUITTY
Cantractiil Services 1 1300 Shd 068 174 K77 317 [Hifered Capital Grands 24 5. 308 452 809 5. 400681 100
. | Girants Lindpe 25 137.0K0%, 10 217312250
Other Recurrent Expenses i 104,620,431 86,164,725 e E W - '
Ciabinet \F!Fr.-\.::!“'.llldluu Project 4 L0171 848 17407275
Frovinon for Ciratuity 195,684,243 217991 302 Fund =0 AL e F .
Expenditure on Fee « lewy ing Courved/Special servides 176331 856 14R.25 ] oG Hevalusuon Sumius 519,547 B.129.3M.47)
: v : Rewmined Exrning SRS THM 2T 154312007
Expenses from Development fund 2 V8. 833,103 114,447 250 r
Ppy o Meveiog ' 16,021,608.463 11791 18,140
Relishiliation & Improvemem Expenses 14 569 986 934401 RESERVES & RESTRICTED FUNDS
Depreciation TRZARR.E3 6HX3.21R 362 Intermal Restricted Fund I S 781,124 LITL018,147
Amortization of Imangible Asscts 97T 42 10,774,746 Endowment Funds ) 22 B75.783 20,934 987
SEAre " 9 |36 16K (12 7
Experises - Burary 92,944,000 66,856,000 AERERIR STt = e b ctol
Income Received m Advance LFi ) 915767159 62471536
Fxpertses - Mahapola 104,134,600 B3, 138300 409,592,952 2071453810
STHRD Project Expenditure 13 12362.731 19, 154 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
External Research Grants 62 167470 65.172.014 Provision for Retiting Ciratuity 3l 1271839011 1397 443 943
TOTAL EXFENSES 6,046, 530,931 5,750,661 516
CURREAT LIABILITIES
SURPLUS{DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 11587214 409 245,685 Refundable Deposil 32 102,204,935 143178810
Accried Expemses & (ther Payables i 1, 113,019 | R0 061 398

rovrribly of Eslanrea - Ninancial Salemes il
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These Financial statements have been prepared & presenzéd o complizhcewith Public Sector Accounting

Stanclurds issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of S Linka

/

| [ |
: | “‘r “f
. IJJ{: ".-’.'fnerﬂ_g =

A
UTAMED. Tennakoon

Bursar
L W 1 D TENNAKDL
BURSAR

The Couneil Members are responsible for the preparation & presentation of these Finaneinl Statements

Signed for and on behalf of then Coungil

tl"'.' | I.I__ ANETES

Senior Prof. Nilanthi de Silva
Vico-Chancellor
Prof, Milanthi de Silva
Vice-Chancellor
University of Kelaniya

Kelanoya, SmLanka

Prof. Arpyvgs 3 Jayarmaha

Council Member

University of Kelaniya

Dr PN DY Fenundo

Council Member

For the year ended 31" December

CASH FLOWS FROM DFPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplius/ Deficit) from Operating belivilies
Adjustments

Depreciation

Interest From Investments

Provision For Gratuity

Amortization of Government Grants & Donatjons
Amortization of Intangible Assets

Government Grant-Rehabilitation and Mainlenance

Income Contributed to University Funds™Non Monitory
Adjustment

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities before Waorking
Capital Changes

( Increase ¥ Decrease in' Inventories

{ Increase ) Decrease in Sundry Deblors & Receivables
(IngrenseVDecrease in Loan & Advances to the Siall
(IncreaseVDecrease in Advances & Pre Pavments
(Increase)Thecrease in Accrued & (nher Payable Expenses

{Increase VTecrease in Deposits Refundahle

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities Aflter Working
Capital Changes

Ciratuity Payment

115,872,245

T32 488 639
(Z32.349.230)
193,684,243
(504.540,598)
9. 777.342

(14.569 086)

(4T4.249 B64)

(173.887.210)

531,426
237171532
I'l, 704 495
H5.4730.514
10,051,621

(A0 9TIRRIY

(124,765,503)

(83.421.176)

(Restated)

405,245,684

623 218 562
(362.07T.358)
217,991,307
(44].688.616)
10,274,786
{26934 411)

{306,901.483)

123,126,466

2986, 707
(70, 110.309)
5,603,293
19.509.584
{19.101.293)

(372674}

50,941,774

(077432924}

February 28%, 2022 Net Cash Flow From Operating Activilies 20N, 186,679) (46,491.150)
- - T T Unyeruty of Eeliibya - Nesancwal Statepests 2007 ) i
Unibeersity af Kelaniys - Financinl Safenents 2021 k|
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Notes, Comprising A Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other
Explanatory Notes - 2021

1. Corporate Information

1.1. Reporting Entity

The University of Kelaniya, situated at Dalugama, Kelaniya, Sri Lanka, is a fully
government-owned higher educational Institute established under the Universities Act No. 16 of
1978 and subsequent amendments to it. The University is functioning under the Ministry of

Education.

1.2. Nature of Operations and Principal Activities of the University

The University consists of Seven Faculties: Faculty of Commerce and Management Studies,
Faculty of Humanities, Faculty of Social Sciences, Faculty of Science, Faulty of Medicine, Faculty

of Computing & Technology, and Faculty of Graduate Studies.

Its Vision is to become a Centre of excellence in creation and dissemination of knowledge for
sustainable development. The main activities of the University are teaching, learning and

promoting the research. The objectives of the University are as follows:

e To create high quality and flexible teaching and learning environment

e To develop the highest quality faculties and staff to attain the strategic goals of the
University

¢ To create a multi-disciplinary research culture of global standing

e To improve the image of the University by widening the range of economic and social
cngagements

* To develop an excellent system of governance through the efficient and effective

administration and financial management

1.3. Date of authorization of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements were authorized to issue by the Council of the University at its special

council meeting, which were held on 23™ February 2022.

Annual Report & ecounts 2021 131

1.4. Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such internal control as
the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. Components of Financial

Statements are as follows:

o Statement of Financial Performance

¢ Statement of Financial Position

e Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity

¢ (Cash Flow Statement

¢ Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amount

e Notes, Comprising a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory

Notes

1.5. Reporting period

The financial period of the University represents twelve months from 1% January 2021 to 31%

December 2021.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

2.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial
Performance, Statements of Changes in Net Assets / Equity, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of
Comparison of Budget and Actual amount as well as Notes, Comprising A Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes. These statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) Volume 1, 1T & 111
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and adopted by the University Grants
Commission by its Financial Circular Letter No. 2/2018. The accounting policies adopted are

consistent with those used in the previous financial year. However, Sri Lanka Accounting
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Standards { LKAS) also have been used in the wreas where no Public Sector Accounting Standards

are available

2.2, Basis of Measurement

The Finuncial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and applied consistently.
No adjustments have beer made for inflationary factors affecting the Financial Statements except
for the property, plant and equipment measured at fair value and retirement benefit obligations
measured based on the actunrial valuation method. The specific policies are explained in the

succeeding notes.

2.3, Going Concern

Financial Statements huve been prepared on the sssumption that University is a going concern
The Council has made an assessment of the University's ability to contmue as a going concern in
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Council is nol aware of any materinl uncertninties that
may cast significant doubt upon the University's ability to continue s s going concern. They do
not intend either to liquidate or cease operations of the University. Therefore, the financial

sttements continue 1o be prepared on the going concemn basis

2.4, Accrual basis of Accounting

The Financial Sutements, except for information on the Statement of Cash Flows, have been
prepared following the neerual basis of accounting.

2.5, Functional und Presentation Currency

The finuncial statements have been presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR), which s the
University's functional and presentation currency

2.6. Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items have been presented séparately in the financial statements.

ltems of dissimilar nature or function have been presented separately unless they are immaterial,

Univervidy of Nelannra - Tiranciad Staements 2021
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2.7. Comparative Information

Comparative information, including quantitative, narrative and descriptive information as relevant,
is disclosed in respect of previous Financial Statements. The presentation and classification of the
previous year's Financial Statements are amended, where relevant for better presentation and to be

comparable with those of the current year

2.8, Rounding

All financial information presented in Sri Lankan Rupees has been rounded 1o the nearest rupee
excepl when' otherwise indicated as permitted by the Sri Lankn Public Sector Accounting
Standards.

1.9, Offsetting

Assets and Liabilities or income and expenses are not offset unless required or permitted by Sri
Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards

210, Transaction of foreign currencies and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where Hems are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign

currencies are recognized in the income statement

3. Summary of significant Accounting Policies
3.1. Application of SLPPSAS

The University has followed the SLPSAS when preparing and presenting financial staternents of

the University for the yvear 2021

3.2, Changes in Accounting Policies

No significant changes in accounting policies taken place during the vear under roview

University of Kelaniya -« Financial Ststements 2021 1
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3.3. Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

Preparation of the financial stastements of the University requires the management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions, which may affect the income, expenditure, assels,
liabilitres, and disclosure of contingent assets & contingent liabilities as at the end of the financial

yvear,

3.4. Assets and Basis of their Valuation

J4.1. Property, Plant & Equipment

The University applies the requirement of SLPSAS 07 on ‘Property. Plant & Equipment” in
gecounting for its owned assets which are held for and used in the provision of the services or for
administration purpose and expected to be used for more than one vear. Property, Plant &
Equipment (PPE) includes Lands, Buildings & Improvements, Office Fumiture, Office
Equipment, Lab & Teaching Equipment. Motor Vehicles, Water & Electricity Supply Scheme,

Library Books and Periodicals, Cloaks, Machinery and Other Assets.

342, Basis of recognition
Property. Plant and Equipment is recognized il it is probable that future economic benefit

associated with the assets will flow 1o the University and cost of the sssel can be reliably measured

3.4.3. Initial recognition

Property, Plant & Equipment are initially recognized at cost including the cost of purchase with
any incidentnl expenses incurred in bringing the ussets to 1ts working conditions for its intended
use, subsegquent 1o initial recognition, property plant and equipment are measured 8t cost less

accumulated deprecintion and accumulated impairment loss

J4.4. Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing component of an item of property, plant & equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the tem if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
part will Mow 1o the University and 115 cost can be measured relinble. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition policy given below.

The costs of the repair and maintenance of property. plant & equipment are recognized in the

Statement of Financial Performance as incurred
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3.4.5. Derecognition

'he carrving amount of an item of propeny. plant & equipment is derecognized on disposal; or
when no future economic benelits are expecled from its use. Any gnins and losses on
derecognition are recognized (calculated as the difference between the net disposals proceeds and
the carrying amount of the assets) in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Gains are not ¢lassified as

evenue

3.4.6, Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of Financial Performance on the straight-line basis on
each component of an item of property. Plant and Equipmemt other than frechold land.
Depreciation of an'asset bepins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that
the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is de-recognized

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows

Assels Category Estimated useful life
Buildings & Improvements 20 Years
Office Fumiture 10 Years
Office Equipment 05 Years
Lab & Teaching Equipment 05 Years
Motor Vehicles 05 Years
Water & Electricity Supply Scheme 10 Years
Library Books & Periodicals 035 Years
Cloaks 05 Years
Machinery 05 Years
Mher Assets 05 Yenrs

The assels residual values nnd useful life nre reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, as assets carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount il the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the procecds with the carrying amount

and gain/{Loss) is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

1‘|::'.-':1..'!:, of l.'l1r..:.1. Tiancal Siatememnts 2021 12
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3.4.7. Legal cases against the Properties
Mhaugh the absolute ownerahip is vested with the University of Kelanivi, there are pending Court cases

against following two plots of linds donated to the University

Property

Legal case

"-ll""J-'L]UL‘TH accumulated iII'IT'I.I.iIIIh‘r'lt losses. These clusses of assets are revalued at a frequency of
once in every five vears
Carrying value of property, plant & equipment and imangible assets are reviewed ut each reporting

date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment if any such indications exist, then

Lot B of Damminnagahawatta in |
District Court Marawila Case No. 133871
Dummaladeniva (Donation)

Extent - R:0] P:23.33- Filed by third against the University and the Registrr, claiming
cownership o the lond called Dummaladeniva situated in
Wennapuwa belonging to the University. The value of the action is
LKR 4,005,000
Thalagollawatta  Land in | District Court Gampaha Case No. 1225/L
Ragama Thalagolls {Donation)
| Extert - H: 4.5916 | Filed by owutside against the Universiy, the Vice-Chancellor, and
the Registrar. calming title to part of the Ragama Medical Facully
property, which is state land, handed over to the Umversity by the
{ Drvisional Secretary. Jacla Tor the purpose of the Uniiversity The

valie of the action 15 LKR 1,000, (0/-

J.4.8. Heritage Assels

[he University of Kelaniyva processes several Heritage Assels such as Historical Artefacts found
during archeologicil excavation carried out by the Department ol Archology, the Faoculty of Social
Sciences. A collection of old coins and books in the Main Library and a collection of anciemt ola

leaf manuscripts maintained by the Depariment of Library and Information Sciences

3.4.9. Cost Model
After recognition all the Property Plamt and equipment except the classes of Land are carried o its

cost less accumulated depreciation. Lands are carried at ils cosls

J.A4.10. Revaluation Model
After initial recognition below classes of Property Plunt and equipment (Lands, Buildings, Cloaks,
Meonor vehicles) whose fair value can be measured relinbly has been carried at revalued amounts,

which is fair value al the date of revalustion less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
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the assets recoverable amount is estimated

amount of an assct éxceeds it recoverable amount.

stntement of financial pérformonces

Details of Revaluation of assets are as follows

31.12.2021

Revaluation surplus would be transferred to the general reserve at the

property
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An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying

Impairment losses are recopnized in the

KR
Drate of Carrying value Revalued Revalunation
Assels F Revalued by X amount of
revaluation ‘ ol assels surplus
| 5 L asscts
Lands 11122018 | Depanment of 1,155, 750,767 | 4.204,580,000 |  3.048.820,232
1|..|||;_|_',:||.r. |
Lands 01.01.2019 -do TOD, 210,000 FOO 210,000
Buildings 31.12,2018 i - 2.845,249,161 S375,839.000 | 2,530,589 838
Bulldings 01.01.2019 do 1R 599 00 118,599 000
Cloaks 11.12.2018 - do - E84.446 12,020,320 11,135 874
Vi 01.01.2018 ot » 37.838.603 114,540,000 87.101.357
Vehicles .
Lands 30122020 do SR.514.788 S4T. 160 000 188 645 2
I T 3

Buildings 31.12:2020 do 086218 62 250,000 23,023,781
Total 7,008,134 337
Revaluation surplus Balance as at L121.360.134
01012018
Revaluation surplas Halince as at 8,129,394,471

time of disposal of the
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3411 Investments

Investments represent investment in fixed deposits and savings sccounts, These investments have
been accounted in compliance with SLFRS 09, The investment in fixed deposits and savings
accounts have seen classified at amormized cost as per SLFRS 09, They are initinlly measured st
fair value and subsequently measured ot fair value less amorized cost by using effective interest

rate as required by SLFRS 09,

3.4.12, St2il Loans

The staff loans include Distress loan, Computer loan, Special Distress loan, Vehicle loan, Staff
loan and Vice-Chancellor Fund loans, The staff loans have been classified as financial assets at
amortized cost as per SLFRS (8. Impairment loss in any staff loan have been recognized on

expecied cost methoed as stipulated in SLFRS 09,

3.4.13. Capital work-in-progress
Capital expenses incutred on PPE which are not completed as at the reporting date are shown as
Capital Work - in — Progress and cost incurred on Capital Work — in — progress is transferred to

Property, Plant and Equipment when it is available for use

L4 Intangible assets

Computer software and online journals have been recognized as intangible assets when it is
probable that future econemic benefits thut are attnibutable to the assets will flow into the enterprise
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired are stated at cost less
pecumulated amonization and accumulated impairment losses. These costs ure amortized over o

period of § vears

3405 Current assets
Current Assets classified in Statement of Financial Position are those which are expected to be
realized in, or consumed in the University s normal operating cycle, expected to be realized within

twelve months after the reporting date or cash or a cash equivalent

1416, Inventories
Inventories are stated wt cost and determined on Firstin First out (FIFO) basis. Inventories mainly

comprise of stationary and spare parts. Inventores are for consumption and not for resale

Tivwrrany of Ecianmya - Tinancial 3tatemeris 20 |
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1417, Cash & cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and short term highly
liguid investments readily convertible to Known amounts of eash and subject to insigniftcant risk
of change in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash & cash equivalents include cash
in hand and deposits in banks. Investments with short term maturity of six months or less from the
date of acquisition are also treated s cash equivalents.  The cash Mlow statement is prepared based

on the indirect method

3.5. Accounting for government grants for capital expenditure

351 Recurrent grani

Recurrent grants are recopnized in the Statement of Financial Performance on cash basis. Cost of
rehabilitation of PPE and capital grants for construction and new work are recognized either ng

work in progress or Capital Assets where necessany

3.5.2. Contribution to capitul outlay from outside grants
The value of Propenty Plant & Equipment purchased out of generated funds & various project

funds were shown as “Contribution to Capital Outlay from outside Gramts™

3.5.3. Capital granis

Government Grants for the Capital expenditure has presented in the Financial Statements in
accordance with the LKAS 20 due o the absence of SLPSAS. According to the LKAS 20 Capital
Girants has been recognized as deferred income in the statement of financial position and amorntized

over the useful life of the asseét

J.6. Internally restricted funds
Internally restricted Funds include funds commitied for specific purpose. Faculty Development
funds represent the cumulative position of Faculties/Departments Funds with net unspent balances

at the vear end

3.7. Endowment Fund
Endowment funds include restricted donations received by the University and investment returns
generated from endowment funds which are wied in occordunce with the various purpose

c<tablished by the donors

Annual Report & ecounte 2021




Annual Report & rtecounts 2021

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AND ACCOUNTS

3.8. Taxes
381 Income Tax
University is:not linble to pay income tax on its income of the ordinary course of the business

according to the prevailing tax regulations

382 Value-Added Tax
University is exempted from paying Value Added Taxes according to the prevailing tax

regulations

383, Advanced Personal Income Tax (APIT)
The University currently remits APIT Tax deducted from monthly salaries of the employecs who
are linble for payment of income tax which is not a part of the University expenditure. Hence,

payvment of APIT tax is not accounted in the accounts of the University

3.9. Employee Benefits

3.9.1. Definitions

3.9.1.1. Short-term emplovee benefits

Short-term emplovee benefits ure expensed as the related service is provided. A liability s
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the University has a present legal or constructive
obligation 10 pay this amount as & result of the past service provided by the employee and the

obligation can be estimated reliably

3.9.1.2. Defined contribution plan

Employees are eligible for University Provident Fund (UPF) Contributions, Employees™ Trusi
Fund (ETF), University pension fund and contributions are in line with the respective statues and
regulations. The University of Kelaniya pays fixed comtributions on basic emoluments plus
cost-of-living allowances, academic allowances and monthiv compensation allowances of
employecs to the University Provident Fund, Emplovees” Trust Fund and University pension fund
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. This obligation falls
within the scope of the defined contribution plan SLPSA 19 on employment benefit. Obligation
for contribution to defined contribution plan are recognized in profit or loss as the related service

is provided,

U'ssiversity of Eelepiva - Foseponnl Stademsais 202)
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3.9.1.3, Defined benefit obligation
In accordance with the Gratuity Act Ne, 12 of 1983, a liability arises for a defined benefit
obligation to employees. Such defined benefit obligation is a post-employment benefit obligation

falling within the scope of SLPSAS-19 on *Employee Benefits’

3.9.1.4. Measurement of defined benefit obligation
The linbility recognized in the Statement of Financial Position is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the reporting date, The calculation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit method (PUC), Re-measurement of the defined benefit
linbility, which comprises actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Statement
ol Financial Performance, The LUniversity recognizes the increase in defined benefit lability
anributable to the services provided by employvees during the year (current service ¢ost) in
Statement of Financial Performance. The discount rte has been derived, and approximation of a
long-term interest rate of 11.5% p.a. (2020 = 11.0%) has been used to discount future linbilities.

The linbility is not externally funded.

39.1.5. Accounting Estimate

The actuarial valuition involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases
and montality rates, The complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term
nature, the defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All

assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date

Univenity of Kelamiva - Financial Stiilenmseity 202 ) 4
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3.9.2. Actuarial Valuation of Retirement Gratuity

An actuarial valuation was carried out ss at 31" December 2021 by Actusnal & Management

Consultents (Pvt) Lid, a firm of professional actuaries. The summatized report of the Actuarial

valuation 15 as follows:

Assumption

Finuncial
Rate of discount

Salary escalation rate

Academic

Non-Academic
Demographic
Momality
Retirement Age

Academbe

Non-Academic
Staff turnover rate

Academic
Non-Academic

Disability

Academic & Now=Academic

Sensitivity Analysis

11.5% pa.

Basic Salary and allowances
10.00% p.a.2021

Basic Salary and allowances: 8.00%

pa.

08.00% pa

Basic Salary and
allowances:07.00% p.a2020

Busic Salary and allowances:
300% pa.

A 1967/70 Mortality Table, issued by the Institute of Actuaries, London

65 Years
62 Years

1.00 % pa. scross the board up 1o
age 54 and thereafier 2ero
0.50 %6 p.a. ncross the board up to
age 54 and thereafler zero

10%4 of the Mortality Table

65Years

&0 Years

1000 %6 p.n. sacross the board up to
ape 54 and thereafier zero
0.50 % p.a across the board up to
age 54 and therénfter 2¢ro

1075 of the Morulity Table

Sensitivity Analysis of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation (LKR)

A one percentage point increase (+1%0) in the discount rate

A one pereentage point decrease (-1%6) in the discount rate

A one percentage point increase (+1%5) in the salary Escalation rate

A one percentage decrease (-1%) in the salary Escalation mate

Uniwerady of Kelunlyn - Founew] Sajements 202
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= 1,256,1 14.310
1,505,877, 386
1,506,743,433

1,253.533.720
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310, Liabilities and Provisions

Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities are stated at their book value
Provisions

Provisions wre recognized when the University has o present obligation as a result of o past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligations and relinble estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
provisions are shown under the accrued expenditure. The University arrives at an estimate on the
basis of an evaluation of the most likely outcomee. All known provisions have been accounted for

in preparing these Financial Statements,

J.11. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A contingent liability is a possible abligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
continued by the occurrence or non-occurmence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the programme or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation.

A contingent liability also arises in extremely ‘rre cases where there is o liability that cannot be
measured reliably. The uncertainly does not recognize a contingent linbility but disclose its
existence in the financial statement.

A contingent asset is o possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future evenis bevond the control of
thie University. The University does not recognize contingent assel but discloses it existence where

inflow of economic benefits is probable but not virtually certain,

Unilweraity of Kelordya - Flnancial Statemerds 202 b
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3.11. Revenue recognition
3121 Income from fee levving courses
Income from fee levying courses and other activities are recognized on accrual basis over the

period of course and degrees.

3.12.2. Finance Income
Interest income 15 recognized on accruing busis using effective interest rate method according 1o

SLFRS 09 due to the absence of SLPSAS.

3.12.3. Expenditure Recognition
Expenses incurred in carrying out all activities of the University are recognized on an accrual and

charged to the ststement of Financial Performance.

3124, Statement of cash Nows

I'he cash flow stutement has been prepared by the using the indirect Method in accordance with
the SLPSAS 2 whereby gross cash receipts and gross cash payments of operating activities, finance
activities and investing activities have been recognized. Cash and cash equivalents comprise shon
term, highly liguid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are

subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value.

4. Explanatory Notes
4.1 Accelerating Higher Education Expansion and Development Operation (AHEAD)
Project

AHEAD (Accelerating Higher Education Expansion and Development) Operation is another
World Bank funded project aimed at supporting higher education sector in the entire country from
2018 to 2023, The scope of this operation will be the higher education activities under the Ministry
of Higher Education, the UGC, and the 15 universities, SLIATE, ATls and non-state HEIs,

I'he Operations Technical Secretariat (OTS) at University is the apex unit at University Level to
facilitate the project implementation, headed by a Director and other staff handling Finance,
Procurement, Administration and Project Coordination. It is the responsibility of the project staff
al the OTS, 10 coordinate, monitor and facilitate project execution. Finance operations of the
project is handled by team headed by Director — Finance under the supervision of Director- OTS

The Operations and Monitoring Support Team (OMST) of the Ministry of Education. imegrated

Wirheeriity of Kelaihea - Paancul Slements 2021 21
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with UGC, is the apex body at national level to implement, coordinate and monitor the project

operation while extending technical, and operational expertise as and when needed.

Details of the project setivities carried out are us follows:

LKR

Main item 2018 2019 2020 2021 Total
Computer & Accessories 410,700 12,472,805 38,033 880 49,082,750 100,004,135
Furniture 2,124,650 6,984,720 4,080,868 25,743,534 38,933,772
Lab & teaching equipment 20,384,000 822,000 2.400,900 36,205,380 59,902,280
Office Equipment - 891,980 2218,728 9,240,903 12,351,612
Cther Equipment 39,500 1.106.87% 762.733 4,108,280 6,017,392
Plant & Machinery - - - 3,003,684 3,003,684
Air conditioner . - . 10,080,618 10,080,618
TOTAL 22,958,850 22278384 47497109 137,355,150 230,289,493

In addition to that, OMST of the AHEAD Operation in coordination with UGC initiated a plan 1o
provide financial support to the University to pay the expenses incurred for the procurément of
equipment and civil work regarding the “Additional Infrastructure required to facilitate
Additional Student Intake — Academic year 20192020 under this armangement University of
Kelamya utilized Rs. 86,408,501,

4.2 Science and Technology Human Resources Development Project

The Science and Technology Human Resource Development Project mded by the Asian
Development Bank (ADB) supports the governmem to develop technology faculties in three
unversities vie. University of Kelimiva, Rygiirmta Umiversity of Sei Lanka and Sabamgamuwa
Liniversity of Sri Lk, amd the Faculy of Engineering at the University of Sl Juvewardenepura
to nurture a new breed of technology-oriented graduates equipped with morket-relevant skills and

Uilll‘t.'i"fl:lli.'i.lrl;hl spinl
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The Faculty of Computing and Technology of the University of kelaniya has been allocatied a total
sum of 'S 2.2 Million under this project and o further sum of USD 10 Million s available for
the four universities 1o be utilizéd under competitive proposal basis;

The Faculty of Computing and Technology will utilize the ubove funding 1o constriict & building
;.4.'r|l|1|1!|.:\ at the pmrn-u.:d Mudun Ela p[:min:‘. progure books, soflware & eyuipment, tram the
staff. establish pannership progrummes with reputed international universities and  develop

collaborative programmes with the indistry

I'he overall project 1s monaged by the Project Management Linit (PMLU) established under the
Ministry of Education while the projeet coordination at the university level s hamdled by the
Project Implementation Uinit (PIU) headed by o/ Deputy Project Director. The responsibilities of
the PIL! includes monitoring and supervising construction of the faculty buildings and designing
and implementing project scrivities, including procurement of goods and services, within the scope
of the project 1o develop the faculty with assistance of the University Council/Senate and
university academic staff. Finance operations of the project is handled by team headed by

Director— Finance under the supervision of Deputy Project Director- '

Deétails of the project activities carried out are as follows

LKR
Dishursements
. Esti
Project Component e &:"'
019 2020 2021 Total
Construction of the
building complex forthe  3,690,000,000 1,006, 500,000 LA 100,000  2,148,600,000
fql.'u|l:.
Capital 16,628,023 04,183,820 57,560,126 168,371,968
i"rucf;r.:m: 720.000.000
mt of Goods
Recurrent . 1.896,354 17,543,201 19,439 555
Short Term Tmining 19,620,000 700,000 1,300,000 2,064). 000
Long term training 73,930,000 3,600,000 6,000,000 O, 600, (00
Total 4,503,600,000 16,628,023 1,106 880,174 1.124,503.326  2348,011,523

Urniwernity of Kelanmya - Financial
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4.3 Pending legal cases as at 31" December 2021

Pending legal cases as at 31* December 2021 as follows:;

District Court Gampuaha Case No. 6411/M

Filed by a member of the seademic staff of GWAIL agninst the former Senior Assistant Internal
Auditor of the Liniversity, claiming compensation for damages alleged to have been caused to the
said member academic stafl by the action tiken apainst him on the basis of an audit investipation,

Composition claimed is LKR.S0,000,000/-,
District Court Colombo Case No, 3785/16/DMR

Filed by the University against a member of stafl who acted in violation of the agreement he had
entered in to with the University for the purpose of granting study and against the two sureties to
.|

the bond. The University is seeking to recover a sum of Rs.3.233,787.70 in this case

District Court Colombo Case No. 289619

Filed by the University against a member of staff who had acted in violation of the agreement he
had entered with the University for the purpose of granting study leave und against the two suretics

to the bond. The | Iniversity is seeking 1o recover 4 sum Rs.5.919.751.55 in this case.
District Counrt Colombo Case No. 2515/19

Filed by the University against a member of stafT who had acted in violation of the agreement he
had entered into with University for the purpase of granting study leave and against the two sureties

i

to the bond. The University is seeking to recover a sum of Rs.8.472,381.49 in this case
District Court Colombo Case No, 2514/19

Filed by the University against a member of staff who had scted in violation of the agreement he
had entered with the University for the purpose of granting study leave and against two sureties (o

the bond. The Liniversity is seeking to recover a sum of Rs.7,194,538.80 in this case
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LT/ 31/68/2020 4.7 Events After Reporting Date

_ . _ WO circumsiances have ansen sinee the reporting date which would require adjustments or
One of the retired sub warden what was interdicted by the University with effect from 03.10.2017 : ) .

. . , disclosure in the Finbneial Statements other than disclosed below

and whose service was terminated by the University as per decision taken by the Council at its
478th meeting held on 11.02.2020, has filed this case calming a reasonable compensation. Phe retirement age of the non — academic staff have been increased from 60 years to 62 years with
. effect from 1® Janvary 2022
I'wo pending legal cases against the properties had been reported under the sub heading 3.4.7

Related Party Disclosures

The University carmied out ransactions in the ordinary course of business on an amm’s length basis
with parties who are defined as Relnted Parties as per the Sn Lanks Accounting Standard -LKAS

24 on “Related Party Disclosures™

And there were no transactions enteted into by the University with the organizations where

Council members are Key Managemeni Personnel of those organizations

4.4 Presentation of Budget

The budget of the University is prepared based on sccrual basis of accounting. Classification basis
adopied in the budget is the nature of expenditure which is the same method followed in the
presentation of financial ststements of the University as well. The classification of income and
expenditure is done by the University as per the guidelines issued by the Treasury. Since the budget
and financial ststements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting, need for reconciliation of
budget and actual amounts does not arise. The budget covers the fiscal period from Januvary 01 -
December 31, 2021, and includes all Faculties. Centers, Divisions and Units of the University

Statement of comparnison of budget and actual amounts are shown In Scparate annexure

4.5 Bond Violators

Asumof LKR 174,823,340 has been due from 28™ Bond violators as at 31 December 2022,

4.6 Mahapaola Grants for the Students
A sum of Rs, 162,077,605 has been paid to the students as Mahapola Grams during the year and

all these payments directly had been done by the Mahapola Trust Fund
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Sueh
_ . . 51 Other internal income Schedulc
For the year ended 31* December in LKR ' 2021 2020 N,
. . n Rent fi Properties h274.TX A49.625
Gavernment Grants_for Reciweeent Expenditiore e B Y , v s
Sale of Old Stores 602,252 460,990
Personal Emoluments 3.953,000.000 3,806, 500,000
Sale of Produce 315,993 142,474
Mhe o 750040 000 IR2. SO0, 00 - ; = .
(Other Recurrem | 75,0040 (NN 282 S0 ] Sale of Publications 343,500 121,400
Total 4,128,000,000  4,089.000,000 Library Fines 105,430 467,047
Medica! Fees 100 6,480
Ancillary Activities - Hostels 124,520 31917.825
=y IEI_W e Miscellaneous Income 5.1.1 118,611,979 43,087.210
== e e = e Y : g
ol Cehadiil Toral 126.378.703 54,863,081
Tternal Income i N
Tuition Fees {Undergmdunte) 1,551,437 23,230
S1.1 Miscellaneous income
Tuition fees (Undergraduate - Foreign) 53,533,885 18,764.17% = p—— -
Certificate Fees 3625679 | 644 303
Tuition Fees (Postgradunte) 16,122,660 17.366,13 Finas foe Cloaks 3750 41.800
Examination Fees (Undergraduate) 12,809,905 9AT3 427 Cloaks Hining §.250 43,550
Examination Fees { Postgraduaie) 150,058 12250 Hire of Vehicles 16,735
4 - 1 o 4 Registration Fees from Suppliers 315,250 489,600
Registration Fees (Undergradunte - Local) 4,637,653 3,162,055 E s ' PP
Convocation Fee 13,327230 8,966,550
pistrati &5 ( Postgraduat 1,376,000 1,623,000 . ,
Registration Fees { Postgraduate) : ) Posteraduite Libeiry Bhoomie 96.000 178.100
Interest from Investments 232349230 362,077,358 Application & Other Fee 9,216,825 4,700,314
Interest from Loans 5.417.386 5,720,485 Provident Fund Charges 4,499 858 3,168,284
i c T TR A SET Q% 1 : ;& ards 34,125 0,025
Giher rternat Theome 5 126.378.703 54.863.051 Library cards & Idemtity Card 4.1 40,0
= . . Dental Clinic Charges 6,350
Incomie from External Examination 52 163,300,433 361,329,655
Fine From Contractors 1.384.348 17.936
R - P (R, ¥ e e e Ea | A 371455471 3137800 205 , ) .
Income from Fee - levyving Courses/Special services 14364 37.890,20 (mher miscellaneous Income 86, 100,664 21,783,643
Transfer from Development fund 260,930,708 208,105,425 Total T18,611,979 43,007,210
University Contribution Seminar fees 36,990 2,048
Total 1,250,051,5200 1.380,421.5058
Unoveruty of Relaniya - Financul Staleme s 2021 25
Uitiseraity of Kelanlya - Financ@l Satements 20010 ..
Annual Report & ecounts 2021 151 Annual Report & ecounte 2021 152




FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AND ACCOUNTS

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AND ACCOUNTS

52 Income from external examinations (b) Non-Academic
Registration fees 19,033,000 9,290,400 Salaries & Wages 468.121.179 442 292 862
Extmination fees 13,834,700 90,224,300 Provident Fund 66.667.520 65,256,828
Certificate fees 554,550 324950 Penston 45,178,993 40673313
Postage fees 110,120 63,760 ETE 22 367.850 21.214.524
Seminar income 1,491,000 873,000 Acting Pay 808 438 536,055
Other Course Income 128,016,930 259,870,500 Over Time 27 444,125 26,055,709
~ertificate C ion fees 9 22 . :
Centificate Confirmation fecs 4,000 124,000 Holiday Payments 1.179.473 1,091,092
ID Charges 25,800 45,150 3 =
Cost of Living Allowance 84,999,003 B2, 508,053
Sundry income 3333 1.1%5 ’
R Special Allowances 20% 88.662.459 B4.476.225
Study Guide Fee 137,000 514,400
Reésearch allowance 12,982,135 9.157,126
Total fa63, 300433 J61,329.655
Additional Monthly Allowance 20% 191,555,529 188,248,968
Other Allowinces 10,507 362 9028851
3 Taotal 1.020,474,067 970,540,505
Personal Emldumeins Total (a)+(B) _{,il H"?‘”‘ Tﬂ 816,116,855
o) Acadenic I
Salaries & Wages 888,424,940 861.651.889
Providem Fund 206,068,379 201,560,910
Pension 111,504,971 104, 164,097
H E g am 4
ETF 63,538,516 61,120,270 Domustio 178922 307.011
Acting Pay 132.262
orel 1.17% 0% 2 00
Cost of Living Allowance 82823328 81711722 Foreign 115,596 2,200,338
Academic Allowances 1,168, 156,660 1,099, 181,085 Taral J 354,920 2,507 449
Special Allowasnce 2006 151,229,197 145, 168,057
Research Allowance 258,089,598 242,091,999
Vistting Lecturers Fees 17,999,047 19.223,31% £or i 'ig
Other Allowances 25,930,059 28,570,700 Supplies
Toua! 2.973, 764,695 2.845,576,330 Stationery & Office Requisites 14.773.510 0,174,050
Fuel & Lubricants 9.563,755 5,264,240
Uniform & Tailoring Charges 5.513.716 2.487.349
Mechanical & Electrical Goods 198,842 T2.116
Chemical & Glassware 8,103,268 9,202,344
Medical Supplies 170,102 |,334,679
Other Supplies 35,473,450 32,280,831
Tortal 931,906,682 B0.815.609
]
University of Kelaniya - linancial Satements 2021 9 ==
Unrveralty of Kelaniva - Financial Stalemmends 2070 20
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Vaintenunce Expenves

Vehicles 9,546,752 6.151.809 Special Services - Council & Commitiees 7,052,740 4,739,183
Plant, Machinery & Office Equipment 21,198,099 21,178.059 Special Services - Professional & Other Fees 54,000 45,000
Building & Swructures 1.844,637 45,038 Waorkshops, Seminars 2,990,941 2,982,408
Fumniture o leLe 323.800 Academic Research 2,670,447 1,872,543
Total 32,731,197 37,698,706 Staff Development 468,307 698,299

Holiday, Warrants & Season Tickets 1.163,653 80,447

Entertainment Expenses 3.573.050 2,079,600

e year ended 31 Dy Bank Charges 41,161 14,550
10 Contractual Services Awirds & Indemnities 150,500 127,500
Transport 66,250 161.061 Contribution & Membership Fee 2,092,527 4 634,582
Telecommunication 58,469 465 60,033,330 Cofvocation 5,740,834 a.808 528
Postal Charges 2442267 2513.%4 Examination 77.600.791 50 £52.80M
Electricity 63,439,023 76.207.323 Others - Newspapers, Magazines etc 630,747 1,130,874
Security Services 42,549,119 60,641,873 Field Trips 379173 2322977
W 14,621,698 A2 Students Development Initiative 11,560 56,180
i TR (GeaBle Fotal 106620431 86,164,725
Rent & Hire Charpes 41,644 003 20,781,067
Rates and taxes to local authorities 1,066,851 2.315,963
Printing. Adventising etc 15,893,447 24,543,850
Others 12,765,176 0,996,412
Tonal 230,564,968 JT4R7T2IT 12
Personal Emoluments 26,018,542 33,024,307
Travelling Expenses 71,700 910,887
Supplies 6,147,359 6,862,285
Maintenance Expenses 21,840,852 9.647,021
Contractual Services 22,316,513 12,854,927
nher Recurment 22 458337 49 147.823
Total 98,853,103 114447250
v - —— = a
University of Kelaniya - Puiasiclal Statements 202 31 University of Kelanrva - Tinancwl Statemersts 2020 b b
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As ar 31" December in LKR
Library Bopky & Cloaks

Description

Cost/Revalved Balance as at |* January
1071

Addition

Balance ss at 31" December 2021
Accumulated Depreciation Balance as at ¥
Jamuary 2021

Deprecintion For the Year

Balance as nt 31" December 202

Met Camrying amount as at 31% December
2020
Net Carrying smount as at 31* Decemnber
2021

Library Books &
Periodicals

349,722,283
| 1,924 655

261,646,938

134 546,718

>

| g3 05

346,500,513
15,175,565

15.146,425

Cloaks

12.020 320

12020320

4.808, 128

2.404 064

71212192

4,808,128

Total
61.742.603
11,924 6535
373,667.258

139.354 846

14357 859

22,387,757
19,954,553

Note: A sum of LKR 2,325 524 relating 1o 462 books had béen donated 10 the University Library and

those books had been included ds the assts additions during the vear

[

As at 31 December in LR
Cupiral Work in Progress

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add

Additions the dunng the year

Less

Amaount Capitalized during the vear

Balanmce at the end of the vear

ICTC Buildimg

Ten Storied Building
FCMS

CNCL.D Building

Faculty OF Medicine

New Lecture Theater Complex, Facuity of Science

Building for CKDU Information & Research Center

STHRD Project Building

Total

ity ol K laritva Financul Stalemrsts

lpnaal Report & #ecounts 2021

23,305,167

2513220818

16526931
15,003,438
18,348,996

135,998 (88

2. 148,600,000

2,513,229,838

20
1.482,068.586
67142811

1.279,206,074

270,265,323

165,269,317

81,690 819

23.305.167

270,265,323

159
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AND ACCOUNTS

Ay ar 31" December in LKR

Fririerrgeible Axsen

Cost/Revaloed Balance as at 1" January 2021

Addition During the Year

Balance as at 31" December 2021

Accumulated Amortization Balance as at 1" Janvary 2021

Amortization for the year

Balance as at 31" December 2021

Net Carrving amount as at 1" January 2021

Net Carrving amount as at 31" December 2021

Finmumeiol Asxefy

Investment

[Disiress Loans

Stafl Loans

I'ransport Loans
Computer Loans
Special Distress Loan

Vice Chancellor's Fund Loan

Provision for Impairment loss on staft loans

Total

Distress Loans
Balance m the beginning of the year

Add

Loan paid during the year

Less
HL‘L l.'-\-:.'lil;"‘- xil;['i!l!.‘ [|1L' :. eAr

Balance m the end of the vear

sy Of Kelannra = Funandial Sustements

52 333852

18.790 505

0022, 164

3.961 831,750
115,633,193
10,16l
1.301.836

2,397,025

2020

1,6016,%:7,134
126,496,027
146,540
5612973

2,863,025

TH,850

2371222
(43.652)
4,085.645,186 1.752.118.808
2021 2020

[ 26496027

318,741,218
165,237,246

49,604,052
115,633,193

275332641

J3.025. 906

160,558,607

34 062,579

126,496,027

160
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182 Stall Loans 2021 2020 As at 31" December in LKR 2021 2020

20 Suerdry Debtors & Receivablex

Balance ot the beginning of the vear 146,540 230, 830
Interest 115,284,805 289,281 447
Add ) ) )
Loan paid during the year 25 160 20.400 Mahapoln Scholarship 445,900 £7.393.700
171,700 241,230 Bursary 13,872,000 36,332,000
Less Receiverbles from President Fund (CRIUD) 26,730,317
Recovenes duning the vear 61,3540 94,6590 - T 7 00 T L
Recoveries duning the ye : Receiverbles from CDCT 27,790,301 8,251,661
Balance a1 the end of the year 110,160 146,540 : )
Sundry Debtors 3.331.316 2.3 HL.O0S
Toral 2T A54,639 393,828,812
183 Transpori Loans 2021 2020
Balunce at the beginning of the year 5612973 9124.71%
Add As at 31" December in LKR - aem 2020
Loan paid during the vetr 491 91 174 09 =
Loan paid during the yea 191,938 1,999 20 Aivances o Sraff
6,104,911 9.499.718 S o e
Festival Advances 65,153 890,703
Liss
Recoveries during the vear 2,803,075 3,886,745 Salary Advances 104,741 235,701
Balonce ot the end of the year 3,301,836 5,612,973 Specinl Advances 87,836 167,493
Fotal 957,730 1L321.897

184 Computer Loans 2021 2020

Add 22 dvances & Prepayments Sub Schadule No
Loan paid during the year 1,014,875 630,500 Advances for Supplies & Services 22-1 81,520,969 145,330,055
e
Less ST S Other Advances & Deposits a2=2 178,840 1,679,525
Recoveriés during the veur 1,480,875 1,562, 500 Prepayments -3 4,065,344 4,222,806
Balance at the end of the year 2. 397025 286,025 Depasits 22-4 571,720 335,000
Foral 86,336,872 151,767,386

i Ihmew 221 Advances for Supplies & Services Description T w020

Stationary 0,650, 144 31.025.107 === e
Research Advance 275000 1.253.250
Maintenance 14.517.175 13240 615 X .
Intermational Conférence Advance 618 845 1,985,107
STHRD Project Inventon 2 4B0. 470 o
' Miscellaneous Advance 2118276 00,805
Provision for Nonmoving, slow moving & Obsolete Stock (7.246.994) (6.017.971)
Statutory Boards & Local Authonties 0.920 06,920
Total 40, 200,794 I8.251,750
Capital Advance 8. 40 927 134,293,973
Total 81,520,969 145,330,055
eiiity of Keligiva - Pauanclal Salements 2021 7
L1
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222 Other Advances & Depasits e 2020
Fugl Deposit

P/B Kelaniya {7552) 055-1-001-5-D66T552 S0, 200

P/B Kelaniya (33040) 055-1-001-6-0667716 B.664, 630 12,818,772

External Rescarch Advance . R0, 000

P/B Ragama A/C (309) 316-1-001-0-4564263 1,190,072 286,430
Depanment Development Fund Advance - 17,064 P/B Ragama A/ C (2735) 31 6-1-001-9-4564816 131,030,232 75,278,544
Generated Fund Advance | 56,640 369,058 P/B Kelaniva (7782) 055 1-001-80669226 89,283,796 T.275,168
Confucius Institute Advance - 195,403 F/B NRFC AJC * 796-4-021-9.0227539 14.002 12,739
Advance for Research Centre-Social Sciences - 00,000 Confucius 055-1-002-2-0015067 3,991,749 11,003,011
Advance for Seeds Programme 168, 00H) P/B Kelaniva 0455-1-001-8-0017238 320,140
Advance for Gender Studies Programme 22200 F/B Kelaniva 055-1-001-4-0000867 1.310.403
Research Centre Development Fund Advance 150,000 P/B Kelaniva(1519) 055-1-001-3-0667553 83,490
Tatal 178,840 1,679,525 Collection AIC (CDCE) 055-1-002-0-0027655 100,000 100,000
; - Collection A/C (CDCE) 055-1-001-1.0027655 10,0040 100,004
AL reptymasty o0 NN P/B Kelaniya 055-1-001-4-0036795 25.000 475,000
Service Agreements 1,621,197 1,667,954 L SR
' P.B.Kelaniyva - CNCLD Project  055-1-001-9-0043504 5005, 500 -
Others 2444147 2,954 852
346,532,535  157.386485
Total 4,065,344 4,221,806
o Total (a+h) 429,229,658 Jal, 279207

. 2en 220

371,720 535,000

Fuel Deposit

2 Differed Capital Grant

Total 571.720 535,000

Cash i Cash Egjuivialenis

E—'—u—_i';

ATHE 5T

Balance as at 01" January
Capital Grant STHRD
Capital Grant AHEAD

5,460,682, 100

5.479.252,287
110,811,843
92,734,343

21 Sub Schedule No Pervious year Amortization (121,916,738)
Adjusted Opening Balance 5A460,682,100 5,560,881,735
Cah Ewiance = 429,220,658 360,279,207 Add
Toral Capital Grants spent duning the 165 587,644 163.620.870
29,229,458 J60,279.207 year ) ]
Donations received dunng the vear 3,358,562 856,111
Capital Grant STHRD 2,206, 160,126
= : Capital Grant AHEAD 137,555,150
23, Schedule 2021 2024 x .
G i - 2,712,661 482 364,476,981
{a) Cash Balances = Treasury Funds Less
P/B Kelaniya -A/C 1515 (1551001 -1-0667549 19.791,139 74,972,295 Pervious year Amortimtion 227,003 22 9KR 000
P/B Kelaniva-A/C 2721 055.1-001-8-0667616 S7.667.906 116,594 998 Previous vear adjustment 1,281,034.232 -
- Amortization of Grant for the Year 508,540,598 441 688,616
HB Rogama A C 30 316-1-001-2-4564262 5,238.078 11325429
P/B Ragama A s bl ! I ['ransfer to income 1019088944
§2,697,123 202,802,722
Sub Total 2.B804,8%), 773 464,676,616
(b} Cash Balances - Non-Treasury Funds = = = —=
3 . ot 5168 452 8019 5460 682 100
P/B Kelaniya 4844 (555-1-001 -8-0665084 106,673,723 48726419 Balance as at 31 Decomber 68,452,8 160,682,
Lipjiweresty of Kelavtya - i, Stetemeniy 2021 dd
Uinmvematy of Eclannya - Fnancml Saterments 2021 Ll
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23 L’ 'nrui'mn; f :*r
Balance as a1 01* January 217,312,290 131,464 984
Add
Fund Received During the year 120,000,000 308,000,000
Onher Fund Received 20,000,000 T4 744,411
35731229 514,209,395
Less
Rehabiliation snd Improvement (27.675,651) 76915911
Acquisition of fixed ascets (67.633,734) 139,794,918
Construction projects {117.669.682) 6T 402,811
Human Capital Development (2,045,048) 3.578.658
Strengthening Research (3,055,009) 5,801,847
Ohhers 2,227,159) 3,312,560
Sub Total (220,307,182) 296,897,108
Balance as at 31" December IJ?GEH I_Wi' I_I}'J I J,J;iiil'"

ahimet Approved Batlifing Profect Frnd
Balance as a1 01* January
Add

26 €

17,407,275

17,272,549 »

Fund/Interest Received 21122 134,726
Liss

I'ransfer to University
Developmient Fund

Halance as at 31" December

16,422,549

1,011,848 17.407,275

, Sub Schedule
27 Internal Restricted Funds " %

No
University Funds 27. 1,032,698,809 14,817,023
Funds Received for Special 27.2 373.882.995 237,752,380
Purpose
Other Reservies 27-3 28,199,320 20,048,744
Totwl 1334, 781,124 1172018147

Univegaliy of Kelanlyva - Minancial Siadémenits 2021
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171 University Funds

Liniversity Development Fund

G0th Anniversary Fund

Liniversity Welfare Fund

International Fellowship Fund

ICT Development Fund

(ireen Practice Sustainable Development Fund
Reseurch Center Development Fund-Commerce &
Manmagement

Research Center Development Fund-Humanities
Research Center Development Fund-Science
Research Ceriter Developmient Fund-Social Sciences
Research Center Development Fund-Medicine
Research Service Center Fund - Science

Research Council Fund

Social Seience Faculty Development Funid
Science Faculty Development Fumnd

Medical Faculty Development Fund

Commerce & Management Studies Faculty
Development Fund

Humanities Faculty Development Fund

Faculyy OFf Computing and Technology Development
Fund

Faculty Of Graduate Studies Development Fund
Cireen Envirenmental Fund

Ola Leuf Library Fund

Requesis of Microbiology

Requeits of Botany

Requests of Mathematics

Requests of Chemistry

Requeits of Physics

Reguests of Zoology & Envirenmental Mansgement
Requests of Industrial Management

Requests of ICT Centre

STHRD-Performance Guarnniee

Depariment Development Fund

Departmert Development Fund - Ficulty of Medicine
Improving Students Activities

COCDD Building Fund (MF)

Centre For International Affairs

Communication and Media Unit

Library deposit for Main Library

Library deposit for Faculty Libraries

Toral

Urtiversdty of Keladitya Tinancial Statemeni - 2001

Annual Report & ecounte 2021

w21
405,106,235

1175000

6,231,984
4,826,589

14,861 668

5,776,309
4.932,061
6,789,693
1215771
1275318
6.220.809
81,963,653
8,291,241
115.218.257

66,200,011
21,858,159
6.475.245

14,684,002
217,623
TAR4, 128
1,661,954
2309884

464,984

30,000
491,685
14,900
1,999,900
223,322,806
1.834.212
{220,128
2,517,521
1,124,063
2,631,695
6,613,324
3,567,904
1,032,698.809

2020
317,138,187
49,191,956
1,250,000
29,960,885
0.50%,997
4,834,824

7.955,719

4,430,483
1,537,756
4,080,609
851,541
1,292,403
14,034,972
77,245,252
3,989,208
79,335,160

68.777.213
15,714,672
6.475.245

13,992,726
217,623
T.484.818
2. 749,991
2.191.154
91,865

464 984
48.057
30,000

ARE BES
31,999,000
166,790,013
1,755,762
558,233
2,517,521
1,940,186
1631.695
4,851,543
2,405,904
914,817,023
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S ——— R — T A T W
Special Donations- Rev, Din O Gy - 5423868 W Emdo . b Schadide
Special Donations- Kong Meng San Phor Sarc See 1.026.890 3 dment Flnds Nev,
Monastery o Prize Funds 281 4,299,691 4,240 69
LIGC - QIG 4,148,700 Scholarship Funds 28-2 7.289,198 5,897,398
Students Relief Fund 1.757.100 1.659.910 Income Balance - Prize Funds 283 6,264 498 60927713
Vice Chancellor's Fund 10,386,332 27.103.797 Income Balance - Scholurship Funds 28-4 5,022,396 4,653,579
il - Other Funds 28-5 41,546
Bond & Agreements Violation Fund 153,218,666 118615724 Balance at the end of the year _IEE?_jjﬂl :ﬂ,?j'd" 987
Interest of Bonds & Agreement Violations 27933518 20,101,136
Ciratuity Fund 54.815.714 48.079 684 - _ = —=
E-Leamning Centre Fund 488 342 488.342 28.1 Prize Funds 20 2020
Vidya 2017 Science Exhibition Fund 25,000 25,000 Balance at the beginming of the year 24060 4240600
CKDU Information Research Ceéntre Fund 252,814 1 AT8.327 Add
CNCLD Project Fund- Medical Faculty 5,005,500 Dartions Reoceivesd During the your 50,000 '
Total 273882095 237,152,380 Balance m the end of the year 4,199 6491 4,249,691
373 Other Reserves 21 2020 Prize Funds - Description 2021 2020
Staff development fund - UGC 2,651,404 5.065.071 Prize "““‘_j'&“““i' 3.000 3,000
Medha Sri Anvawanse Prize Fund 2,500 2.500
Prosiency Exhibition fund 89,778 89,778 P.APA. Chandrasekara Prize Fund 2,833,044 2,833,944
Career Guidance Unit deposit 1.135,028 1.153.628 Prof. F.R. Jayasuriyva Prize Fund 15,000 15,000
Glass Blowing Unit deposit 1.004.735 TOR.085 M.A.P Manthriramine Prize Fund 5,004 5,000
. " TR g - ; Dr, P.D. Kannangara Prize Fund 15,900 15,900
Centre for Gender Studies Deposit 2,934 390 156,910 Dpet.of Ind.Mng. Prize Fund 108,347 108 347
Funds Received from Mahapola trust fund 2810403 2R10,403 Prof 10.). Wijeratne Foundation Prize Fund 142.000 142.000
Project for Special Degree 20,268 Rev.Pandith Mudukatuwe Sri Ganarama Prize Fund 50,000 50,000
Sead Programme 998279 1.139.873 Rev. Dr. K. Anuruddha Prize Fund S0,000 50,000
i ” . Derick De Soura Memorial Prize Fund 36,000 36,000
Internntionnl Conferences 6,228,148 5,366,026 Rev. K. Wangeesa Prize Fund 60.000 10.000
Other Deposits 10,347,097 5,338,700 Budhadass Galsppatthi Prize Fund 10,000 10,000
Total 28,199,320 20,045,744 Rev. Sik Vin Sin Prize Fund 100,004 100,000
Botany Society Prize Fund 60,000 60,000
Prof. A.S. Disanayaka Prize Fund 275,000 275,000
Prof. Carlo Fonsekn Prize Fund 1 06,000 106,000
Etsmen Kodak Prize Fund 50,000 S0,000
Prof” S.B.P. Wickramnsoonyn Prize Fund 75,000 75,000
Family Medicine Prize Fund 200,000 200,000
Prof. JK.P. Ariyaratne Prize Fund 100,000 100,000
Total 4.299.691 4,249,691
Uninteérsity of Kelaniva - Financial Statemiends I02 i3 =
Untiversity of Kelartyea - Financial Staternents 202 | 14

Aunual Report & ecounts 2021

Annual Repont & ecounts 2021




FINANCIAL INFORMATION FINANCIAL INFORMATION

AND ACCOUNTS AND ACCOUNTS

28.2 Scholarship Funds 2021 020 283 Income Balance - Prize Funds 2021 2020
Balance ot the bepinning of the vesr 20, i £.197 308 Balance at the beginning of the vear 6,092,771 SREI 440
Add | - Add
= = g Imerest income received dunng the vear 128.925 226,831
Donations Received During the year 1,891,800 500,000 Less -

Balance at the end of the vear 2,001,800 5897398 Prize Awarded During the vear 157,200 16,500
Balance at the end of the year _E..IM..-I-'J-" 6,002,771
Scholarship Funds - Description 2021 2020
PP Jayawardens Scholarship Fund 15,000 15,000 Income Balance - Prire Funds - Description 2021 2020
Perter Silva Scholarship Fund £,000 5,000 Dpetof Ind. Mng. Prize Fund -Interest 2,305 2305
[, Chithra Fermando Scholarship Fund 200,000 200,000 Prize Fund-Botany -Interest 6,742 6,379
Hawanpola Sri Rathanasara Scholarship Fund 1 00, 0N 1 00,000 Prof. F.R. Jayasuriyva Prize Fund -Inferest 16,102 13,883
Linus Silva Scholarship Fund 10,000 1 0,000 Medha Sri Arivawanse Prize Fund -Interest 6.635 11416
Agnug Peduru Scholarship Fund 132,063 132,063 Rev. K. Wangeesa Prize Fund -Interest 14,773 14223
Mary's Friends Schalarship Fund 100,000 1 00, 000 Rev. Sik Vin Sin Prize Fund -interest 203,363 197.613
Rathnakara Scholarship Fund [ 00,000 1 (0, (M) Rev. Ir. K. Anuruddha Prize Fund -Interest 220,404 254 272
Prof. H.H. Costa Memorial Scholarship Fund S00,000 SO0, 000 Budhadnasa Galappatihi Prize Fund -Interest 21.236 25361
5. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund 200,000 200,000 Prof. D.J. Wijeratne Foundation Prize Fund -Interest I, 488 282,728
Linus Silva/Agnus Peduru Scholasship Fund 54,274 54,274 Berick De Souza Memonal Prize Fund -Interest 21,008 21,518
Prof. Shelton Gunaratne Memorial Scholarship Fund 1,181,062 1LIR1.062 Botany Society Prize Fund -Interest 63,053 59.603
Rajamanthree Scholarship Fund 1 50 000 1 50,000 PA.PA. Chandrasekara Prize Fund -Intorest 4. 456 699 1309 668
Student Tnst S¢holorship Fund (HRM) 700,000 700,000 'rof. Carlo Fonsekna Prize Fund -Interest 111328 103,880
Prof P.Ranasinghe Scholarship Fund 2000,008) 200,000 Prof. A.S. Disanayaka Prize Fund -Interest 315,528 115421
W S karunathilake scholarship fund &40.000 650, 000 Prof. 5.B.P, Wickramasooriva Prize Fund -Interest 32 A5 13516
K.M.P Kulasekara Scholarship Fund 100, 400 | 040, GO0 Etsmen Kodak Prize Fund -Interest 63,136 60,586
Laxmi and Dharmatena Memorial Scholarship Fund 100K 000 100,000 Family Medigine Prize Fund -interest 178,052 171,927
i'r-:!j Dilush) sandaken Hemracheh Scholarship 500,000 $00.000 Prof. JK.P. Arivaratne Prize Fund -Interest 22.769 17,181
:.;;::niu-. Prof. Mangals llangasinghe Scholarship 195000 M_ALP Manthriratne Prize Fund -lnterest 85 588 83,138
Fund ' Dr, P.D. Kannangam Prize Fund-Interest 70,225 65,140
Prof Kalinga Mudali & His Farmuly Scholarship Fund 1,216,800 . .M. P Kulasekara School. =Interest 4511 43.006
Tanl 7289198 5897398 Total 6.264.498 6,092,773
University of Kelaniya - Financial Statensents 2021 S University of Kelaniya - Fowieial Statements 202 | Wi
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28.4 Income Balance - Scholurship Funds 2021 2020 285 Other Funds 2021 2020

Balance at the beginning of the yvear 4,651,579 4,551,404 Balance at the beginning of the year 4,653,579 4,551 44
Add Add
Interest mcome réceived during the vear 193,817 233,595 Interest income réceived during the year 4931 817 253,505
Less Less
Prize Awirded Duning the year 125,000 151,450 Prize Awarded During the vear 125,000 151,450
R AAna it e AO2 06 TN Yol s s L Balance at the end of the year 5022396 4,653,579
Income Balance - Scholarship Funds - Description 2021 2020 Othar Fundy < Dusarptiod 4 2620
Dr. Chithra Fernando Scholarship Fund(interest) 2,056,272 1,888,538 UGE Scholarship fund ' o
Perter Silva Scholarship Fund (Interest) 21454 21207 Prizes Awnrding Scholarship Funds . 18,696
P.P. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund (Interest) 52,937 77,994 CMIRNS 207 S H0|SN DS ' L
Linus Silva/Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund -Interest 65,953 58,859 Total - 41,546
Agnus Peduru Scholarship Fund -interést 13,103 35353
Muary's Friends Scholarshap Fund (Interest) 129,433 120,933
5. Jayawardena Scholarship Fund Intenest 157,526 146,026
Rathnakara Scholarship Fund (Interest) 110,856 102,106
,!:-,;Lr,]_:1]|i Cosia Memorinl Scholarship Fund 371 608 182 531
"rof oy aratne Mem Scholi p Fun -
Ih-:;cr::l.llh 1 Gunaratne Memonal Scholarship Fund L 116.758 1.068.567
Rajamanthirec Scholarship Fund Interest 145,650 132,525
1|'|I:::::_11|11'--|h 5 Rathanasara Scholarship Fund 108915 188.651
Sudent Trust Scholarship Fund (HRM) ~Interest 426,112 402111
Prof P.Ranasinghe Scholarship Fund -Interest 200,981 152,762
W.S. Karunathilake scholarship Fund -lnterest 84,801 15429
Toral 5.022.394 4.653.579

Univeraty of Eeliniya - Flnancial Staléments 2021 7

Universiy of Kelannya - Finanzual Statements 2021 48
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As at 31 December in LKR 2021 2020

vk
29 Research Gronis Sofvedlul
N
Girants received from NSF 29-] 7.857.197 12,991 606
Grunts received from M v of Stience . -
I oo eeeive ( VITSIrY of Stience 2.3 1 356 285 1.512.798

[ |I.'I.-“'|l'||:1'|-"l'
Girnnts receéived from UGC 29.3 | 223.112 163,912
Granis received from other instituies 29.4 115,076,822, 90,205,987
University research grants 9.5 10,555 500 10,853 %44

Balance at the end of the year 136168916 116,028 147

29.1 Gramts received from National Science Foundation (NSF)

Balance at the beginning of the year 12,991,606 21,261,014

Add
Crrants recerved during the year 2,208,545 4,078,236
Less
Payments during the vear 7.342.954 12,347 644
Bilance at the end of the vear 7857197 12,991,606

29.1  Grams received from Ministry of Science & Technology
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.512,798 1.710.915
Add
Grants received during the vear 800,000 1,421,000
Less
Pavments during the year 656,513 1,619,117
Balance at the end of the year 1356285 1,512,798
293  Grants recelved from University Grants Commission (UGC)

Balance at the beginning of the vear 163,912 J23,112
Add
Crrants received during the vear 1.584.500
Less
Payments during the year K25.600 659,200
Balance at the end of the yvear 1,223,112 463 912

| Keluriya el Satements
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29.4 Grants received from other institutes
Balance at the beginning of the year
Audd
Grants received during the year
Less
Payments during the vear

Balunce al the end of the year

29.5 University research grants
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add
Grants received during the year
Less
Payments during the vear

Balince at the end of the year

W Iacome Received in Advance
Fee - Levving Courses - Diploma &
Certificates

Fee - Levying Courses - Postgradunte
Fee - Levying Courses - Medicine

Fee - Levying Courses -Cithers

Other Internal Programmes

External Examination - Examination Fee
External Examination - Seminar Fee
(thers

Balance at the enid of the vear

ety of Kflanmea - Ninanctal Sialermemia

Annual Report & ecounte 2021

Jmg= (0T kﬂ'ﬂ

90,205 987

15.G21.847

(50,051.012)

115,176,822

10,853,844

2 693.047

2,591,391
10,555,500

145,660,622
360,578,192
5049270
15,010,497
30,565.872
207,668,050
6863377
62600878
DI5,767,159

96,120,174

40, 108,303

(46,022 49())

M.205,987

12,946,424

2 430,983

=

4,454 718
BB5.660
37,259,503
215,822 280
68 424 168
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if Provivion for Rerfring Grotuiny
Provision for PV/DBRO as ot 131 Janusry
Interest Cost for the Period
Currems Service Cost for the Period
less: Payments made during the Yea
Actual (Gain) Loss on PV-DBO

Balance at the end of the year

. Asar31"DecemberinlKR e 0m

32 Refunmdabfe Deposit
Tender Deposits
Security Deposits

Library Deposits

Balance ut the end of the year

13 Accroaed Expenses & Other Payables
Accrued Audit Fees
Accrued expenses for Contractunl Services
Accrued Expenses of Fee levying Courses
Accrued Maintenance Expenses
Accrued other Récurrent Expénses
Accrueed Personal Emoluments
Accrued Stores Supplies
Accrued Supplies Expenses
Accrued Travelling Expenses
Others
Retumed Payment
Staff development programme
Stafl ecurity deposits
Stamp Deposits
Sundry creditors
Sundry Deposits
Tax Payuble
Total

Uniwerslty of Kslaniya - Nnanclal Batememia 2021

Annual Report & rtecounts 2021

'.m‘

301,445,943
111,315675
82,368,567
(83.421.176)
{ 120 8659 9%9)

1371.839.001

601,178
43336311

$8,267,446

102,204,935

5.1 10,000
4],788.536
1,278,064
5603, 869
54,051 812
18.436.395
18,273,787
2.379.162
526,006
1.569 970
446,312
A111.481
63,490
64,175
2,733,882
11.338.564
1375]14

190, 113,01%

1.267.115037
| :\-7\.1H T_.;'.‘ﬁ
84.944223
(97.432.924)
3,772,528

1,391 445,043

‘H:u;_] ".’H
88,334,994

54, 084,645

143,178,816

rinlKR M 06

1.395.000
46,890,011
1.249 204
8.677.278
. T35,791
48 521,164
7.558.719
4.B24.475
170,270

fil 676
64,175
261584
14,706, 3606
[89.950
186,061,398

Ly
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UNIVERSITY OF KELANITA

STATEMENT OF THE COMPARISON OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS - 2021

CATEGORY

Actual 20218

INCONE
Government Grant 4,1 25,000, i)
Government Grants for Recument Expenditure A, 1 28,000, 00H)

(Mher Income

Total Income

EXFENSES
Personal Emolaments

Personal Emolumeéents - Academic

Personal Emoluments « Non-Academic

Iravelling Expenses
Dromestic

Forcign

Supplies

Stationery and Office Requisites
Fuel & Lubricants

LUiniforma

Mechanjcal & Elecurical poods
Chemicals & Glasaware
Medical Supplies

by

Maintenance Eapenses
Vohicles

Planst, Machinery and Equiprment
Buildings and Structures
Frrniture

Other

Contractual Services
ransport

Postal and Communication
Electricity & Waler

Rents and Local Taxes
Security Services
Cleaning Sérvices
Printing Advenising etc

Crhect

1.250,0%1.520

SATH051,520

3.994.238 762
2973, 764,695
1020474067
3354910
178,924

3175,

93 Dy, 687
3,773,510
9.563,7535
$£13,716

|98 842

B 103,268

it N2

35 473, 4%)
LTI
0.546,752
2,198 (99
B44.637

141,704

330,264,968
6,250
60.911,752
TRO060,.T21
12,7 1854
12,549,119
77,607 669
15,893 447

12,765,176

Urmbyeratty of Kelaniva - [inancial $tai=ments 202

Hiudget

2021

A, ) S OV, DN
b, 1590, 000,000
629,963,000

4. 519,903,000

40 TH S8 000
2. 968,850,360
1.109. 714,640

4, 00, (i)

200,000

3,800,000

A4, 050, 000
15,000,000
Q. 500,000
& i), 000
R

B, 0040, 000
140 000
35,500 000
31,750,000
G 500,000
201,004, 000
3 OO G

1 500, 060

N OHD L

3R 170,000

T, ()

62, 500, el
B0 000,000
13100000

S5, 0000 i)
80,000,000
15,000,000

| 2S00 O

HiTerence
Budget and
Aetunl

2,000, 000
62004000
(620,05K,520)
(558, 088.520)

4926238
(4,914,335)
9,240,573
[0
21076
B24.004

S3318
226450

(63.755)
(18716}
1.158
(103.26K)
{20,102y
26,510
(981,197
(46,752}
(1, 198,009)
155,303
8,291

7405032
L7850
1,588,268
1930279
189,146
TASDNE]
139230
(F03.447)
(265,176)

+a
L) g™
s
1 6%
1 1%

16%%
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR
GENERAL

Other Recurrent 135216431 136,665,000 1 448,569 1% HED/E/UOK/1/21/11 June 2022
Travel grants 1o University Teachers
Special Services - Council & Commitices 7.052.740 7.000,00) (52,740) SE
Dia-  Professional & Other Fres 4,000 0,000 (A, 000 .1 .
Workshops. Seminars 2.990.941 3,000,000 0,059 0% Vice Chancellor
Academic Research & Publications 2,670,447 2 800,000 119 453 tn, UIli\-'El'Sil'}-' of Kelani}ra
ST Development (Training for Teschers, . 2
Administrators & Other Emplovess) Aasar 00,000 S50 o
Postgraduate Research & Scholarships . ; . . }
Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the University of Kelaniva for
Uniwersity sports activities 100,000 . the year ended 31 December 2021 in terms of the National Audit Act No.19 of 2018
Student welfare, Student council & Social 100,000 .
Harmony
lndu!.h'} 1“mm.'|hlm. Fractuical & Career . 1+ Finnndnl Smt cmcnh
Guidance - .
!i.tud:r:Ls'.lJn:Iup:lmmt Initintives & 11,560 15.000 3440 23%
Community Relations 1.1 Qualified Opinion
Employee Welfare & Medical Insurance 18,507,000 19,000,000 493,000 %% . . . . . . .
The audit of the financial statements of the University of Kelaniva for the year ended 31
Interest Subsidy on Pro ¢ Loan 12,089,000 12,000.(00) (N9, 0040) 1% S ) .
) v ) Nm . ‘ December 2021 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 and the
Holiday Warrnnts Season Tickets 1,163,653 1,200,000 o7 %
conversation expenses 5.740.834 6,000,000 159,166 % statement of financial performance, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for
Entertainment Expenacs 3,573,050 3,500,000 {73,850) -2% the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
Bank Ch 41,161 41,161 . . . S . . .
e , ‘ ! accounting policies, was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article
Awnrds & Indemnities 150,500 150,000 (500) 0"
Contributions & Méembership Fees 2,002,627 2.240,000 187473 i 154 (1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sn Lanka read
Examination Fees 77,600,791 78,000,000 399,209 1% conjunction with the provision of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018, My comments and
19,92 000,000 9,920 1% . . . . . : L
s SRR ' 249 observations which I consider should be published with the annual report of the University in
Folnl Expenses 4.590,102.961  4,683,200,000 91,097,039 M, terms of sub-section 108 (1) of the University Act, appear in this report. My report to Parliament
i pursuance of provisions in Article 154(6) of the Constitution will be tabled in due course.
In my opimion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion
section of this report, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the University as at 31 December 2021 and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.
Page | 1
University of Kelasiva - Financlal Siatemeits 2021 55
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR

GENERAL

1.2 Basis for Qualified Opinion

(a) Since useful lifetime of the non-current assets had not been reviewed annually in terms of
Paragraph 65 of the 511 Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 07, property, plant and
equipment costed for Rs.1,582.224 300 and library books and graduation cloaks costed
for Rs.293 815,186 were further in use despite being fully depreciated. As such, action
had not been taken to revise the said estimated emor in terms of S Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standard 03,

(b) Capital grants of Rs 140,000,000 received during the vear under review had not been
identified and measured in the financial statements in accordance with Sn Lanka Public

Sector Accounting Standard 11.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Sn Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My
responsibilities, under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I believe that the audit evidence

I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

1.3 Other information included in the University’s 2021 Annual Report.

The other information comprises the information included in the University's 2021 Anmnual
Report but does not include in the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon, which
I have obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report. Management is responsible for the

other information.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not

express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other mformation is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work I have performed on the other information that I have obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Page | 2
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR
GENERAL

1.4 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such intermal
control as management determine i1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the University's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intend to

liquidate the University or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseemng the University's financial
reporting process,

As per Section 16(1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the University of Kelaniva is
required to maintain proper books and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and

liabilities, to enable annual and periodic financial statements to be prepared of the University.

1.5 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance,
but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or ervor and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sr1 Lanka Auditing Standards, [ exercise professional

Judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the andit. I also;

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform andit procedures responsive to those risks, and

Page | 3
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR

GENERAL

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the overnide of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the University
ability to continue as a going concem. If I conchude that a material uncertainty exists, I
am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are mmadequate, to modify my opinon. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to

continue as a going concer.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I commumnicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 1
identify during my audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

MNational Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 includes specific provisions for following

requiremenls.

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion section of my report, [
have obtained all the information and explanation that required for the audit and as far as
appears from my examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the University as

per the requirement of section 12 (a) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

Page | 4
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GENERAL

The fmancial statements presented is consistent with the preceding vyear as per the

requirement of section 6 (1) (d) (iii) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 0f 2018,

Except for the observation made under section (a) in the basis for the qualified opinion of my
report, the financial statements presented includes all the recommendations made by me in
the previous yvear as per the requirement of section 6 (1) (d) (iv) of the National Audit Act,
No. 19 of 2018.

Based on the procedures performed and evidence obtained were limited to matters that are

material, nothing has come to my attention to make the following statements.

to state that any member of the governing body of the University has any direct or indirect
interest in any contract entered into by the University which are out of the nommal cause of
business as per the requirement of section 12 (d) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018;

to state that the University has not complied with any applicable written law, general and
special directions 1ssued by the governing body of the University as per the requirement of

section 12 (f) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 except for;

Reference to law/
Direction

Description

(i) | Financial Regulation 371 Advances should be settled mmediately after the
completion of the purpose for which it 1s granted and not
later than the 31 of December of the financial year in which
the imprest 15 issued. However, 38 advances aggregate
amounting to Rs 80,405,752 relevant to the period from the
year 2015 to the year 2021, have not been settled as per the

Financial Regulations till 31 May 2022,

(i) | Financial Regulation 571 Action had not been taken in accordance with the Financial
regulations regarding 115 tender and security deposits amounted
to Rs. 20,664,876 remained over two yvears and library deposits

amounnted to Rs.23,221,500 remained over 05 years,

to state that the University has not performed according to its powers, functions and duties as

per the requirement of section 12 (g) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018,

Page | 5
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

GENERAL

2.2.4 to state that the resource of the University has not procured and utilized economically, Audit Committee Report - 2021

efficiently and effectively within the time frames and in compliance with the applicable laws

as per the requirement of section 12 (h) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018, Composition of the Audit Committee

23 Other Matt The Audit Committee of the University, established as a sub-committee responsible for the Council
. er Matters

consists of three non-executive members. The following officers were engaged in Audit Committee
) o activities in the year 2021.

(a) Although provision of Rs. 7,714,000 had been made to conduct 25 research activities in the year .

2021, due to the fact that 14 research projects had not been started, a provision of Rs, 6,489,479 could Members

[ Participation in the Committee in 2021

not be ntilized. Although Rs. 737.403 had been granted for 06 research works which should be started | (Participation /Due to participation)

in 2018 and should be completed by 2021, extensions of time had been obtained without completing

1. Mr.L.E. Susantha Silva (Chairman) 4/4
those researches till 31 December 2021, Although progress reports should have been submitted in e e —— - : .

2. Mr. Sanjaya Bandara 2/4 |
every & months during the period of research, there were also (4 research activities which were not I N

3. Mr. Upali Wijeweera | 4/4

done in that way.

(b) Although a total interest income of Bs. 11,286,893 was earned as of 31 December 2021 by investing
fumds in 53 scholarships, prizes and other funds, it was not spent for the intendent purposes for which The members of the National Audit Office were also invited to participate as observers
the funds were established.

(c) 196 cheques amounting to Rs, 2,628,608 issued to various creditors were cancelled during the period

Meeting
from 2018 to 2021 but action had not been taken to settle those till 31 December 2021.
(d) Action had not been taken to dispose 187 consumer items with a cost of Rs. 4,204,684 which were As per Public Enterprises Circular No .P.E.D./31, Committee meeting should be held at least four
identified as obsolete and damaged, related to the period from 2012 to 2021, by the board of survey times a year. The Committee met four times in the year under review and the internal and external

report in the year 2021, Also, 446 stock items costing to Rs.4.013,155 remained as slow moving and audit reports were discussed at these meetings. The Commitiee reports were submitted to the

non-moving items due to purchases were made without identifying the requirement. Further, cost of University Council for information and necessary actions
179 stock items which were remained as excess stock amounting to Rs.1,108,577 had not been taken
in to the books and action had not been taken in terms of Financial Regulation 3 regarding 91 shortage

Main responsibilities
stock items costed of Bs.970,236,

The main objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Council for the efficient functions of the

financial and it’s related management activities of the University.

i ) The main responsibilities are,
W.P.C. Wickramarathna

Auditor General 1. Review and Supervision of the financial statements, financial reporting and Continuation of the
Audit Process.
2. Examine any matters related to the finance of the University and other related matters.
3. Approving the annual internal Audit Plans and Programmes.
4. Supervision of the Internal Audit Plan and Programme.
5. Investigate the external and internal audit reports and take follow up action on recommendations.
Page | 6
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Audit Committee Report - 2021

Composition of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the University, established as a sub-committee responsible for the Council
consists of three non-executive members. The following officers were engaged in Audit Committee
activities in the year 2021.

Members [ Participation in the Committee in 2021

I {Participation /Due to participation)

'1. Mr.L.E. Susantha Silva {Chairman) 4/4
2. Mr. Sanjaya I?;un;d.ara [ - B 2/4 - |
3. Mr. Upali Wijeweera . 4

The members of the National Audit Office were also invited 1o participate as observers.

Meeting

As per Public Enterprises Circular No .P.E.D./31, Committee meeting should be held at least four
times a year. The Committee met four times in the year under review and the internal and external
audit reports were discussed at these meetings. The Committee reports were submitted to the

University Council for information and necessary actions.

Main responsibilities

The main objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Council for the efficient functions of the

financial and it's related management activities of the University.
The main responsibilities are,

1. Review and Supervision of the financial statements, financial reporting and Continuation of the

Audit Process.

2. Examine any matters related to the finance of the University and other related matters.

3. Approving the annual internal Audit Plans and Programmes.

4. Supervision of the Internal Audit Plan and Programme.

5. Investigate the external and internal audit reports and take follow up action on recommendations.
pnaal Report & #ecounts 2021
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Review, Supervision and examination the compliance of the effective performance of the system
controls.

Review performance at regular intervals for cost effectiveness and to eliminate wasteful
expenditure Etc.

Ascertain whether statutes, regulations, rules and circulars are complied with.

Activities within the year.

The Committee was engaged in the following activities within the yvear under review.

1. Approval and Supervision of the annual internal audit plans and programmes.

L

Annual Report & ecounte 2021

The Commttee approved and supervised the internal audit plan and programme for the year
2021. The Committee reviewed and supervised the effectiveness and performance of the internal

audits, audit queries and the performance of the Internal Audit Division.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The compliance with the relevant laws and regulations were reviewed with the reports submitted
by the external and internal auditors. The Committee further followed up on the preparation and
presentation of the annual accounts reports of the University and the settlement of statutory

payments such as Gratuity, Pensions and the Provident Funds.

Continuous review and Supervision on the violation of Contracts.

The Committee continuously reviewed and supervised the recovery process from the staff
members who violated bonds. As a result, it was able to recover the complete bond amount from
05 persons and approximately Rs.30.1 million was recovered in the year under review. There
were 23 bond violators at the beginning of the year 2021. 5 persons were paying the installments
in cash and legal actions had already been taken to recover the relevant amounts from 03 persons,
Reminders had been sent for 04 persons who had dues, informing them to pay the installments

on time.
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. Review and strengthening of the internal control system.

MNecessary recommendations: had been mode on the control of Fixed Assets, regulating the
expenditure [or contractual activities, lending library books, annual board of survey of
stores/survey of fixed assets, recovering the unsettled advances, settling the unrecognized and
seltled loan balances and strengthening the internal controls. Further Committee continuously
reviewed the action taken to correct the weaknesses pointed out by the Auditor General's Repont

and the Audit Queries issued during the year 2021,
5. Audit Committee Mectings

The Audit Committee meetings were held at four occasions within the year ended as a1 31
December 2021, All the Audit Commitice members actively participated in all the Committees.
A representative from the Auditor General's Department participated at every meeting 'of the
Audit Committee as an observer. Other stafll members from the University were also invited

when required. The seerétary 1o the Audit Committee is Senior Assistant Internal Auditor
Conclusion

The Commintee was satisfied with the success of the follow up activites based on the

recommendations on the matters considered by the Committee in the year 2021,

L /\

Chairman
Audit Committee

University OF Kelaniyu

Annual Report & ccounts 2021
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OBSERVATION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE UNIVERSITY OF
KELANIYA ON THE REPORT OF
THE AUDITOR GENERA

My no. UK/IA/ 04/ FAR/2021/1/21/11
Yourno.HED/E/UOK/1/21/11
15th September 2022

Auditor General
National Audit Office,
No.306/72,

Polduwa Road,
Battaramulla

AUDIT REPORT OF THE UNIVERSITY OF KELANIYA IN
TERMS OF THE ARTICLE NO. 12 OF NATIONAL AUDIT
ACT NO. 19 OF 2018 IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED IN 31ST
DECEMBER 2021

The explanations in respect of the above number and the audit report in terms of the
Article no. 12 of National Audit Act no. 19 of 2018 in respect of the financial statements for
the yearendedin 31st December 2021 are as follows;
1. Financial statements

1.1 Situationally assessed opinion

1.2 Foundation for the opinion

(a) Itwill be amended in the coming year
(b) It will be amended in the coming year
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND

REGULATING REQUIREMENTS

2.2.2

Explanation

Annexure 1 indicates the status of paying advance.

Advance have been paid for the relevant completed
contract activities from capital advance which provided
for capital activities, and steps will be taken to pay
advance once the ongoing work complete.

The relevant contract institution must make a request to
get repayable tender deposits and assurance deposits,
and the necessary steps will be taken to immediately
exempt the deposits of all such contractors.

Library deposits are relevant for the students who are
registered in post graduate courses. When paying back
the library deposits to library or when taking extended
deposits to the income, the students who are relevant to
the deposits must finish their student period, and must
submit back all the library books and documents after
completing all the examinations. A report consists of
the details of the students who should be paid by the
faculty of graduate studies will be sent to the library
and, if there is any amount to be charged, the rest would
be paid to the relevant individuals. Accordingly,
necessary steps will be taken to add the relevant
deposits to the income of the student who completed
student activities and who requested/not requested to
get their deposits exempted.

No Reference to
rules/orders

2.2.2 Financial regulation 371 of
financial regulations code of
Democratic Socialist
RepublicofSriLanka

2.2.2 Financial regulation of 571

Annaal Report & ecounts 2021
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2.3 Others

(a)

Number of projects to be done in the year -25
2021 by gaining the financial facilities by
the grantsofthe government

Estimated amount for the projects to be -7,714,000.00 LKR
doneintheyear2021
The numberofongoing projects among the -11

projectstobedoneintheyear2021

The amount of money spent for the 11
projects among the ongoing projects to be
doneintheyear2021

-1,224,521.00 LKR

The number of cancelled projects among -01
theprojectstobedoneintheyear2021

The number of projects commenced on -23
contracts among the projects to be done in
theyear2021

Annaal Report & ecounts 2021

These research projects will be completed in the future since the time period of three years
can be obtained to complete these research projects. 06 research activities which were
extended, were not completed up to 31st December of reviewed year, and the final reports
are to be sent after sending reminding letters. Although progress reports should be sent once
in six months during the period of research, messages have been received notifying the
difficulties in submitting progress reports on time based on the circumstances in the country.
Reminding letters were also sent to the relevant researchers regarding submitting progress
reports on time.

(b) The Academic Division maintains the document files relevant to scholarship funds and
gift funds, and 31 of them are in operation. Funds for three non-operating scholarship funds
were invested in the year 2021. The following are the details of the grants for scholarship
funds, gift funds and other funds operated by the academic division.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATING REQUIREMENTS
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No Name of the Date of Scholarship — Amount Student
Scholarship Scholarship Medal/Cash (Rs.) Number
Faculty of Humanities Awarded
01 P.A.P.A.Chandrasekara 02/06/2022 Cash 20,000.00 HS/2016/2046

Prize Fund 20,000.00 HS/2017/0976
20,000.00 HS/2017/0980
20,000.00 HS/2017/0500
20,000.00 HS/2015/0861
20,000.00 HS2015/0883
20,000.00 HS/2018/1506

Derickde Souza 13/05/2022 Cash 1,200.000 HS/TE18/034

Memorial Prize Fund

Rev. Sik Vin Sin 02/06/2022 Cash 5,000.00 HS/2018/0904

Prize Fund 5,000.00 HS/2018/0230
5,000.00 HS/2018/0051
5,000.00 HS/2018/0864

Hawanpola Sri Rathnasara 02/06/2022 Cash 10,000.00 HS/2017/0107

Scholarship Fund

Rev.Kudawelle Wangeesa 27/06/2022 Cash 10,000.00 HS/2018/0513

Prize Fund

Prof. W.S.Karunathilaka 28/06/2022 Cash 8,036.00 HS/2018/0513

Scholarship Fund 8,036.00 HS/2017/0070
8,036.00 HS/2016/0349
8,036.00 HS/2015/1181

Faculty of Social Sciences

F.R.Jayasooriya 05/07/2022 Cash 3,500.000 HS/2018/0942

Faculty Sciences

S.Jayawardena 27/06/2022 Plated Gold 5,000.00 BS/2014/222

Scholarship Fund Medal

S.B.P.Wickramasooriya 16/08/2022 Cash 10,000.00 PS/2015/175

Scholarship

Total 222,846.00

Aunaal Report & ecounts 2021

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATING REQUIREMENTS

© Cheques amountto497,390.01 LKR among the cheques which were cancelled after issuing for the
date of 31st of December in the reviewed year, have been reissued on the request of cheque owners, and
cheques amount to 2,065,631.44 have been transferred to the university income with the approval of
Finance Committee due to the reason that none of the relevant cheque owners requested (Annexure —
2). Further, necessary steps will be taken to identify the cheques of the cheque owners who no longer
request, and to take them to the university income.

(d) Kelaniya Premises

Deficient and excessive stock values of A and B stores located in the university premises.

Rs.

Deficient stock

Store A 910,372.82
Store B 39,735.08
Total 950,109.90
Excessive stock

Store A 908,414.50
Store B 76,803.07
Total 985,217.57

Reasons for the deficient and excessive stock are sent to the finance committee, and necessary steps
will be taken to amend the stock ledger according to the physical stock balance on the
recommendations of that committee.

Annual Repont & ecounts 2021
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND

REGULATING REQUIREMENTS

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATING REQUIREMENTS

Following are the values of the slow- moving stocks, unissued stocks, damaged and expired stocks;

Rs.
Slow moving stocks
Store A 496,206.72
Store C 62,150.00
Total 558,356.72
Unissued stocks
Store A 1,181,871.09
Store B 713,605.25
Store C 295,226.98
Total 2,190,703.32
Damaged and expired stocks
Store A 3,841,532.95
Store C 73,525.00
Total 3,915,057.95
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RAGAMA PREMISES

(1) Deficient stocks

15 deficient items can be seen in the stores of the faculty of medicine. Most of them exist due to
the reason that issuance of other goods that have a similar price as of the deficient items. A special
attention will be drawn to this in the future and necessary steps will be taken.

(i1)) Slow moving stocks

Relevant divisions are informed, and necessary steps will be taken to issue them immediately
paying a special attention.

(ii1)) Unissued stocks

Most of the unissued stocks of the faculty of the medicine are toners. Toners that were obtained
for the changes in printing machines, remain unissued. Further, there are goods that are not in use
anymore. Relevant divisions are informed regarding this, and future steps have been already
taken.

(iv) Damaged and expired stocks

Most of the damaged and expired stocks belong to expiring. Other division that are in need of
them are informed, and necessary steps have been already taken to removal.

(v) Excessive stocks
The reported excessive stocks are the goods that were requested by many divisions and that were
delayed to take over after the issuance. Excessive stocks occur due to the reason that they are

added again to the existing stocks. Steps have been taken to match these stocks with store stock
book balance.

Senior Professor Nilanthi de Silva,
Vice Chancellor

Copies: 01 Secretary to the Ministry of Education
02 Secretary to the Ministry of Finance

03 Chairman ofthe University Grants Commission
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